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Part IV

In this Annual Report on Form 10-K, “we,” “our,” “us,” the “Company,” “Manning & Napier” and the “Registrant” refers to Manning & Napier, Inc. and,
unless the context otherwise requires, its direct and indirect subsidiaries and predecessors on a consolidated basis.

i

CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS
This report contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, which reflect the views of Manning & Napier, Inc. ("we," "our," or "us") with respect to, among other things, our operations and
financial performance. Words like "believes," "expects," "may," "estimates," "will," "should," "could," "intends," "likely," "plans," or "anticipates" or the
negative thereof or other variations thereon or comparable terminology, are used to identify forward-looking statements, although not all forward-looking
statements contain these words. Although we believe that we are basing our expectations and beliefs on reasonable assumptions within the bounds of what we
currently know about our business and operations, there can be no assurance that our actual results will not differ materially from what we expect or believe.
Some of the factors that could cause our actual results to differ materially from our expectations or beliefs are disclosed in the “Risk Factors” section, as well
as other sections of this report which include, without limitation: changes in securities or financial markets or general economic conditions; a decline in the
performance of our products; client sales and redemption activity; any loss of an executive officer or key personnel; changes in our business related to
strategic acquisitions and other transactions; changes to our dividend policy; risks related to the accuracy of the estimates and assumptions we used to revalue
our net deferred tax assets in accordance with the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act (the "U.S. Tax Reform"); and changes of government policy or regulations. All
forward-looking statements speak only as of the date on which they are made and we undertake no duty to update or revise any forward-looking statements,
whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise.
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PART I
Item 1.

Business.

Overview
Manning & Napier, Inc. is an independent investment management firm that provides our clients with a broad range of financial solutions and
investment strategies. Founded in 1970 and headquartered in Fairport, New York, we serve a diversified client base of high-net-worth individuals and
institutions, including 401(k) plans, pension plans, Taft-Hartley plans, platforms, endowments and foundations. Our investment strategies offer equity, fixed
income and a range of blended asset portfolios by employing traditional and quantitative approaches.
Since our inception, our objective has been to create and develop deep client relationships, allowing us to understand our client's financial needs and
objectives. Our goal is to provide comprehensive solutions, high-touch service, and attractive investment strategies in today’s ever-changing financial
marketplace.
Initially, this approach helped us build a client base of high-net-worth individuals, small business owners and middle market institutions using
separately managed accounts, and we maintain these relationships in many targeted geographic regions. Over time, we were able to expand on this foundation
with additional strategies and solutions, including the use of mutual funds and collective investment trusts to serve larger institutions, defined contribution
plans, and unions as well as those clients that may utilize investment consultants or other intermediaries.
A key aspect of our client service approach is a commitment to retaining internal subject matter experts that can provide consultative services beyond
investment management, which we believe helps us attract new clients and build close relationships with existing clients. We have designed solutions that can
be tailored to specific client needs, such as our family wealth management service, endowment and foundation services, and custody and trust services. We
believe this service-oriented approach, combined with competitive long-term investment performance, has allowed us to achieve a high average annual
separate account retention rate throughout our history.
From an investment standpoint, our strategies are designed to provide competitive absolute returns over the long-term by employing time-tested,
disciplined research processes. While the mechanics of these processes may differ depending on the strategy, all of our solutions work from the underlying
belief that active management is the best investment approach for meeting long-term client objectives. Additionally, our investment team's compensation
structure has been designed with a focus on aligning our business outcomes with positive client outcomes.
Over the course of our nearly 50 year history, we view our team-based, client-centric approach as imperative to our success and distinct within the
industry. As of December 31, 2018, we have twelve mutual fund share classes rated with four or five stars by Morningstar, and a number of our investment
strategies have built value-added track records over multiple decades. Recently, however, the three- and five-year performance of several of our key strategies
has been mixed.
Performance challenges, along with the trend toward passive investing, especially amongst institutional investors, resulted in assets under management
("AUM") declines starting in 2014. Our active approach can cause us to be out of favor relative to benchmarks and/or peers over shorter time periods, and
these short-term deviations can lead to changes in AUM trends over time. The following chart reflects our AUM as of December 31 for each of the last 10
years:
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As of December 31, 2018, our investment management offerings include approximately 49 distinct separate account composites and 58 mutual funds
and collective investment trusts. We believe we have cultivated a robust menu of actively managed strategies that address client needs including traditional,
quantitative, and specialized portfolios.
Our AUM as of December 31, 2018 by investment vehicle and portfolio were as follows:
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The following table summarizes the annualized returns for several of our key investment strategies and relevant benchmarks. Since inception and over
long-term periods, we believe our strategies have earned attractive returns on both an absolute and relative basis. We recognize, however, that some key
strategies have mixed track records over the past several years. These strategies are used across separate account, mutual fund and collective investment trust
vehicles, and represent approximately 78% of our AUM as of December 31, 2018.

Key Strategies

AUM as of
December 31, 2018
(in millions)
Inception Date

Long-Term Growth (30%-80% Equity Exposure)

$

5,841.5

$

1,850.1

Blended Index

One Year

Three
Year

Five Year

Ten Year

Market
Cycle (2)

Inception

1/1/1973

(3.0)%

4.9%

3.4%

8.0%

6.0%

9.3%

(4.0)%

5.4%

4.6%

8.1%

5.0%

8.6%

10/1/1996

(16.8)%

1.6%

(2.0)%

5.1%

4.6%

6.5%

(14.2)%

4.5%

0.7%

6.6%

3.0%

4.6%

(2.2)%

3.8%

2.7%

6.6%

5.5%

8.5%

(2.8)%

4.5%

4.1%

6.9%

5.0%

8.3%

(4.9)%

7.1%

4.3%

10.1%

6.5%

9.5%

(6.1)%

7.2%

5.8%

10.5%

4.8%

8.1%

(3.8)%

5.4%

3.7%

8.8%

6.4%

6.4%

(5.0)%

6.3%

5.2%

9.4%

4.9%

4.9%

(4.5)%

8.3%

5.3%

11.3%

7.2%

10.6%

(7.0)%

8.1%

6.5%

11.9%

4.7%

8.6%

(3.5)%

9.8%

6.7%

12.1%

N/A (3)

7.2%

(5.2)%

9.0%

7.9%

13.2%

N/A

5.3%

(0.9)%

2.6%

2.0%

4.5%

4.8%

5.7%

(0.6)%

3.0%

3.0%

4.9%

4.7%

6.0%

0.2%

1.8%

2.0%

3.4%

4.5%

7.0%

0.0%

2.1%

2.5%

3.5%

4.8%

7.0%

(18.0)%

2.9%

4.6%

N/A

(18.2)%

3.8%

2.0%

N/A (3)

N/A (3)

4.8%

(3.2)%

10.2%

7.8%

11.6%

N/A (3)

10.2%

(8.3)%

7.0%

6.0%

11.2%

N/A (3)

7.5%

(4)

Core Non-U.S. Equity
Benchmark: ACWIxUS Index

Growth with Reduced Volatility (20%-60% Equity Exposure) $

2,695.9

1/1/1973

Blended Index (5)
Equity-Oriented (70%-100% Equity Exposure)

$

1,284.2

1/1/1993

Blended Benchmark: 65% Russell 3000® / 20%
ACWIxUS / 15% Bloomberg Barclays U.S. Aggregate
Bond
Equity-Focused Blend (50%-90% Equity Exposure)

$

965.5

4/1/2000

Blended Benchmark: 53% Russell 3000/ 17% ACWIxUS/
30% Bloomberg Barclays U.S. Aggregate Bond
Core Equity-Unrestricted (90%-100% Equity Exposure)

$

750.9

1/1/1995

Blended Benchmark: 80% Russell 3000® / 20%
ACWIxUS
Core U.S. Equity

$

383.1

7/1/2000

Benchmark: Russell 3000® Index
Conservative Growth (5%-35% Equity Exposure)

$

478.2

4/1/1992

Blended Benchmark:15% Russell 3000/ 5% ACWIxUS/
80% Bloomberg Barclays U.S. Intermediate Aggregate
Bond
Aggregate Fixed Income

$

347.6

1/1/1984

Benchmark: Bloomberg Barclays U.S. Aggregate Bond
Rainier International Small Cap

$

738.3

3/28/2012

Benchmark: MSCI ACWIxUS Small Cap Index
Disciplined Value

$

433.7

Annualized Returns as of December 31, 2018 (1)

11/1/2003

Benchmark: Russell 1000 Value

(3)

N/A

(3)

(3)

10.1%

__________________________
(1) Key investment strategy returns are presented net of fees. Benchmark returns do not reflect any fees or expenses.
(2) The market cycle performance numbers are calculated from April 1, 2000 to December 31, 2018. We believe that a full market cycle time period
should contain a wide range of market conditions and usually consists of a bear market, recovery and bull market stage. Our definition of the current
market cycle includes the bear market that began with an abrupt decline in the technology sector (4/1/2000 - 9/30/2002), the subsequent failed
recovery (10/1/2002 - 10/31/2007), the financial crisis bear market (11/1/2007 - 2/28/2009), and the current bull market (3/1/2009 - current). The
period utilized in our current market cycle may differ from periods used by other investment managers.
(3) Performance not available given the product's inception date.
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(4) Benchmark shown uses the 55/45 Blended Index from 01/01/1973-12/31/1987 and the 40/15/45 Blended Index from 01/01/1988-12/31/2018. The
55/45 Blended Index is represented by 55% S&P 500 Total Return Index ("S&P 500") and 45% Bloomberg Barclays U.S. Government/Credit Bond
Index ("BGCB"). The 40/15/45 Blended Index is 40% Russell 3000 Index ("Russel 3000"), 15% MSCI ACWI ex USA Index ("ACWxUS"), and 45%
Bloomberg Barclays U.S. Aggregate Bond Index ("BAB")
(5) Benchmark shown uses the 40/60 Blended Index from 01/01/1973-12/31/1987 and the 30/10/60 Blended Index from 01/01/1988-12/31/2018. The
40/60 Blended Index is represented by 40% S&P 500 and 60% BGCB. The 30/10/60 Blended Index is represented by 30% Russell 3000, 10%
ACWxUS, and 60% BAB.
Our Strategy
Our mission has always been a complete focus on doing what is best for our clients, and it is our highest priority to deliver superior results and service.
In achieving those results, we strive for continuous refinement and improvement of our investment disciplines. The asset management business is a dynamic
industry, and meeting client goals and objectives will require constant evolution. Our focus on delivering excellent investment results, exceptional client
service, and innovative solutions will help our clients achieve their financial goals and form the foundation for our business.
We believe Manning & Napier’s investment solutions have been time-tested, and our approach is focused on the characteristics highlighted below.
Team-Based Research Engines
With a research department of over 60 investment professionals, we are committed to a team-based approach in order to best ensure that success can be
repeated over time. All of our investment strategies are managed by portfolio teams, allowing the stability of process to take precedence over any individual
personality. We take a home-grown approach to maintaining our research engines. We believe this enhances the consistency with our time-tested philosophies
and provides a source of future analysts to address growth and turnover. As warranted, we may also add to or supplement our research teams with additional
investment professionals through corporate development activities. The latest example of this is the Rainier International Small Cap Team that was added as
part of our acquisition of Rainier Investment Management, LLC ("Rainier") in 2016. The Director of Investments and Managing Directors of the Firm’s
investment groups are responsible for talent management and ensuring day-to-day adherence to our strategies and disciplines.
Multi-Channel Sales Teams
We have a deep multi-channel sales structure, which includes Direct, Intermediary and Platform/Sub-Advisory channels. Our Direct channel maintains
relationships with high-net-worth individuals, middle market institutions, Taft-Hartley plans and large institutions working with a consultant. Our high-touch
strategy allows us to build strong relationships over time. Our Intermediary teams work with national brokerage firms, independent financial advisors, and
retirement plan advisors to provide solutions for their clients. Manager research teams approve our strategies for their platforms through our Platform/SubAdvisory Channel. Our client-facing teams maintain relationships with the client or intermediary after the initial sale, ensuring that our strategies and
solutions are meeting the needs of the clients.
Innovative Investment Strategies
We have a history of investing in our business to support innovation. Our ongoing development of new investment strategies has historically been a
source of growth. A dynamic market and regulatory environment presents challenges for investors. Whether through innovative investment strategies or
bespoke client-specific custom solutions, we will continue to evolve in order to meet the ever-changing needs of our clients. We regularly review our group of
seeded portfolios to ensure that we are supporting competitive strategies that resonate with clients while redeeming portfolios that are no longer viable. As of
December 31, 2018, we have approximately $6.1 million invested in seed capital with our research teams in new strategy concepts and expect to continue to
deploy capital to support innovation in the future.
Enhanced Consultative Services
Offering holistic, tailored consultative services has been a source of both new business and client retention over our history. Some of our planning
capabilities include estate and tax review for families, asset/liability modeling for defined benefit pension plans, retirement and health plan design analysis for
employers, and donor relations and planned giving services for endowment and foundation clients. Many of these services are offered through our Client
Analytics Group, a team of internal consultants whose primary responsibilities include working with prospective and current clients to solve investment and
financial planning-related problems. We continue to see interest in our consultative advisory service, which allows us to tailor investment portfolios among
proprietary and non-proprietary investments (e.g., ETFs) to meet client objectives. We have both gained new relationships, as well as enhanced existing
relationships, by providing this solution. Additionally, we also offer
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practice management concepts and tools to both wealth advisors and retirement plan advisors to assist in their new business and service efforts.
Investment Disciplines and Fundamentals
We manage a variety of equity, fixed income, and blended asset strategies, using an array of portfolio construction approaches including bottom-up, topdown, and quantitative. These strategies are offered to clients in a variety of different vehicles, including separately managed accounts, mutual funds,
collective investment trusts, and as model portfolios.
We believe that active management, in all of its many forms, is the most appropriate and relevant investment approach to achieving client goals across
changing market environments. Whether investing in a country, industry, or individual company, we hold a strong belief that price matters across all of our
strategies. We are focused on helping our clients avoid permanent loss of capital over long time horizons, which is different than managing day-to-day
volatility.
We use a team-based approach across our investment strategies and research engines to best understand market opportunities. Our team approach allows
analysts to combine top-down, bottom-up, and quantitative research. Additionally, by focusing on research teams instead of individuals, we are better able to
emphasize repeatable processes instead of star personalities, while helping protect clients from staff turnover.
Sales, Service, and Marketing
We promote our strategies and solutions through direct sales to high-net-worth individuals, middle market institutions, Taft-Hartley plans, and larger
institutional clients that are working with consultants. We also have dedicated efforts to sell through financial intermediaries and platforms. In identifying new
potential prospects, we focus on individuals and institutions that have long-term objectives and are looking for a partner in addressing those needs. We believe
our problem-solving approach fosters strong relationships and helps to manage long-term expectations.
As of December 31, 2018, we had over 50 sales professionals, with an average of approximately 19 years of industry experience. Our direct national
sales representatives cover large, multi-state territories, prospecting large institutions, retirement plans and Taft-Hartley relationships. Our direct regional sales
representatives cover smaller territories, and they pursue both individual and middle market institutional business opportunities. Our intermediary salesforce
includes external wholesalers, internal wholesalers, and key account representatives, and the group covers both retirement plan advisors and wealth
management advisors. Lastly, our Portfolio Strategies Group maintains deep knowledge of all of our products, and they are primarily responsible for
maintaining consultant relations and providing field support for our client-facing teams.
Our sales representatives include generalists and teams focused on specific client types or markets. Representatives are responsible for generating new
business as well as maintaining existing business. In addition to our marketing strategies, referrals are also an important source of new business, further
highlighting the importance of our client service and solution efforts. To assist the sales representatives, we have over 30 service professionals who are
responsible for responding to client requests and questions.
Our marketing strategy is focused on finding new ways to connect and engage with clients and prospects via targeted content on products, services, and
topics that are most relevant to our various audiences. We have dedicated resources creating engaging and relevant content that positions Manning & Napier
as a thought leader and a trusted resource. This content strategy focuses on educating investors, and it mirrors the consultative nature of our firm. We
disseminate content in various ways, including through print publications, email, webinars, live events, our website, and social media.
Competition
Historically, we have competed to attract assets to manage principally on the basis of:
•

a broad portfolio and service offering that provides solutions for our clients;

•

the disciplined and repeatable nature of our team-based investment processes;

•

the quality of the service we provide to our clients and the duration of our relationships with them;

•

our pricing compared to other investment management products offered;

•

the tenure and continuity of our management and team-based investment professionals; and

•

our long-term investment track record.

Our ability to continue to compete effectively will also depend upon our ability to retain our current investment professionals and employees and to
attract highly qualified new investment professionals and employees. We compete in all aspects of our business with a large number of investment
management firms, commercial banks, broker-dealers, insurance companies and other financial institutions.
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Structure
The Company was incorporated in 2011 as a Delaware corporation, and is the sole managing member of Manning & Napier Group, LLC and its
subsidiaries (“Manning & Napier Group”), a holding company for the investment management businesses conducted by its operating subsidiaries. The
diagram below depicts our organizational structure as of December 31, 2018.

________________________
(1) The consolidated operating subsidiaries of Manning & Napier Group include Manning & Napier Advisors, LLC ("MNA"), Perspective Partners LLC,
Manning & Napier Information Services, LLC, Manning & Napier Investor Services, Inc., Exeter Trust Company and Rainier Investment
Management, LLC ("Rainier").
As of December 31, 2018, we had 366 employees, most of whom are based in Fairport, New York. Collectively, William Manning, our co-founder and
Chairman of the Board, current employee-owners and former employee owners own approximately 81.8% of Manning & Napier Group and our operating
subsidiaries. We believe that our culture of employee ownership aligns our interests with those of our clients and shareholders by delivering strong long-term
investment performance and solutions.
Regulation
Our business is subject to extensive regulation in the United States at the federal level and, to a lesser extent, the state level and by self-regulatory
organizations. We are also subject to regulations outside of the United States. Under certain of these laws and regulations, agencies that regulate investment
advisers have broad administrative powers, including the power to limit, restrict or prohibit an investment adviser from carrying on its business in the event
that it fails to comply with such laws and regulations. Possible sanctions that may be imposed include the suspension of individual employees, limitations on
engaging in certain lines of business for specified periods of time, revocation of investment adviser and other registrations, censures and fines.
SEC Regulation
Manning & Napier Advisors, LLC ("MNA") is registered with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission, (the "SEC"), as an investment adviser
under the U.S. Investment Advisers Act of 1940, as amended, ("the Advisers Act"). Additionally, the Manning & Napier Fund, Inc., (the "Fund"), and certain
of the third-party investment companies we sub-advise are registered under the U.S. Investment Company Act of 1940, (the "1940 Act"). The Advisers Act
and the 1940 Act, together with the SEC’s regulations and interpretations thereunder, impose substantive and material restrictions and requirements on the
operations of advisers and mutual funds. The SEC is authorized to institute proceedings and impose sanctions for violations of the Advisers Act and the 1940
Act, ranging from fines and censures to termination of an adviser’s registration.
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As an investment adviser, we have a fiduciary duty to our clients. The SEC has interpreted these duties to impose standards, requirements and
limitations on, among other things:
•

trading for proprietary, personal and client accounts;

•

allocations of investment opportunities among clients;

•

use of soft dollars;

•

execution of transactions; and

•

recommendations to clients.

We manage accounts for a majority of our clients on a discretionary basis, which typically affords us the authority to buy and sell securities for each
portfolio, select broker-dealers to execute trades and negotiate brokerage commission rates. In connection with designated trade executions, we receive soft
dollar credits from broker-dealers, which effectively reduces certain of our expenses. We believe all of our soft dollar arrangements comply with the safe
harbor provided by Section 28(e) of the U.S. Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, (the "Exchange Act"). If our ability to use soft dollars were
reduced or eliminated as a result of statutory amendments or new regulations, our operating expenses would increase.
As a registered adviser, we are subject to many additional requirements that cover, among other things:
•

disclosure of information about our business to clients;

•

maintenance of formal policies and procedures;

•

maintenance of extensive books and records;

•

restrictions on the types of fees we may charge;

•

custody of client assets;

•

client privacy;

•

advertising; and

•

solicitation of clients.

The SEC has authority to inspect any investment adviser and typically inspects a registered adviser periodically to determine whether the adviser is
conducting its activities (i) in accordance with applicable laws, (ii) consistent with disclosures made to clients and (iii) with adequate policies, procedures and
systems to ensure compliance.
For the year ended December 31, 2018, 23% of our revenues were derived from our advisory services to investment companies registered under the
1940 Act, including 21% derived from our advisory services to the Fund. The 1940 Act imposes significant requirements and limitations on a registered fund,
including with respect to its capital structure, investments and transactions. While we exercise broad discretion over the day-to-day management of the
business and affairs and investment portfolios of the Fund and the investment portfolios of the funds we sub-advise, our own operations are subject to
oversight and management by each fund’s board of directors. Under the 1940 Act, a majority of the directors must not be “interested persons” with respect to
us (sometimes referred to as the “independent director” requirement). The responsibilities of the board include, among other things, approving our investment
management agreement with the Fund; approving other service providers; determining the method of valuing assets; and monitoring transactions involving
affiliates. Our investment management agreements with the Fund may be terminated by the funds on not more than 60 days’ notice, and are subject to annual
renewal by the Fund board after their initial term.
The 1940 Act also imposes on the investment adviser to a mutual fund a fiduciary duty with respect to the receipt of the adviser’s investment
management fees. That fiduciary duty may be enforced by the SEC through administrative action or litigation by investors in the fund pursuant to a private
right of action.
Under the Advisers Act, our investment management agreements may not be assigned without the client’s consent. Under the 1940 Act, investment
management agreements with registered funds (such as the mutual funds we manage) terminate automatically upon assignment. The term “assignment” is
broadly defined and includes direct assignments as well as assignments that may be deemed to occur upon the transfer, directly or indirectly, of a controlling
interest in us.
Manning & Napier Investor Services, Inc. ("MNBD"), our SEC-registered broker-dealer subsidiary is the distributor for the Fund and is subject to the
SEC’s Uniform Net Capital Rule, which requires that at least a minimum part of a registered broker-dealer’s assets be kept in relatively liquid form. MNBD
was in compliance with its net capital requirements during the year ended December 31, 2018.
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FINRA Regulation
MNBD is a member of the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority ("FINRA") and as such is subject to the various industry and professional
regulations, standards, and reporting requirements established by FINRA.
ERISA-Related Regulation
We are a fiduciary under the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended, or ERISA, with respect to assets that we manage for
benefit plan clients subject to ERISA. ERISA, regulations promulgated thereunder and applicable provisions of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as
amended (the "IRC"), impose certain duties on persons who are fiduciaries under ERISA, prohibit certain transactions involving ERISA plan clients and
provide monetary penalties for violations of these prohibitions.
The fiduciary duties under ERISA may be enforced by the U.S. Department of Labor by administrative action or litigation and by our benefit plan
clients pursuant to a private right of action. In addition, the IRS may assess excise taxes against us if we engage in prohibited transactions on behalf of or with
our benefit plan clients.
New Hampshire Banking Regulation
Exeter Trust Company is a state-chartered non-depository trust company subject to the laws of the State of New Hampshire and the regulations
promulgated thereunder by the New Hampshire Bank Commissioner.
Non-U.S. Regulation
In addition to the extensive regulation to which the investment management industry is subject in the United States, we are also subject to regulation by
various Canadian regulatory authorities in the Canadian provinces where we operate pursuant to exemptions from registration. We are authorized to act as a
non-resident sub-advisory investment manager to collective investment vehicles in Ireland. Our business is also subject to the rules and regulations of the
more than 30 countries in which we currently buy and sell portfolio investments.
Employees
As of December 31, 2018, we had 366 employees, most of whom are based in Fairport, New York. None of our employees are subject to a collective
bargaining agreement.
Available Information
All annual reports on From 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q and current reports on Form 8-K, and amendments to those reports, we file or furnish
with the SEC pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchange Act are available free of charge from the SEC’s website at http://www.sec.gov/.
We also make the documents listed above available without charge through the Investor Relations section of our website at http://ir.manningnapier.com/. Such documents are available as soon as reasonably practicable after the electronic filing of the material with the SEC. The contents of our
website are not incorporated by reference into this Annual Report.
Item 1A.

Risk Factors.

Risks Related to our Business
Our revenues are dependent on the market value and composition of our AUM, which are subject to significant fluctuations.
We derive the majority of our revenue from investment management fees, typically calculated as a percentage of the market value of our AUM. As a
result, our revenues are dependent on the value and composition of our AUM, all of which are subject to fluctuation due to many factors, including:
•

Declines in prices of securities in our portfolios. The prices of the securities held in the portfolios we manage may decline due to any number of
factors beyond our control, including, among others, declining stock or commodities markets, changes in interest rates, a general economic
downturn, political uncertainty or acts of terrorism. The U.S. and global financial markets continue to be subject to uncertainty and instability. Such
factors could cause an unusual degree of volatility and price declines for securities in the portfolios we manage;

•

Redemptions and other withdrawals. Our clients generally may withdraw their funds at any time, on very short notice and without any significant
penalty. A substantial portion of our revenue is derived from investment advisory agreements that are terminable by clients upon short notice or no
notice and investors in the mutual funds we advise can redeem their investments in those funds at any time without prior notice. Also, new clients
and portfolios may not have the same client retention characteristics as we have experienced in the past. In addition, in a declining stock market, the
pace of redemptions could accelerate;

•

Investment performance. Our ability to deliver strong investment performance depends in large part on our ability to identify appropriate investment
opportunities in which to invest client assets. If we are unable to identify sufficient appropriate investment opportunities for existing and new client
assets on a timely basis, our investment performance could be adversely affected. The risk that sufficient appropriate investment opportunities may
be unavailable is
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influenced by a number of factors including general market conditions. If our portfolios perform poorly, even over the short-term, as compared with
our competitors or applicable third-party benchmarks, or the rankings of mutual funds we manage decline, we may lose existing AUM and have
difficulty attracting new assets; and
•

Competition from passive strategies. There has been an increasing preference for passive investment products, such as index and ETFs, over active
strategies managed by asset managers. If this market preference continues, existing and prospective clients may choose to invest in passive
investment products, our growth strategy may be impaired and our AUM may be negatively impacted.

If any of these factors cause a decline in our AUM, it would result in lower investment management revenues. If our revenues decline without a
commensurate reduction in our expenses, our net income will be reduced and our business will be adversely affected.
We derive substantially all of our revenues from contracts and relationships that may be terminated upon short or no notice.
We derive substantially all of our revenues from investment advisory and sub-advisor agreements, all of which are terminable by clients upon short
notice or no notice and without any significant penalty.
Our investment management agreements with mutual funds, as required by law, are generally terminable by the funds’ board of directors or a vote of
the majority of the funds’ outstanding voting securities on not more than 60 days’ written notice. After an initial term, each fund’s investment management
agreement must be approved and renewed annually by such fund’s board, including by its independent members. In addition, Exeter Trust Company's board
of directors, which includes independent members, can terminate our investment management agreements with the collective investment trusts at any time.
Our mutual fund and collective investment trust relationships may be terminated or not renewed for any number of reasons. As of December 31, 2018, mutual
fund and collective investment trust relationships represent 32% of our AUM and 34% of our revenue for the year ended December 31, 2018.
The decrease in revenues that could result from the termination of a material client relationship or group of client relationships could have an adverse
effect on our business. During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2018, other than our relationship with the Fund, there were no customers that provided over
10 percent of our total revenue.
Our portfolios may not obtain attractive returns under certain market conditions or at all.
The goal of our investment process is to provide competitive absolute returns over full market cycles. Accordingly, our portfolios may not perform well
compared to benchmarks or other investment managers’ strategies during certain periods of time, under certain market conditions, or after specific market
shocks. Underperformance may negatively affect our ability to retain clients and attract new clients. We are likely to be most out of favor when the markets
are running on positive or negative price momentum and market prices become disconnected from underlying investment fundamentals. During and shortly
following such periods of relative under performance, we are likely to see our highest levels of client turnover, even if our absolute returns are positive. Loss
of client assets and the failure to attract new clients could adversely affect our revenues and growth.
The loss of key investment and sales professionals, members of our senior management team, or difficulty integrating new executives, could have an
adverse effect on our business.
We depend on the skills, expertise and institutional knowledge of our key employees, including qualified investment and sales professionals and
members of our senior management team and our success depends on our ability to retain such key employees. Our investment professionals possess
substantial experience in investing and have been primarily responsible for the historically attractive investment performance we have achieved. We
particularly depend on our executive officers as well as senior members of our research department.
We have had significant changes in executive leadership and more could occur. Changes to strategic or operating goals, which can occur with the
appointment of new executives, can create uncertainty, and may ultimately be unsuccessful. In addition, executive leadership transition periods, including
adding new personnel, could be difficult as new executives gain an understanding of our business and strategy. Difficulty integrating new executives, or the
loss of key individuals could limit our ability to successfully execute our business strategy and could have an adverse effect on our overall financial condition.
Any of our investment or management professionals may resign at any time, subject to various covenants not to compete with us. In addition,
employee-owners are subject to additional covenants not to compete.
Competition for qualified investment, sales and top level management is intense. Attracting qualified personnel, including top level management may
take time and we may fail to attract and retain qualified personnel including top level management in the future. Our ability to attract and retain our executive
officers and other key employees will depend heavily on our business strategy, corporate culture and the amount and structure of compensation. We have
historically utilized a compensation structure that uses a combination of cash and equity-based incentives as appropriate. However, our compensation
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may not be effective to recruit and retain the personnel we need if our overall compensation packages are not competitive in the marketplace. Any costreduction initiative or adjustments or reductions to compensation could negatively impact our ability to retain key personnel. In addition, changes to our
management structure, corporate culture and corporate governance arrangements could negatively impact our ability to retain key personnel.
We may be required to reduce the fees we charge, or our fees may decline due to changes in our AUM composition, which could have an adverse effect on
our profit margins and results of operations.
Our current fee structure may be subject to downward pressure due to a variety of factors, including a trend in recent years toward lower fees in the
investment management industry. We may be required to reduce fees with respect to both the separate accounts we manage and the mutual funds and
collective trust funds we advise. In addition, we may charge lower fees to attract future new business as compared to our existing business, which may result
in us having to reduce our fees with respect to our existing business accordingly. The investment management agreements pursuant to which we advise
mutual funds are terminable on short notice and, after an initial term, are subject to an annual process of review and renewal by the funds’ boards. As part of
that annual review process, the fund board considers, among other things, the level of compensation that the fund has been paying us for our services, and that
process may result in the renegotiation of our fee structure or increase our obligations, thus increasing the cost of our performance. During the first quarter of
2019, we completed the effort of restructuring fees across our mutual fund product set that began in 2017. Given the overall pressure on fees that all active
managers are facing, we believe that bringing our fund fees to a more competitive level will enhance our ability to attract additional assets in the future. The
financial impacts will include a reduction in the management fees on our existing business, as well as an offsetting reduction in related operating expenses.
Any fees reductions on existing or future new business could have an adverse effect on our profit margins and results of operations.
Our AUM may be concentrated in certain strategies.
Client purchase and redemption activity may result in AUM concentrations with certain of our investment strategies. As a result, a substantial portion of
our operating results may depend upon the performance of these strategies. If we sustain poor investment performance or adverse market conditions, clients
may withdraw their investments or terminate their investment management agreements. These conditions would result in a reduction in our revenues from
these strategies, which could have an adverse effect on our earnings and financial condition.
Several of our portfolios involve investing principally in the securities of non-U.S. companies, which involve foreign currency exchange risk, and tax,
political, social and economic uncertainties and risks.
As of December 31, 2018, approximately 25% of our AUM across all of our portfolios was invested in securities of non-U.S. companies. Fluctuations
in foreign currency exchange rates could negatively affect the returns of our clients who are invested in these strategies. In addition, an increase in the value
of the U.S. dollar relative to non-U.S. currencies is likely to result in a decrease in the U.S. dollar value of our AUM, which, in turn, could result in lower
revenue since we report our financial results in U.S. dollars.
Investments in non-U.S. issuers may also be affected by tax positions taken in countries or regions in which we are invested as well as political, social
and economic uncertainty. Declining tax revenues may cause governments to assert their ability to tax the local gains and/or income of foreign investors
(including our clients), which could adversely affect clients’ interests in investing outside their home markets. Many financial markets are not as developed,
or as efficient, as the U.S. financial markets, and as a result, those markets may have limited liquidity and higher price volatility and may lack established
regulations. Liquidity may also be adversely affected by political or economic events, government policies, social or civil unrest within a particular country,
and our ability to dispose of an investment may also be adversely affected if we increase the size of our investments in smaller non-U.S. issuers. Non-U.S.
legal and regulatory environments, including financial accounting standards and practices, may also be different, and there may be less publicly available
information about such companies. These risks could adversely affect the performance of our strategies that are invested in securities of non-U.S. issuers and
may be particularly acute in the emerging or less developed markets in which we invest.
The historical returns of our existing portfolios may not be indicative of their future results or of the portfolios we may develop in the future.
The historical returns of our portfolios and the ratings and rankings we or the mutual funds that we advise have earned in the past should not be
considered indicative of the future results of these portfolios or of any other portfolios that we may develop in the future. The investment performance we
achieve for our clients varies over time and the variance can be wide. The ratings and rankings we or the mutual funds we advise have earned are typically
revised monthly. The historical performance and ratings and rankings included in this report are as of December 31, 2018 and for periods then ended except
where otherwise stated. The performance we have achieved and the ratings and rankings earned at subsequent dates and for subsequent periods may be higher
or lower and the difference could be material. Our portfolios’ returns have benefited during some periods from investment opportunities and positive
economic and market conditions. In other periods, general economic
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and market conditions have negatively affected our portfolios’ returns. These negative conditions may occur again, and in the future we may not be able to
identify and invest in profitable investment opportunities within our current or future portfolios.
Support provided to new products may reduce fee income, increase expenses and expose us to potential loss on invested capital.
We may support the development of new investment products by waiving all or a portion of the fees we receive for managing such products, by
subsidizing expenses or by making seed capital investments. Seed investments in new products utilize Company capital that would otherwise be available for
general corporate purposes and expose us to capital losses to the extent that realized investment losses are not offset by hedging gains. The risk of loss may be
greater for seed capital investments that are not hedged, or if an intended hedge does not perform as expected. Failure to have or devote sufficient capital to
support new products could have on adverse impact on our future growth.
Assets influenced by third-party intermediaries have a higher risk of redemption and are subject to changes in fee structures, which could reduce our
revenues.
Investments in our mutual funds made through third-party intermediaries, as opposed to mutual fund investments resulting from sales by our direct sales
force, can be more easily moved to investments in funds other than ours. Third-party intermediaries are attractive to investors because of the ease of
accessibility to a variety of funds, but this causes the investments to be more sensitive to fluctuations in performance, especially in the short-term. If we were
unable to retain the assets of our mutual funds held through third-party intermediaries, our assets under management would be reduced. As a result, our
revenues could decline and our business, results of operations and financial condition could be materially adversely affected.
We may elect to pursue growth in the United States and abroad through acquisitions or joint ventures, which would expose us to risks inherent in
assimilating new operations, expanding into new jurisdictions, and making non-controlling minority investments in other entities.
In order to maintain and enhance our competitive position, we may review and pursue acquisition and joint venture opportunities. We cannot assure we
will identify and consummate any such transactions on acceptable terms or have sufficient resources to accomplish such a strategy. In addition, any strategic
transaction can involve a number of risks, including:
•

additional demands on our staff;

•

unanticipated problems regarding integration of investor account and investment security recordkeeping, operating facilities and technologies, and
new employees;

•

adverse effects in the event acquired intangible assets or goodwill become impaired;

•

the existence of liabilities or contingencies not disclosed to or otherwise known by us prior to closing such a transaction; and

•

dilution to our public stockholders if we issue shares of our Class A common stock, or units of Manning & Napier Group with exchange rights, in
connection with future acquisitions.

A portion of our separate account business, mutual funds, and collective investment trusts are distributed through intermediaries, platforms, and
consultants. Changes in key distribution relationships could reduce our revenues and adversely affect our profitability.
Given that a portion of our product offerings are distributed through intermediaries, platforms, and investment consultants, a share of our success is
dependent on access to these various distribution systems. These distributors are not contractually required to distribute or consider our products for
placement within advisory programs, on platforms’ approved lists, or in active searches conducted by investment consultants. Additionally, these
intermediaries typically offer their clients various investment products and services, in addition to and in competition with our products and services. If we are
unable to cultivate and build strong relationships within these distribution channels, the sales of our products could lead to a decline in revenues and
profitability. Additionally, increasing competition for these distribution channels could cause our distribution costs to rise, which could have an adverse effect
on our profitability.
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Our efforts to establish new portfolios or new products or services may be unsuccessful and could negatively impact our results of operations and our
reputation.
As part of our growth strategy, we may seek to take advantage of opportunities to develop new portfolios consistent with our philosophy of managing
portfolios to meet our clients’ objectives and using a team-based investment approach. The initial costs associated with establishing a new portfolio likely will
exceed the revenues that the portfolio generates. If any such new portfolio performs poorly or fails to attract sufficient assets to manage, our results of
operations could be negatively impacted. Further, a new portfolio’s poor performance may negatively impact our reputation and the reputation of our other
portfolios within the investment community. In addition, we have developed and may seek from time to time to develop new products and services to take
advantage of opportunities involving technology, insurance, participant and plan sponsor education and other products beyond investment management. The
development of these products and services could involve investment of financial and management resources and may not be successful in developing client
relationships, which could have an adverse effect on our business. The cost to develop these products initially will likely exceed the revenue they generate
and additional investment in these products could negatively impact short term financial results. If establishing new portfolios or offering new products or
services requires hiring new personnel, to the extent we are unable to recruit and retain sufficient personnel, we may not be successful in further diversifying
our portfolios, client assets and business, which could have an adverse effect on our business and future prospects.
Our failure to comply with investment guidelines set by our clients and limitations imposed by applicable law, could result in damage awards against us
and a loss of our AUM, either of which could adversely affect our reputation, results of operations or financial condition.
When clients retain us to manage assets on their behalf, they generally specify certain guidelines regarding investment allocation that we are required to
follow in managing their portfolios. We are also required to invest the mutual funds’ assets in accordance with limitations under the 1940 Act, and applicable
provisions of the IRC, as amended. Other clients, such as plans subject to ERISA, or non-U.S. funds, require us to invest their assets in accordance with
applicable law. Our failure to comply with any of these guidelines and other limitations could result in losses to clients or investors in our products which,
depending on the circumstances, could result in our obligation to make clients whole for such losses. If we believed that the circumstances did not justify a
reimbursement, or clients believed the reimbursement we offered was insufficient, clients could seek to recover damages from us, withdraw assets from our
products or terminate their investment management agreement with us. Any of these events could harm our reputation and adversely affect our business.
A change of control of our company could result in termination of our investment advisory agreements.
Under the 1940 Act, each of the investment advisory agreements for SEC registered mutual funds that our affiliate, MNA, advises automatically
terminates in the event of its assignment, as defined under the 1940 Act. If such an assignment were to occur, MNA could continue to act as adviser to any
such fund only if that fund’s board of directors and stockholders approved a new investment advisory agreement, except in the case of certain of the funds that
we sub-advise for which only board approval would be necessary. In addition, under the Advisers Act each of the investment advisory agreements for the
separate accounts we manage may not be assigned without the consent of the client. An assignment may occur under the 1940 Act and the Advisers Act if,
among other things, MNA undergoes a change of control. In certain other cases, the investment advisory agreements for the separate accounts we manage
require the consent of the client for any assignment. If such an assignment occurs, we cannot be certain that MNA will be able to obtain the necessary
approvals from the boards and stockholders of the mutual funds that it advises or the necessary consents from separate account clients.
Operational risks may disrupt our business, result in losses or limit our growth.
We are heavily dependent on the capacity and reliability of the communications, information and technology systems supporting our operations,
whether developed, owned and operated by us or by third parties. Operational risks such as trading or operational errors or interruption of our financial,
accounting, trading, compliance and other data processing systems, whether caused by fire, natural disaster or pandemic, power or telecommunications
failure, act of terrorism or war or otherwise, could result in a disruption of our business, liability to clients, regulatory intervention or reputational damage,
and thus adversely affect our business. Some types of operational risks, including, for example, trading errors, may be increased in periods of increased
volatility, which can magnify the cost of an error. Although we have back-up systems in place, our back-up procedures and capabilities in the event of a
failure or interruption may not be adequate, and the fact that we operate our business out of multiple physical locations may make such failures and
interruptions difficult to address on a timely and adequate basis.
Developing and maintaining our operational systems and infrastructure may become increasingly challenging, which could constrain our ability to
expand our business. Any upgrades or expansions to our operations or technology to accommodate increased volumes of transactions or otherwise will
require significant expenditures and may increase the probability that we will suffer system degradations and failures. In addition, our continued success
depends on our ability to effectively adopt new or adapt to existing technologies to meet client, industry, and regulatory demands. We might be required
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to make significant capital expenditures to maintain competitive infrastructure. If we are unable to upgrade our infrastructure in a timely fashion, we might
lose customers and fail to maintain regulatory compliance, which could affect our results of operations and severely damage our reputation.
We depend on our headquarters in Fairport, New York, where a majority of our employees, administration and technology resources are located, for the
continued operation of our business. Any significant disruption to our headquarters could have an adverse effect on our business.
Failure to implement effective information and cyber security policies, procedures and capabilities, or cyber security breaches of software applications
and other technologies on which we rely, could disrupt operations and cause financial losses that could result in a decrease in earnings and reputational
harm.
We are dependent on the effectiveness of our, and third party software vendors', information and cyber security policies, procedures and capabilities to
protect our computer and telecommunications systems and the data that reside on or are transmitted through them. As part of our normal operations, we
maintain and transmit confidential information about our clients and employees as well as proprietary information relating to our business operations. We
maintain a system of internal controls designed to provide reasonable assurance that fraudulent activity, including misappropriation of assets, fraudulent
financial reporting and unauthorized access to sensitive or confidential data is either prevented or detected on a timely basis. Nevertheless, all technology
systems remain vulnerable to unauthorized access and may be corrupted by cyberattacks, computer viruses or other malicious software code, the nature of
which threats are constantly evolving and becoming increasingly sophisticated. Breach or other failure of our technology systems, including those of third
parties with which we do business, or failure to timely and effectively identify and respond to any such breach or failure, could result in the loss of valuable
information, liability for stolen assets or information, remediation costs to repair damage caused by the incident, additional security costs to mitigate against
future incidents, increased insurance premiums, and litigation costs resulting from the incident. Moreover, loss of confidential customer information could
harm our reputation, result in the termination of contracts by our existing customers and subject us to liability under laws that protect confidential personal
data, resulting in increased costs or loss of revenues. Ultimately, a cyberattack can damage our competitiveness, stock price and long-term shareholder value.
Recent well-publicized security breaches at other companies have led to enhanced government and regulatory scrutiny of the measures taken by companies to
protect against cyberattacks, and may in the future result in heightened cybersecurity requirements, including additional regulatory expectations for oversight
of vendors and service providers.
We depend on third-party service providers for services that are important to our business, and an interruption or cessation of such services by any such
service providers could have an adverse effect on our business.
We depend on a number of service providers, including custodial and clearing firms, and vendors of communications and networking products and
services. We cannot assure that these providers will be able to continue to provide these services in an efficient manner or that they will be able to adequately
expand their services to meet our needs. An interruption or malfunction in or the cessation of an important service by any third-party and our inability to make
alternative arrangements in a timely manner, or at all, could have an adverse impact on our business, financial condition and operating results.
Employee misconduct could expose us to significant legal liability and reputational harm.
We operate in an industry in which integrity and the confidence of our clients are of critical importance. Accordingly, if any of our employees engage in
illegal or suspicious activities or other misconduct, we could be subject to regulatory sanctions and suffer serious harm to our reputation, financial condition,
client relationships and ability to attract new clients. For example, our business often requires that we deal with confidential information. If our employees
were to improperly use or disclose this information, even if inadvertently, we could suffer serious harm to our reputation, financial condition and current and
future business relationships. It is not always possible to deter employee misconduct, and the precautions we take to detect and prevent this activity may not
always be effective. Misconduct by our employees, or even unsubstantiated allegations of misconduct, could result in an adverse effect on our reputation and
our business.
Failure to properly address conflicts of interest could harm our reputation, business and results of operations.
We must monitor and address any conflicts between our interests and those of our clients. The SEC and other regulators scrutinize potential conflicts of
interest, and we have implemented procedures and controls that we believe are reasonably designed to address these issues. However, appropriately dealing
with conflicts of interest is complex, and if we fail, or appear to fail, to deal appropriately with conflicts of interest, we could face reputational damage,
litigation or regulatory proceedings or penalties, any of which could adversely affect our reputation, business and results of operations.
If our techniques for managing risk are ineffective, we may be exposed to material unanticipated losses.
In order to manage the significant risks inherent in our business, we must maintain effective policies, procedures and systems that enable us to identify,
monitor and control our exposure to operational, legal and reputational risks. Our risk
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management methods may prove to be ineffective due to their design or implementation, or as a result of the lack of adequate, accurate or timely information
or otherwise. If our risk management efforts are ineffective, we could suffer losses that could have an adverse effect on our financial condition or operating
results. Additionally, we could be subject to litigation, particularly from our clients, and sanctions or fines from regulators. Our techniques for managing risks
in client portfolios may not fully mitigate the risk exposure in all economic or market environments, or against all types of risk, including risks that we might
fail to identify or anticipate.
The cost of insuring our business is substantial and may increase.
While we carry insurance in amounts and under terms that we believe are appropriate, we cannot guarantee that our insurance will cover all liabilities
and losses to which we may be exposed or, if covered, that such liabilities and losses will not exceed the limits of available insurance coverage, or that our
insurers will remain solvent and meet their obligations. In addition, we cannot guarantee that our insurance policies will continue to be available at current
terms and fees.
We believe our insurance costs are reasonable but they could fluctuate significantly from year to year. In addition, certain insurance coverage may not
be available or may only be available at prohibitive costs. As we renew our insurance policies, we may be subject to additional costs resulting from rising
premiums, the assumption of higher deductibles or co-insurance liability and, to the extent certain of our mutual funds purchase separate director and officer
or errors and omissions liability coverage, an increased risk of insurance companies disputing responsibility for joint claims. Higher insurance costs and
incurred deductibles, as with any expense, would reduce our net income.
Risks Related to our Industry
We are subject to extensive regulation.
We are subject to extensive regulation for our investment management business and operations, including regulation by the SEC under the 1940 Act and
the Advisers Act, by the U.S. Department of Labor under ERISA, and by FINRA. The U.S. mutual funds we advise are registered with and regulated by the
SEC as investment companies under the 1940 Act. The Advisers Act imposes numerous obligations on investment advisers including record keeping,
advertising and operating requirements, disclosure obligations and prohibitions on fraudulent activities. The 1940 Act imposes similar obligations, as well as
additional detailed operational requirements, on registered investment companies, which must be adhered to by their investment advisers. The U.S. mutual
funds that we advise and our broker-dealer subsidiary are each subject to the USA PATRIOT Act of 2001, which requires them to know certain information
about their clients and to monitor their transactions for suspicious financial activities, including money laundering. The U.S. Office of Foreign Assets Control,
("OFAC"), has issued regulations requiring that we refrain from doing business, or allow our clients to do business through us, in certain countries or with
certain organizations or individuals on a list maintained by the U.S. government.
Our failure to comply with applicable laws or regulations could result in fines, censure, suspensions of personnel or other sanctions, including
revocation of our registration as an investment adviser. Even if a sanction imposed against us or our personnel is small in monetary amount, the adverse
publicity arising from the imposition of sanctions against us by regulators could harm our reputation, result in withdrawal by our clients from our products
and impede our ability to retain clients and develop new client relationships, which may reduce our revenues.
We face the risk of significant intervention by regulatory authorities, including extended investigation and surveillance activity, adoption of costly or
restrictive new regulations and judicial or administrative proceedings that may result in substantial penalties. Among other things, we could be fined or be
prohibited from engaging in some of our business activities. The requirements imposed by our regulators are designed to ensure the integrity of the financial
markets and to protect customers and other third parties who deal with us, and are not designed to protect our stockholders. Accordingly, these regulations
often serve to limit our activities, including through net capital, customer protection and market conduct requirements.
The regulatory environment in which we and our clients operate is subject to continual change, and regulatory developments designed to increase
oversight could adversely affect our business.
The legislative and regulatory environment in which we operate undergoes continuous change and we believe that this trend will intensify, subjecting
industry participants to additional, more costly and potentially more punitive regulation. New laws or regulations, or changes in the enforcement of existing
laws or regulations, applicable to us and our clients could adversely affect our business. Any or all of the regulators who oversee us could adopt new rules or
rule amendments that could substantially impact how we operate and may necessitate significant expenditures in order to adapt and comply.
Our ability to function in an uncertain and ever-changing regulatory environment will depend on our ability to constantly monitor and promptly react to
legislative and regulatory changes, which inevitably result in intangible costs and resource drains. The compliance burden resulting from regulatory changes
and uncertainty is likely to increase, particularly as regulators grow more technologically advanced and more reliant on data analytics. As a result, we may be
forced to divert resources and
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expenditures to information technology in order to analyze data and risk in the same manner as regulators and to be able to provide regulators with the data
output they may expect going forward.
Regulations may accelerate industry trends towards passive or lower cost investment options, centralized due diligence and shrinking platform ability,
making access to intermediary decision-makers more challenging. Mutual fund intermediaries may be forced to eliminate or curtail the availability of certain
mutual fund share classes, which may hamper our distribution efforts and reduce assets in the mutual fund. Similarly, platform consolidations may prevent
our separate account intermediaries from supporting our products, which could result in AUM declines and fewer distribution channels.
There have been a number of highly publicized regulatory inquiries that have focused on the investment management industry. These inquiries have
resulted in increased scrutiny of the industry and new rules and regulations for mutual funds and investment managers. This regulatory scrutiny may limit our
ability to engage in certain activities that might be beneficial to our shareholders. Further, adverse results of regulatory investigations of mutual fund,
investment advisory and financial services firms could tarnish the reputation of the financial services industry generally and mutual funds and investment
advisers more specifically, causing investors to avoid further fund investments or redeem their account balances. Redemptions would decrease our AUM,
which would reduce our advisory revenues and net income.
Further, due to acts of serious fraud in the investment management industry and perceived lapses in regulatory oversight, U.S. and non-U.S.
governmental and regulatory authorities may continue to increase regulatory oversight of our business.
The investment management industry is intensely competitive.
The investment management industry is intensely competitive, with competition based on a variety of factors, including investment performance,
investment management fee rates, recent trend towards favor for passive investment products, continuity of investment professionals and client relationships,
the quality of services provided to clients, corporate positioning and business reputation, continuity of selling arrangements with intermediaries and
differentiated products. A number of factors, including the following, serve to increase our competitive risks:
•

some competitors, including those with passive investment products and exchange traded funds, charge lower fees for their investment services
than we do;

•

a number of our competitors have greater financial, technical, marketing and other resources, more comprehensive name recognition and more
personnel than we do;

•

potential competitors have a relatively low cost of entering the investment management industry;

•

the recent trend toward consolidation in the investment management industry, and the securities business in general, has served to increase the size
and strength of a number of our competitors;

•

some investors may prefer to invest with an investment manager that is not publicly traded based on the perception that a publicly traded asset
manager may focus on the manager’s own growth to the detriment of investment performance for clients;

•

some competitors may invest according to different investment styles or in alternative asset classes that the markets may perceive as more
attractive than the portfolios we offer;

•

some competitors may have more attractive investment returns;

•

some competitors may operate in a different regulatory environment than we do, which may give them certain competitive advantages in the
investment products and portfolio structures that they offer; and

•

other industry participants, hedge funds and alternative asset managers may seek to recruit our investment professionals.

If we are unable to compete effectively, our revenues could be reduced and our business could be adversely affected.
The investment management industry faces substantial litigation risks, which could adversely affect our business, financial condition or results of
operations or cause significant reputational harm to us.
We depend to a large extent on our network of relationships and on our reputation to attract and retain client assets. If a client is not satisfied with our
services, its dissatisfaction may be more damaging to our business than client dissatisfaction would be to other types of businesses. We make investment
decisions on behalf of our clients that could result in substantial losses to them. If our clients suffer significant losses, or are otherwise dissatisfied with our
services, we could be subject to the risk of legal liabilities or actions alleging negligent misconduct, breach of fiduciary duty, breach of contract, unjust
enrichment and/or fraud. These risks are often difficult to assess or quantify and their existence and magnitude often remain unknown for substantial periods
of time, even after an action has been commenced. We may incur significant legal expenses in defending against litigation whether or not we engaged in
conduct as a result of which we might be subject to legal liability. Substantial
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legal liability or significant regulatory action against us could adversely affect our business, financial condition or results of operations or cause significant
reputational harm to us.
Catastrophic and unpredictable events could have an adverse effect on our business.
A terrorist attack, war, power failure, cyber-attack, natural disaster or other catastrophic or unpredictable event could adversely affect our future
revenues, expenses and earnings by:
•
•
•
•
•
•

decreasing investment valuations in, and returns on, the assets that we manage;
causing disruptions in national or global economies that decrease investor confidence and make investment products generally less attractive;
interrupting our normal business operations;
sustaining employee casualties, including loss of our key members of our senior management team or our investment team;
requiring substantial expenditures and expenses to repair, replace and restore normal business operations; and
reducing investor confidence.

We have a disaster recovery plan to address certain contingencies, but we cannot be assured that this plan will be sufficient in responding or
ameliorating the effects of all disaster scenarios. If our employees or the vendors we rely upon for support in a catastrophic event are unable to respond
adequately or in a timely manner, we may lose clients resulting in a decrease in AUM which may have an adverse effect on revenues and net income.
Risks Related to Our Structure
William Manning and our current and former employee owners, beneficially own approximately 82% of Manning & Napier Group as of December 31,
2018, which may give rise to conflicts of interest; failure to properly address these or other conflicts of interests could harm our reputation, business and
results of operations.
Our current and former employee owners, including William Manning, directly and through their ownership of M&N Group Holdings ("M&N Group
Holdings") and Manning & Napier Capital Company, LLC ("MNCC"), indirectly hold approximately 82% of the ownership interests in Manning & Napier
Group as of December 31, 2018 which, as discussed elsewhere, is our sole source of revenue. M&N Group Holdings and MNCC are entities controlled by
William Manning, who, through his ownership indirectly owns a total of approximately 77% of the ownership interests in Manning & Napier Group. All of
the other owners of interests in M&N Group Holdings and MNCC are current or former management team members of ours. Through William Manning and
our current and former employee owners' economic interest, they may receive payments from Manning & Napier under the tax receivable agreement ("TRA")
entered into with them at the time of the reorganization transactions and the proceeds they may receive as a result of M&N Group Holdings and MNCC
exchanging the interests attributable to them in Manning & Napier Group for cash or, at our election, shares of our Class A common stock and, in the case of
exchanges for shares of our Class A common stock, from selling such Class A common stock. As a result, William Manning and our current and former
employee owners' economic interests may conflict with the interests of Manning & Napier and its public stockholders.
Further, such owners have the right to cause M&N Group Holdings and MNCC to exchange their indirect interests in Manning & Napier Group for
cash or shares of our Class A common stock. If they exercise this right in sufficient amounts, receive shares of our Class A common stock and do not resell
such shares, these owners may control us.
The interests of these owners may conflict with our interests and the interests of the holders of our Class A common stock. Decisions of these owners,
including William Manning, our Chairman, with respect to Manning & Napier Group, including those relating to the tax receivable agreement, the exchange
agreement and the structuring of future transactions, may take into consideration these owners’ tax or other considerations even where no similar benefit
would accrue to us or the holders of our Class A common stock.
Our ability to pay regular dividends to our stockholders is subject to the discretion of our board of directors and may be limited by our structure and
applicable provisions of Delaware law.
We have historically declared cash dividends on our Class A common stock, however, our board of directors may, in its sole discretion, change the
amount or frequency of dividends or discontinue the payment of dividends entirely. In addition, because of our structure, we will be dependent upon the
ability of our subsidiaries to generate earnings and cash flows and distribute them to us so that we may pay dividends to our stockholders. We expect to cause
Manning & Napier Group to make distributions to its members, including us, in an amount sufficient for us to pay dividends, if any. However, its ability to
make such distributions will be subject to its and its subsidiaries’ operating results, cash requirements and financial condition, the applicable laws of the State
of Delaware, which may limit the amount of funds available for distribution, and its compliance with covenants and financial ratios related to any
indebtedness it may incur in the future. In addition, as described elsewhere, under the terms of its operating agreement, Manning & Napier Group is obligated
to make tax distributions to holders of its
16

units, including us. As a consequence of these various limitations and restrictions, we may not be able to make, or may have to reduce or eliminate, the
payment of dividends on our Class A common stock. Any change in the level of our dividends or the suspension of the payment thereof could adversely affect
the market price of our Class A common stock.
We depend on distributions from Manning & Napier Group to pay taxes and expenses, including payments under the tax receivable agreement, but
Manning & Napier Group’s ability to make such distributions will be subject to various limitations and restrictions.
We have no material assets other than our ownership of Class A units of Manning & Napier Group and have no independent means of generating
revenue. Manning & Napier Group is treated as a partnership for U.S. federal income tax purposes and, as such, is not subject to U.S. federal income tax.
Instead, taxable income is allocated to holders of its units, including us. Accordingly, we incur income taxes on our allocable share of any net taxable income
of Manning & Napier Group. Under the terms of its operating agreement, Manning & Napier Group is obligated to make tax distributions to holders of its
units, including us. In addition to tax expenses, we also incur expenses related to our operations, including expenses under the tax receivable agreement,
which we expect to be significant. We intend, as its managing member, to cause Manning & Napier Group to make distributions in an amount sufficient to
allow us to pay our taxes and operating expenses, including any payments due under the tax receivable agreement. However, Manning & Napier Group’s
ability to make such distributions is subject to various limitations and restrictions including, but not limited to, restrictions on distributions that would violate
any contract or agreement to which Manning & Napier Group is then a party or any applicable law or that would have the effect of rendering Manning &
Napier Group insolvent. If we do not have sufficient funds to pay tax or other liabilities to fund our operations, we may have to borrow funds, which could
adversely affect our liquidity and financial condition and subject us to various restrictions imposed by any such lenders.
Furthermore, by paying cash distributions rather than investing in our business, we might not have sufficient cash to fund operations or new growth
initiatives that will support the growth of our business.
We are required to pay holders of units of Manning & Napier Group for certain tax benefits we may claim as a result of the tax basis step up we realize in
connection with the future purchases or exchanges of those units for shares of our Class A common stock, and the amounts we may pay could be
significant.
Our current and former employee owners indirectly hold a substantial majority of the ownership interests in Manning & Napier Group. Any future
purchases or exchanges of their units of Manning & Napier Group for cash or, at our election, shares of our Class A common stock are expected to produce
favorable tax attributes for us. When we acquire such units, both the existing basis and the anticipated basis adjustments are likely to increase, for tax
purposes, depreciation and amortization deductions allocable to us from Manning & Napier Group and therefore reduce the amount of income tax we would
otherwise be required to pay in the future. This increase in tax basis may also decrease gain, or increase loss, on future dispositions of certain capital assets to
the extent the increased tax basis is allocated to those capital assets.
We entered into a tax receivable agreement with the other holders of Class A units of Manning & Napier Group, pursuant to which we are required to
pay to holders of such Class A units 85% of the applicable cash savings, if any, in U.S. federal, state, local and foreign income tax that we actually realize, or
are deemed to realize in certain circumstances, as a result of any step-up in tax basis in Manning & Napier Group’s assets as a result of (i) certain tax
attributes of our purchase of such Class A units or exchanges (for shares of Class A common stock) and that are created as a result of the sales or exchanges
and payments under the tax receivable agreement and (ii) payments under the tax receivable agreement, including any tax benefits related to imputed interest
deemed to be paid by us as a result of such agreement.
We expect that the payments we will be required to make under the tax receivable agreement will be substantial. We have recorded the estimated
impacts of the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act ("U.S. tax reform") on the liability under the tax receivable agreement. Assuming no new material changes in the
relevant tax law, the purchase or exchange of Class A units would result in depreciable or amortizable basis and that we earn sufficient taxable income to
realize all tax benefits that are subject to the tax receivable agreement, we expect that the reduction in tax payments for us is approximately $19.4 million as
of December 31, 2018. Under such scenario, we would be required to pay the holders of such Class A units 85% of such amount, or approximately $18.0
million. The actual amounts may materially differ from these estimated amounts, as potential future reductions in tax payments for us and tax receivable
agreement payments by us will be calculated using the market value of our Class A common stock and the prevailing tax rates at the time of purchase or
exchange and will be dependent on us generating sufficient future taxable income to realize the benefit. In general, increases in the market value of our shares
or in prevailing tax rates will increase the amounts we pay under the tax receivable agreement.
The actual increase in tax basis, as well as the amount and timing of any payments under the tax receivable agreement, will vary depending upon a
number of factors, including:
•

the timing of exchanges by the holders of units of Manning & Napier Group, the number of units purchased or exchanged, or the price of our
Class A common stock, as the case may be, at the time of the purchase or exchange;
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•

the amount and timing of the taxable income we generate in the future and the tax rate then applicable; and

•

the portion of our payments under the tax receivable agreement constituting imputed interest and whether the purchases or exchanges result in
depreciable or amortizable basis.

There is a possibility that not all of the 85% of the applicable cash savings will be paid to the selling or exchanging holder of Class A units at the time
described above. If we determine that all or a portion of such applicable tax savings is in doubt, we will pay to the holders of such Class A units the amount
attributable to the portion of the applicable tax savings that we determine is not in doubt and pay the remainder at such time as we determine the actual tax
savings or that the amount is no longer in doubt.
Payments under the tax receivable agreement, if any, will be made pro rata among all tax receivable agreement holders entitled to payments on an
annual basis to the extent we have sufficient taxable income to utilize the increased depreciation and amortization expense. The availability of sufficient
taxable income to utilize the increased depreciation and amortization expense will not be determined until such time as the financial results for the year in
question are known and tax estimates prepared. To the extent that we are unable to make payments under the tax receivable agreement for any reason, such
payments will be deferred and will accrue interest until paid.
In certain cases, payments under the tax receivable agreement to holders of Manning & Napier Group units may be accelerated and/or significantly
exceed the actual benefits we realize in respect of the tax attributes subject to the tax receivable agreement.
The tax receivable agreement provides that upon certain mergers, asset sales, other forms of business combinations or other changes of control, or if, at
any time, we elect an early termination of the tax receivable agreement, our obligations under the tax receivable agreement with respect to all Class A units of
Manning & Napier Group, whether or not such units have been purchased or exchanged before or after such transaction, would be based on certain
assumptions, including that we would have sufficient taxable income to fully utilize the deductions arising from the increased tax deductions and tax basis
and other benefits related to entering into the tax receivable agreement. As a result, (i) we could be required to make payments under the tax receivable
agreement that are greater than or less than the specified percentage of the actual benefits we realize in respect of the tax attributes subject to the tax
receivable agreement and (ii) if we elect to terminate the tax receivable agreement early, we would be required to make an immediate payment equal to the
present value of the anticipated future tax benefits, which payment may be made significantly in advance of the actual realization of such future benefits. In
these situations, our obligations under the tax receivable agreement could have a substantial negative impact on our liquidity and could have the effect of
delaying, deferring or preventing certain mergers, asset sales, other forms of business combinations or other changes of control. There can be no assurance
that we will be able to finance our obligations under the tax receivable agreement. If we were to elect to terminate the tax receivable agreement immediately
as of December 31, 2018, we estimate that we would be required to pay up to approximately $22.4 million in the aggregate, which assumes the exchange of
63,349,721 units of Manning & Napier Group held by those other than us under the tax receivable agreement.
If we were deemed an investment company under the 1940 Act as a result of our ownership of Manning & Napier Group, applicable restrictions could
make it impractical for us to continue our business as contemplated and could have an adverse effect on our business.
We do not believe that we are an “investment company” under the 1940 Act. Because we, as the sole managing member of Manning & Napier Group,
control the management of and operations of Manning & Napier Group, we believe that our interest in Manning & Napier Group is not an “investment
security” as such term is used in the 1940 Act. If we were to cease participation in the management of Manning & Napier Group or not be deemed to control
Manning & Napier Group, our interest in Manning & Napier Group could be deemed an “investment security” for purposes of the 1940 Act. A person may be
an “investment company” if it owns investment securities having a value exceeding 40% of the value of its total assets (exclusive of U.S. government
securities and cash items). Our sole asset is our equity investment in Manning & Napier Group. A determination that such investment is an investment
security could cause us to be deemed an investment company under the 1940 Act and to become subject to the registration and other requirements of the 1940
Act. In addition, we do not believe that we are an investment company under Section 3(b)(1) of the 1940 Act because we are not primarily engaged in a
business that causes us to fall within the definition of “investment company.” The 1940 Act and the rules thereunder contain detailed prescriptions for the
organization and operations of investment companies. Among other things, the 1940 Act and the rules thereunder limit or prohibit transactions with affiliates,
impose limitations on the issuance of debt and equity securities, prohibit the issuance of stock options, and impose certain governance requirements. We and
Manning & Napier Group intend to conduct our operations so that we will not be deemed an investment company. However, if we nevertheless were to be
deemed an investment company, restrictions imposed by the 1940 Act, including limitations on our capital structure and our ability to transact with affiliates,
could make it impractical for us to continue our business as contemplated and could have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of
operations.
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Risks Related to Our Class A Common Stock
The market price and trading volume of our Class A common stock may be volatile, which could result in rapid and substantial losses for our
stockholders.
The market price of our Class A common stock may be highly volatile and could be subject to wide fluctuations. In addition, the trading volume of our
Class A common stock may fluctuate and cause significant price variations to occur. If the market price of our Class A common stock declines significantly,
investors may be unable to sell shares of Class A common stock at or above their purchase price, if at all. The market price of our Class A common stock may
fluctuate or decline significantly in the future. Some of the factors that could negatively affect the price of our Class A common stock, or result in fluctuations
in the price or trading volume of our Class A common stock, include:
•

actual or anticipated variations in our quarterly operating results;

•

failure to meet the market’s earnings expectations;

•

publication of negative research reports about us or the investment management industry, or the failure of securities analysts to cover our Class A
common stock;

•

a limited float and low average daily trading volume, which may result in illiquidity as investors try to buy and sell and thereby exacerbating
positive or negative pressure on our stock;

•

departures of any members of our senior management team or additions or departures of other key personnel;

•

adverse market reaction to any indebtedness we may incur or securities we may issue in the future;

•

changes in market valuations of similar companies;

•

actual or anticipated poor performance in one or more of the portfolios we offer;

•

changes or proposed changes in laws or regulations, or differing interpretations thereof, affecting our business, or enforcement of these laws and
regulations, or announcements relating to these matters;

•

adverse publicity about the investment management industry generally, or particular scandals, specifically;

•

litigation and governmental investigations;

•

consummation by us or our competitors of significant acquisitions, strategic partnerships or divestitures;

•

actions by stockholders;

•

exchange of units of Manning & Napier Group for shares of our Class A common stock or the expectation that such conversions or exchanges may
occur; and

•

general market and economic conditions.

William Manning and our other owners directly and indirectly own interests in M&N Group Holdings and directly own interests in MNCC, and they will
have the right to exchange and cause M&N Group Holdings and MNCC to exchange, as applicable, such interests for cash or an aggregate of 63,349,721
shares of our Class A common stock as of December 31, 2018, pursuant to the terms of an exchange agreement; future sales of such shares in the public
market, or the perception that such sales may occur, could lower our stock price.
The market price of our Class A common stock could decline as a result of sales of a large number of shares of our Class A common stock available for
sale, or the perception that such sales could occur. These sales, or the possibility that these sales may occur, also may make it more difficult for us to raise
additional capital by selling equity securities in the future, at a time and price that we deem appropriate.
We have 15,310,958 shares of Class A common stock outstanding as of December 31, 2018. We have entered into an exchange agreement with M&N
Group Holding and MNCC, the other direct holders of all of the units of Manning & Napier Group that are not held by the Company and, subject to certain
restrictions, are entitled to exchange such units for an aggregate of up to 63,349,721 shares of our Class A common stock as of December 31, 2018, subject to
customary adjustments. In addition, the holders of any units of Manning & Napier Group will also become parties to the exchange agreement and, pursuant to
the terms of the exchange agreement, we may also purchase or exchange such units for shares of our Class A common stock. We are party to a registration
rights agreement pursuant to which the shares of Class A common stock issued upon such exchanges are eligible for resale, subject to certain limitations set
forth therein.
We cannot predict the size of future issuances of our Class A common stock or the effect, if any, that future issuances and sales of shares of our Class A
common stock may have on the market price of our Class A common stock. Sales or distributions
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of substantial amounts of our Class A common stock, including shares issued in connection with an acquisition, or the perception that such sales or
distributions could occur, may cause the market price of our Class A common stock to decline.
Our Class A common stockholders may experience dilution in the future as a result of the issuance of Class A common stock or units of Manning &
Napier Group in connection with future acquisitions and/or equity grants under our 2011 Equity Compensation Plan.
We may issue shares of our Class A common stock or units of Manning & Napier Group in connection with future acquisitions or grants under the
Manning & Napier 2011 Equity Compensation Plan (the "2011 Plan"). If we grant exchange rights with respect to the issuance of the units of Manning &
Napier Group that allow its holder to exchange such units for shares of our Class A common stock, stockholders will incur dilution in the percentage of the
issued and outstanding shares of Class A common stock that are owned at such time.
If we fail to comply with our public company financial reporting and other regulatory obligations, including the Continued Listing Criteria of the New
York Stock Exchange, our business and stock price could be adversely affected.
We are subject to the Continued Listing Criteria of the New York Stock Exchange (“NYSE”). In order for our Class A common stock to continue
trading on the NYSE, we must maintain certain share prices, numbers of shareholders and corporate governance standards, including obtaining the approval
of our shareholders prior to issuing shares in excess of 20% of the voting power outstanding before that issuance. If we are unable to meet any of these
standards, our Class A common stock may no longer trade on the NYSE, which would adversely impact the trading market for our shares and liquidity for our
shareholders and may adversely impact our business. Specifically, in the event that our stock price falls below the minimum share price, we may fall out of
compliance with the NYSE listing standards and to regain compliance we may be forced to take corporate actions, such as a reverse stock split, to regain
compliance, which may adversely impact the trading market for our shares and liquidity. Additionally, if the holders of units of Manning & Napier Group
exercise their rights under our exchange agreement with M&N Group Holdings and MNCC, we would be required to issue up to 63,349,721 shares of our
Class A common stock to those holders if we were unable to pay them in cash. We believe that prior shareholder approval for such a transaction was obtained
at the time of our initial public offering. If the NYSE disagrees with our analysis, the NYSE may seek to discontinue trading of Our Class A common stock.
As a public company, we are subject to the reporting requirements of the Exchange Act, have implemented specific corporate governance practices and
adhere to a variety of reporting requirements under the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and the related rules and regulations of the SEC, as well as the rules of
the NYSE.
Our management is required to conduct an annual assessment of the effectiveness of our internal controls over financial reporting and include a report
on our internal controls in our annual reports on Form 10-K pursuant to Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. If our management identifies one or
more material weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting, we will be unable to assert that our internal control over financial reporting is
effective. If we are unable to assert that our internal control over financial reporting is effective, market perception of our financial condition and the trading
price of our stock may be adversely affected and customer perception of our business may suffer.
Our corporate documents and Delaware law contain provisions that could discourage, delay or prevent a change in control of the Company.
Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation and amended and restated bylaws contain provisions that may make the acquisition of our
company more difficult. These provisions:
•

authorize the issuance of undesignated preferred stock, the terms of which may be established and the shares of which may be issued without
stockholder approval, and which may include super voting, special approval, dividend, or other rights or preferences superior to the rights of the
holders of our Class A common stock;

•

prohibit stockholder action by written consent and instead require all stockholder actions to be taken at a meeting of our stockholders;

•

provide that the board of directors is expressly authorized to make, alter, or repeal our amended and restated bylaws; and

•

establish advance notice requirements for nominations for elections to our board of directors or for proposing matters that can be acted upon by
stockholders at stockholder meetings.

These anti-takeover provisions and other provisions under Delaware law could discourage, delay or prevent a transaction involving a change in control
of our company, even if doing so would benefit the holders of our Class A common stock.
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Any issuance of preferred stock could make it difficult for another company to acquire us or could otherwise adversely affect holders of our Class A
common stock, which could depress the price of our Class A common stock.
Our board of directors has the authority to issue preferred stock and to determine the preferences, limitations and relative rights of shares of preferred
stock and to fix the number of shares constituting any series and the designation of such series, without any further vote or action by our stockholders. Our
preferred stock could be issued with voting, liquidation, dividend and other rights superior to the rights of our Class A common stock. The potential issuance
of preferred stock may delay or prevent a change in control of us, discouraging bids for our Class A common stock at a premium over the market price, and
adversely affect the market price and the voting and other rights of the holders of our Class A common stock.
If securities or industry analysts do not publish research or publish inaccurate or unfavorable research about our business, our stock price and trading
volume could decline.
The trading market for our Class A common stock depends in part on the research and reports that securities or industry analysts publish about us or our
business. If one or more of the analysts who covers us downgrades our stock or publishes inaccurate or unfavorable research about our business, our stock
price would likely decline. If one or more of these analysts ceases coverage of us or fails to publish reports on us regularly, demand for our stock could
decrease, which could cause our stock price and trading volume to decline.
Item 1B.

Unresolved Staff Comments.

None.
Item 2.

Properties.

We conduct our principal operations through leased offices located in Fairport, New York; St. Petersburg, Florida; Dublin, Ohio; Seattle, Washington;
and Portsmouth, New Hampshire. We also lease office space in various other locations throughout the United States. We do not own any facilities. Most of
our business operations are based in our corporate headquarters in Fairport.
We believe our properties are in good operating condition and adequately serve our current business operations. We also anticipate suitable additional
or alternative space will be available at commercially reasonable terms for future expansion and to replace existing facilities at lease terminations to the extent
necessary.
Item 3.

Legal Proceedings.

As an investment adviser to a variety of investment products, we are subject to routine reviews and inspections by the SEC and FINRA. From time to
time we may also be involved in various legal proceedings arising in the ordinary course of our business. We do not believe that the outcome of any of these
reviews, inspections or other legal proceedings will have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements; however, litigation is subject to many
uncertainties, and the outcome of individual litigated matters is not predictable with assurance.
Item 4.

Mine Safety Disclosures.

Not applicable.
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PART II
Item 5.

Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases and Equity Securities.

Market for the Registrant’s Common Equity
Our Class A common stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol “MN”. Our Class B common stock is not listed on the New
York Stock Exchange or any other exchange and there is no established trading market for such shares.
Holders
As of March 20, 2019 there were 35 holders of record of our Class A common stock. A substantial number of holders of our Class A common stock are
held in “street name” and thereby held of record by depositories, banks, brokers, and other financial institutions.
Dividends
We have historically paid quarterly cash dividends on our Class A common stock. We have funded such dividends and we believe any future dividends
would be funded from our portion of distributions made by Manning & Napier Group, from its available cash generated from operations.
Distributions to members upon a liquidation of Manning & Napier Group or a capital transaction, such as a sale of all or substantially all of its assets or
any financing or refinancing of all or substantially all of its assets or debt, generally will be made to its members pro rata in proportion to their capital account
balances, subject to the claims of creditors.
The declaration and payment of all future dividends, if any, will be at the sole discretion of our board of directors. In determining the amount of any
future dividends, our board of directors will take into account:
•

the financial results of Manning & Napier Group;

•

our available cash, as well as anticipated cash requirements, including any debt servicing and payments required under the tax receivable agreement;

•

our capital requirements and the capital requirements of our subsidiaries, including Manning & Napier Group;

•

contractual, legal, tax and regulatory restrictions on, and implications of, the payment of dividends by us to our stockholders or by Manning &
Napier Group to us, including the obligation of Manning & Napier Group to make tax distributions to its unitholders, including us;

•

general economic and business conditions; and

•

any other factors that our board of directors may deem relevant.

We have no material assets other than our ownership of Class A units of Manning & Napier Group and, accordingly, will depend on distributions from
Manning & Napier Group to fund any dividends we may pay. As managing member of Manning & Napier Group, we will determine the timing and amount
of any distributions to be paid to its members. We intend to cause Manning & Napier Group to distribute cash to its members, including us, in an amount
sufficient to cover dividends, if any, declared by us. If we do cause Manning & Napier Group to make such distributions, M&N Group Holdings, MNCC and
any other holders of units of Manning & Napier Group will be entitled to receive equivalent distributions on a pari passu basis.
Our dividend policy has certain risks and limitations, particularly with respect to liquidity. Although we expect to pay dividends according to our
dividend policy, we may not pay dividends according to our policy, or at all, if, among other things, Manning & Napier Group is unable to make distributions
to us as a result of its operating results, cash requirements and financial condition, its making certain mandatory distributions to its members relating to their
income tax liability, the applicable laws of the State of Delaware, which may limit the amount of funds available for distribution, and its compliance with
covenants and financial ratios related to any indebtedness it may incur in the future. See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations—Liquidity and Capital Resources.”
We are taxable as a corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes and therefore holders of our Class A common stock will not be taxed directly on
our earnings. Distributions of cash or other property that we pay to our stockholders will constitute dividends for U.S. federal income tax purposes to the
extent paid from our current or accumulated earnings and profits, as determined under U.S. federal income tax rules. If the amount of a distribution by us to
our stockholders exceeds our current and accumulated earnings and profits, such excess will be treated first as a tax-free return of capital to the extent of a
holder’s adjusted tax basis in the Class A common stock and thereafter as capital gain.
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Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities
There were no sales of unregistered securities during the year ended December 31, 2018.
Item 6.

Selected Financial Data.

Not applicable.
Item 7.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

Overview
Our Business
We are an independent investment management firm that provides a broad range of financial solutions and consultative services. Founded in 1970, we
offer U.S. and non-U.S equity, fixed income, and multi-asset class strategies, including fundamental- and quantitatively-based portfolios. We serve a
diversified client base of high-net-worth individuals and institutions, including 401(k) plans, pension plans, Taft-Hartley plans, platforms, endowments and
foundations. Our operations are based principally in the United States, with our headquarters located in Fairport, New York.
Market Developments
The investment environment witnessed over the length of 2018 was marked by the return of volatility. Beginning with the sharp but short lived sell off
of late-January and early-February, and ending during the fourth quarter with the most significant drawdown since the global financial crisis, markets were far
more volatile in 2018 than investors had come to expect.
Although painful at the time, volatile markets often provide a potential opportunity for investment managers that take an active approach. During the
second half of 2018 our top-down, bottom-up, and quantitative investment processes led us to the view that the outlook for both equities and fixed income
was deteriorating across global financial markets. In the fourth quarter, this outlook manifested in a more conservative positioning across our portfolios.
Nevertheless, today's financial markets are highly dynamic, and our active investment processes will continue to dictate appropriate positioning as the
investment backdrop evolves.
Business Review
During 2018, we initiated a comprehensive business plan review in response to decreases in AUM and revenue. The goal of the business plan review
was to strengthen our core business, improve profitability, and manage expenses, while prioritizing initiatives that we believe will support future AUM
growth. Our sales and service teams have prioritized our most competitive strategies and service standards with existing client relationships. With an initial
focus on expense management, we have reviewed operating expenses across our firm and made adjustments where feasible, including workforce reductions.
During the second quarter of 2018, we commenced a voluntary employee retirement offering (the "offering") for employees meeting certain age and lengthof-service requirements, and whose function was outside of our Research and Sales teams. Under this initiative, coupled with additional workforce
reductions, we recognized approximately $3.7 million in severance charges during 2018. Ongoing savings achieved from these expense management
initiatives will be redirected toward increased investment in our information technology infrastructure. We anticipate that our other operating costs as a
percentage of revenue will remain elevated in the near term compared to prior periods.
During the first quarter of 2019, we completed the effort of restructuring fees across our mutual fund product set that began in 2017. Given the overall
pressure on fees that all active managers are facing, we believe that bringing our fund fees to a more competitive level will enhance our ability to attract
additional assets in the future. The financial impacts will include a reduction in the management fees on our existing business, as well as an offsetting
reduction in related operating expenses.
Additionally, we continue to promote our holistic consultative services, which we believe further enhance the value we deliver to clients. By
incorporating a number of different proprietary and non-proprietary products from multiple research engines, we are able to provide a differentiated and
comprehensive investment solution. This tailored approach extends into our advisory services, including our Family Wealth Management, Endowment &
Foundation, and Pension Plan Service offerings.
Our Solutions
We derive substantially all of our revenues from investment management fees earned from providing advisory services to separately managed accounts,
mutual funds and collective investment trusts—including those offered by Manning & Napier Advisors, LLC ("MNA"), the Manning & Napier Fund, Inc.
(the "Fund"), Exeter Trust Company, and Rainier Investment Management.
Our separate accounts are primarily distributed through our direct sales channel, where our client consultants form relationships with high-net-worth
individuals, middle market institutions or large institutions that are working with a consultant. To a lesser extent, we also obtain a portion of our separate
account distribution via third parties, either through our intermediary sales channel where national brokerage firm representatives or independent financial
advisors select our separate account strategies for their clients, or through our platform/sub-advisor channel, where unaffiliated registered investment advisors
approve our strategies for their product platforms. Our separate account strategies are a primary driver of our blended
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asset portfolios for high-net-worth, middle market institutional clients and financial intermediaries. In contrast, larger institutions and unaffiliated registered
investment advisor platforms are a driver of our separate account equity portfolios.
Our mutual funds and collective investment trusts are distributed through financial intermediaries, including brokers, financial advisors, retirement
plan advisors and platform relationships. We also distribute our mutual fund and collective investment trusts through our direct sales representatives,
particularly within the defined contribution and institutional marketplace. Our mutual fund and collective investment trust strategies are an important driver
of both our blended asset class and single asset class portfolios.
Our assets under management ("AUM") were $20.2 billion as of December 31, 2018. The composition of our AUM by vehicle and portfolio is set forth
in the table below:
December 31, 2018
Blended
Asset

AUM - by investment vehicle and portfolio:

Fixed
Income

Equity

Total

(in millions)

Separately managed accounts

$

9,059.6

Mutual funds and collective investment trusts

$

3,704.3

4,472.6

Total

$

$

1,028.2

1,797.6

13,532.2

$

$

101.3

5,501.9

$

1,129.5

13,792.1
6,371.5

$

20,163.6

Separately Managed Accounts
The composition of our separately managed accounts as of December 31, 2018, by channel and portfolio, is set forth in the table below:
December 31, 2018
Blended
Asset

Fixed
Income

Equity

Total

(dollars in millions)

Separate account AUM
Direct Channel

$

Intermediary Channel

6,901.1

Platform/Sub-advisor Channel
Total

$

2,147.8
9,059.6

$

501.5

10.7
$

2,369.4

3,704.3

$

116.0

833.4
$

912.2

2,765.3

—
$

1,028.2

10,182.7
844.1

$

13,792.1

Percentage of separate account AUM
Direct Channel

50%

17%

Intermediary Channel

15%

4%

0%

6%

65%

27%

8%

100%

Direct Channel

76%

64%

89%

74%

Intermediary Channel

24%

14%

11%

20%

Platform/Sub-advisor Channel
Total

7%

74%

1%

20%

—

6%

Percentage of portfolio by channel

Platform/Sub-advisor Channel

0%

22%

—

100%

100%

100%

100%

Direct Channel

68%

23%

9%

100%

Intermediary Channel

78%

18%

4%

100%

1%

99%

Total

6%

Percentage of channel by portfolio

Platform/Sub-advisor Channel

—

100%

Our separate accounts contributed 45% of our total gross client inflows for the year ended December 31, 2018 and represented 68% of our total AUM
as of December 31, 2018.
Our separate account business has historically been driven by our direct sales channel. The direct sales channel contributed 67% of the total gross client
inflows for our separate account business for the year ended December 31, 2018, compared to 65% for the year ended December 31, 2017. The direct sales
channel represented 74% of our total separate
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account AUM as of December 31, 2018. We anticipate this channel to continue to be the largest driver of new separate account business going forward, given
their high-net-worth and middle market institutional client-type focus.
During 2018, the blended asset portfolios represented 70% of the separate account gross client inflows from the direct sales channel, while equity and
fixed income portfolios accounted for 18% and 12%, respectively. As of December 31, 2018, blended asset and equity portfolios represented 68% and 23% of
total direct sales channel separate account AUM, while our fixed income portfolios were 9%. We expect our focus on individuals and middle market
institutions to continue to drive interest in our separately managed account investment strategies.
To a lesser extent, we also obtain separate account business from third parties, including financial advisors or unaffiliated registered investment advisor
programs or platforms. During 2018, 15% of the total gross client inflows for separate accounts came from financial advisor representatives (intermediary
sales channel), and an additional 18% came from registered investment advisor platforms (platform/sub-advisor sales channel). The intermediary and
platform/sub-advisor channels represented 26% of our total separate account AUM as of December 31, 2018.
New separate account business through the intermediary sales channel flowed into both our blended asset and equity portfolios. During 2018, blended
asset and equity portfolios represented 75% and 23%, respectively, of the separate account gross client inflows from this channel, while fixed income
portfolios represented 2%. As of December 31, 2018, 78% of our separate account AUM derived from financial advisors was allocated to blended asset
portfolios, with 18% allocated to equity and 4% allocated to fixed income. Our equity, fixed income, and specialized strategies may see additional interest
from financial advisors over time as more advisors structure multi-asset class portfolios for their clients.
During the year ended December 31, 2018, substantially all of our separate account gross client inflows from the platform/sub-advisory channel were
into equity portfolios. Gross client inflows through the platform/sub-advisory channel are primarily directed to our single asset-class strategies, where we are
filling a specific mandate within the investment program or platform product.
Our annualized separate account retention rate across all channels was approximately 86% during 2018, an increase from our historical retention rate,
which was 80% for 2017.
Mutual Funds and Collective Investment Trusts
The composition of our mutual fund and collective investment trust AUM as of December 31, 2018, by portfolio, is set forth in the table below:
December 31, 2018
Blended
Asset

Fixed
Income

Equity

Total

(in millions)

Mutual funds and collective investment trusts AUM

$

4,472.6

$

1,797.6

$

101.3

$

6,371.5

Our mutual funds and collective investment trusts contributed 55% of our total gross client inflows for the year ended December 31, 2018 and
represented 32% of our total AUM as of December 31, 2018. As of December 31, 2018, our mutual funds and collective investment trust AUM consisted of
70% from blended asset portfolios, 28% from equity portfolios and 2% from fixed income portfolios, compared to 63%, 36% and 1% for blended asset,
equity and fixed income portfolios as of December 31, 2017. During the twelve months ended December 31, 2018, 53%, 44%, and 3% of the gross client
inflows were attributable to blended assets, equity and fixed income portfolios, respectively.
Our mutual fund and collective investment trust business is driven by financial intermediaries, as well as through our direct sales channel. Through our
intermediary channel, we are focused on promoting our single-asset class and specialized strategies to our wealth and retirement plan advisors. Additionally,
our blended asset portfolios are also used by advisors seeking a multi-asset class solution for their retail clients. Through our intermediary channel, we are
focused on equity and fixed income portfolios for those who wish to use our mutual funds as a component of a larger portfolio.
We also have relationships with consultants and manager research teams at platforms in order to promote our funds within advisory programs, as well
as through placement on platforms' approved lists of funds. To facilitate our relationships with intermediaries, we currently have approximately 270 dealer
relationships. These relationships are important to our retail business as well as our 401(k) life cycle and institutional business.
Through the direct channel, our representatives promote our portfolios to large institutional clients with which we have direct relationships, as well as to
consultants. Additionally, we also form relationships with middle market and large market defined contribution plan sponsors seeking to use our life cycle
mutual funds and collective investment trusts as default options on their investment menu. In the direct channel, we may see additional interest in our mutual
funds and collective investment trust strategies through both blended and single-asset class portfolios based on the needs of the client.
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Results of Operations
Below is a discussion of our consolidated results of operations for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017.
Components of Results of Operations
Overview
An important factor influencing inflows and outflows of our AUM is the investment performance of our various investment approaches. Our stock
selection strategies, absolute pricing discipline and active asset allocation generally result in specific absolute and relative return characteristics in different
market environments. For example, during a fundamental-driven bull market when prices are rising alongside improving fundamentals, we are likely to
experience positive absolute returns and competitive relative returns. However, in a more momentum-driven bull market, when prices become disconnected
from underlying fundamentals, or narrow market environment where a small handful of stocks outperform the average stock, we are likely to experience
positive absolute returns but lagging relative returns. Similarly, during a valuation-driven bear market, when markets experience a period of price correction
following a momentum-driven bull market, we are likely to experience negative absolute returns but strong relative returns. However, in a momentum-driven
bear market, which is typically characterized by broad price declines in a highly correlated market, we are likely to experience negative absolute returns and
potentially lagging relative returns. Essentially, our approach is likely to do well when markets are driven by fundamentals, but lag when markets are driven
primarily by momentum.
Other components impacting our operating results include:
•

asset-based fee rates and changes in those rates;

•

the composition of our AUM among various portfolios, vehicles and client types;

•

changes in our variable costs, including incentive compensation and distribution, servicing and custody expenses, which are affected by our
investment performance, level of our AUM and revenue; and

•

fixed costs, including changes to base compensation, vendor-related costs and investment spending on new products.
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Assets Under Management and Investment Performance
The following tables reflect the indicated components of our AUM for our investment vehicles for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017:
Mutual funds
and collective
investment
trusts

Separately
managed
accounts

Total

Separately
managed
accounts

Mutual funds
and collective
investment
trusts

Total

59%

41%

100%

67%

33%

100%

67%

33%

100%

68%

32%

100%

(in millions)

As of December 31, 2016

$

18,801.9

$

12,881.1

$

31,683.0

Gross client inflows (1)

1,884.7

2,079.0

3,963.7

Gross client outflows (1)

(6,675.3)

(8,391.0)

(15,066.3)

(121.8)

(121.8)

Acquired/(disposed) assets

—

Market appreciation/(depreciation) & other

2,845.3

(2)

As of December 31, 2017
Average AUM for the period
As of December 31, 2017

1,809.3

4,654.6

$

16,856.6

$

8,256.6

$

25,113.2

$

18,094.6

$

10,272.4

$

28,367.0

$

16,856.6

$

8,256.6

$

25,113.2

Gross client inflows (1)

1,637.0

1,965.2

3,602.2

Gross client outflows (1)

(4,078.1)

(3,093.4)

(7,171.5)

(251.6)

(251.6)

(505.3)

(1,128.7)

Acquired/(disposed) assets

—

Market appreciation/(depreciation) & other

(623.4)

(2)

As of December 31, 2018
Average AUM for the period

$

13,792.1

$

6,371.5

$

20,163.6

$

15,596.5

$

7,333.3

$

22,929.8

________________________
(1) Transfers of client assets between portfolios are included in gross client inflows and gross client outflows.
(2) Market appreciation/(depreciation) and other includes investment gains/(losses) on assets under management, the impact of changes in foreign
exchange rates and net flows from non-sales related activities including net reinvested dividends.
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The following tables reflect the indicated components of our AUM for our portfolios for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017:
Blended
Asset

Fixed
Income

Equity

Total

Blended
Asset

Equity

Fixed
Income

Total

$ 31,683.0

63%

33%

4%

100%

63%

32%

5%

100%

63%

32%

5%

100%

6%

100%

(in millions)

As of December 31, 2016
Gross client inflows

(1)

Gross client outflows (1)
Acquired assets/(disposed) assets
Market appreciation/(depreciation) & other
(2)

As of December 31, 2017
Average AUM for period
As of December 31, 2017

$ 19,909.4

$ 10,463.9

$

1,309.7

2,353.0

1,190.5

420.2

3,963.7

(8,969.0)

(5,632.1)

(465.2)

(15,066.3)

—

(121.8)

2,373.2

—

2,220.1

(121.8)

61.3

4,654.6

$ 15,666.6

$

8,120.6

$

1,326.0

$

25,113.2

$ 17,449.6

$

9,601.1

$

1,316.3

$ 28,367.0

$ 15,666.6

$

8,120.6

$

1,326.0

$

25,113.2

Gross client inflows (1)

1,943.9

1,477.4

180.9

3,602.2

Gross client outflows (1)

(3,638.4)

(3,134.4)

(398.7)

(7,171.5)

Acquired assets/(disposed) assets
Market appreciation/(depreciation) & other
(2)

As of December 31, 2018
Average AUM for period

—
(439.9)

(251.6)

—

(251.6)

(710.1)

21.3

(1,128.7)

$ 13,532.2

$

5,501.9

$

1,129.5

$ 20,163.6

$ 14,873.2

$

6,844.4

$

1,212.2

$ 22,929.8

67%

27%

________________________
(1) Transfers of client assets between portfolios are included in gross client inflows and gross client outflows.
(2) Market appreciation/(depreciation) and other includes investment gains/(losses) on assets under management, the impact of changes in foreign
exchange rates and net flows from non-sales related activities including net reinvested dividends.
Revenues
Our revenues primarily consist of investment management fees earned from managing our clients’ AUM. We earn our investment management fees as a
percentage of our clients’ AUM either as of a specified date or on a daily basis. Our investment management fees can fluctuate based on the average fee rate
for our investment management products, which are affected by the composition of our AUM among various portfolios and investment vehicles.
We serve as the investment adviser for Manning & Napier Fund, Inc., Exeter Trust Company Collective Investment Trusts and Rainier Multiple
Investment Trust. The mutual funds are open-end mutual funds designed to meet the needs of a range of institutional and other investors.The collective
investment trusts are for qualified retirement plans, including 401(k) plans. These mutual funds and collective investment trusts comprised $6.4 billion, or
32%, of our AUM as of December 31, 2018. We also serve as the investment advisor to all of our separately managed accounts, managing $13.8 billion, or
68%, of our AUM as of December 31, 2018, including assets managed as a sub-advisor to pooled investment vehicles. For the years ended December 31,
2018 and 2017, our revenue earned from clients located in the United States was 98% and 97%, respectively.
We earn distribution and servicing fees for providing services to our affiliated mutual funds. Revenue is computed and earned daily based on a
percentage of AUM.
We earn custodial service fees for administrative and safeguarding services performed by Exeter Trust Company, our New Hampshire-chartered trust
company. Fees are calculated as a percentage of the client's market value with additional fees for certain transactions.
As discussed above in the Overview-Business Review section, we are in the midst of an effort to restructure fees for many of our mutual fund and
collective trust vehicles. The impact on our overall revenue margins will vary depending on the business mix at the time of the fee change.
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Operating Expenses
Our largest operating expenses are employee compensation and distribution, servicing and custody expenses, discussed further below, with a significant
portion of these expenses varying in a direct relationship to our absolute and relative investment management performance, as well as AUM and revenues. We
review our operating expenses in relation to the investment market environment and changes in our revenues. However, we are generally willing to make
expenditures as necessary even when faced with declining rates of growth in revenues in order to support our investment products, our client service levels,
strategic initiatives and our long-term value.
•

Compensation and related costs. Employee compensation and related costs represent our largest expense, including employee salaries and
benefits, incentive compensation to investment and sales professionals, compensation issued under our long-term incentive plan as well as equity
compensation. These costs are affected by changes in the employee headcount, the mix of existing job descriptions, competitive factors, the
addition of new skill sets and variations in the level of our AUM and revenues. In addition, these costs are impacted by the amount of
compensation granted under our equity plan and the amount of deferred cash awards granted under our long-term incentive plan. Incentive
compensation for our research team considers the cumulative impact of both absolute and relative investment performance over historical time
periods, with more weight placed on the recent periods. As such, incentive compensation paid to our research team will vary, in part, based on
absolute and relative investment performance.

•

Distribution, servicing and custody expenses. Distribution, servicing and custody expense represent amounts paid to various intermediaries for
distribution, shareholder servicing, administrative servicing and custodial services. These expenses generally increase or decrease in line with
changes in our mutual fund and collective investment trust AUM or services performed by these intermediaries. During the first quarter of 2019,
we completed the effort of restructuring fees across our mutual fund product set that began in 2017. Given the overall pressure on fees that all
active managers are facing, we believe that bringing our fund fees to a more competitive level will enhance our ability to attract additional assets
in the future. The financial impacts will include a reduction in the management fees on our existing business, as well as an offsetting reduction in
related distribution, servicing and custody expenses.

•

Other operating costs. Other operating costs include accounting, legal and other professional service fees, occupancy and facility costs, travel and
entertainment expenses, insurance, market data service expenses, gain or loss on sale of assets and all other miscellaneous costs associated with
managing the day-to-day operations of our business.

Non-Operating Income (Loss)
Non-operating income (loss) includes interest expense, interest and dividend income, changes in liability under the tax receivable agreement ("TRA")
entered into between Manning & Napier and the other holders of Class A units of Manning & Napier Group, gains (losses) related to investment securities
sales and changes in values of those investment securities designated as trading and equity method investments.
We expect the interest and investment components of non-operating income (loss) to fluctuate based on market conditions, the performance of our
investments and the overall amount of our investments held by the Company to provide initial cash seeding for product development purposes and short-term
investment for cash management opportunities.
Provision for Income Taxes
The Company is comprised of entities that have elected to be treated as either a limited liability company ("LLC") or a “C-Corporation.” As such, the
entities functioning as LLC’s are not liable for or able to benefit from U.S. federal or most state and local income taxes on their earnings, and their earnings
(losses) will be included in the personal income tax returns of each entity’s unit holders. The entities functioning as C-Corporations are liable for or able to
benefit from U.S. federal and state and local income taxes on their earnings and losses, respectively.
Noncontrolling Interests
Manning & Napier, Inc. holds an economic interest of approximately 18.2% in Manning & Napier Group as of December 31, 2018, but as managing
member controls all of the business and affairs of Manning & Napier Group. As a result, the Company consolidates the financial results of Manning & Napier
Group and records a noncontrolling interest in our consolidated financial statements. Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests on the consolidated
statements of operations represents the portion of earnings attributable to the economic interest in Manning & Napier Group held by the noncontrolling
interests.
Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates
The consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States ("GAAP") and the
related rules and regulations of the SEC. The preparation of consolidated financial statements
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in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates or assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the periods presented. Accordingly, actual results could differ from these
estimates or assumptions and may have a material effect on the consolidated financial statements.
Accounting policies are an integral part of our financial statements. A thorough understanding of these accounting policies is essential when reviewing
our reported results of operations and our financial condition. Our management has identified the following significant accounting policies that are critical to
understanding our business and prospects for future performance, as these policies affect the reported amounts of revenue and other significant areas that
involve management’s judgment and estimates.
These policies and our procedures related to these policies are described in detail below. In addition, please refer to the notes to our consolidated
financial statements included elsewhere in this report for further discussion of our accounting policies.
Revenue Recognition
Investment Management: Investment management fees are computed as a percentage of AUM. Our performance obligation is a series of services that
form part of a single performance obligation satisfied over time.
Separately managed accounts are paid in advance, typically for a semi-annual or quarterly period, or in arrears, typically for a monthly or quarterly
period. When investment management fees are paid in advance, we defer the revenue as a contract liability and recognizes it over the applicable period. When
investment management fees are paid in arrears, we estimate revenue and record a contract asset (accrued accounts receivable) based on AUM as of the most
recent month end date.
Mutual funds and collective investment trust investment management revenue is calculated and earned daily based on AUM. Revenue is presented net
of cash rebates and fees waived pursuant to contractual expense limitations of the funds. We also have agreements with third parties who provide
recordkeeping and administrative services for employee benefit plans participating in the collective investment trusts. We are acting as an agent on behalf of
the employee benefit plan sponsors, therefore, investment management revenue is recorded net of fees paid to third party service providers.
Distribution and shareholder servicing: We receive distribution and servicing fees for providing services to its affiliated mutual funds. Revenue is
computed and earned daily based on a percentage of AUM. The performance obligation is a series of services that form part of a single performance
obligation satisfied over time. We have agreements with third parties who provide distribution and administrative services for its mutual funds. The
agreements are evaluated to determine whether revenue should be reported gross or net of payments to third-party service providers. We control the services
provided and act as a principal in the relationship. Therefore, distribution and shareholder servicing revenue is recorded gross of fees paid to third parties.
Custodial services: Custodial service fees are calculated as a percentage of the client’s market value with additional fees charged for certain
transactions. For the safeguarding and administrative services that are subject to a percentage of market value fee, our performance obligation is a series of
services that form part of a single performance obligation satisfied over time. Revenue for transactions assigned a stand-alone selling price is recognized in
the period which the transaction is executed. Custodial service fees are billed monthly in arrears. We have agreements with third parties who provide
safeguarding, record keeping and administrative services for their clients. We control the services provided and act as a principal in the relationship.
Therefore, custodial service revenue is recorded gross of fees paid to third parties.
Because the majority of our revenues are earned based on AUM that has been determined using fair value methods and since market
appreciation/depreciation has a significant impact on our revenue, we have presented our AUM using the GAAP framework for measuring fair value. A fair
value hierarchy is provided that gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1) and the
lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3). The following three-tier fair value hierarchy prioritizes the inputs used in measuring fair value:
•

Level 1—observable inputs such as quoted prices in active markets for identical securities;

•

Level 2—other significant observable inputs (including but not limited to quoted prices for similar securities, interest rates, prepayment rates, credit
risk, etc.); and

•

Level 3—significant unobservable inputs (including our own assumptions in determining the fair value of investments).
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The table below summarizes the approximate amount of AUM for the periods indicated for which fair value is measured based on Level 1, Level 2 and
Level 3:
Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Total

(in millions)

December 31, 2018 AUM

$

9,153

$

11,011

$

—

$

20,164

December 31, 2017 AUM

$

14,293

$

10,820

$

—

$

25,113

Substantially all our AUM is valued by independent pricing services based upon observable market prices or inputs, and we believe market risk is the
most significant risk underlying valuation of our AUM, as discussed in this Form 10-K under “Item 1A. Risk Factors”.
All other revenue earned by us is recognized on a GAAP accounting basis as earned per the terms of the specific contract.
Costs to Obtain a Contract
Incremental first year commissions directly associated with new separate account and collective investment trust contracts are capitalized and amortized
on a straight-line basis over the estimated customer contract period of 7 years for separate accounts and 3 years for collective investment trust contracts. Refer
to Note 3 of our consolidated financial statements for further discussion.
Consolidation
We assess each legal entity in which we hold a variable interest to determine whether consolidation is appropriate at the onset of the relationship and
upon certain reconsideration events. We determine whether we have a controlling financial interest in the entity by evaluating whether the entity is a voting
interest entity ("VOE") or a variable interest entity ("VIE") under GAAP. Assessing whether an entity is a VOE or VIE and if it requires consolidation
involves judgment and analysis. Factors considered in this assessment include an entity’s purpose and design, a company’s ability to direct the activities of the
entity that most significantly impact the entity’s economic performance, and whether a company is obligated to absorb losses or receive benefits that could
potentially be significant to the entity. The standard also requires ongoing assessments of whether a company is the primary beneficiary of a variable interest
entity (“VIE”). When utilizing the voting interest entity ("VOE") model, controlling financial interest is generally defined as majority ownership of voting
interests.
We serve as the investment adviser for the Fund, Exeter Trust Company Collective Investment Trusts (“CIT”) and Rainier Multiple Investment Trust,
which are legal entities, the business and affairs of which are managed by their respective boards of directors. As a result, each of these entities is a VOE. We
hold, in limited cases, direct investments in a fund (which are made on the same terms as are available to other investors) and consolidate each of these
entities where it has a controlling financial interest or a majority voting interest.
We make initial seed investments in sponsored investment portfolios to develop new products and services for our clients. The original seed investment
may be held in a separately managed account, comprised solely of our investments, or within a mutual fund, where our investment may represent all or only a
portion of the total equity invested in the mutual fund. We evaluate our seed investments on a regular basis and consolidate such mutual funds for which we
hold a controlling financial interest. When we no longer hold a financial controlling interest, we deconsolidate the fund and classify the remaining investment
as either an equity method investment or as trading securities, as applicable.
As of December 31, 2018, Manning & Napier holds an economic interest of approximately 18.2% in Manning & Napier Group, but as managing
member controls all of the business and affairs of Manning & Napier Group. As a result, we consolidate the financial results of Manning & Napier Group and
record a noncontrolling interest on our consolidated statements of financial condition with respect to the remaining economic interest in Manning & Napier
Group held by M&N Group Holdings and MNCC.
Equity-Based Compensation
We measure the cost of employee services received in exchange for an award of equity instruments based on the grant-date fair value of the award. We
recognize this cost over the period during which an employee is required to provide service in exchange for the award, and account for forfeitures as they
occur.
Investment Securities
Investment securities are classified as either trading, equity method investments or available-for-sale and are carried at fair value. Fair value is
determined based on quoted market prices in active markets for identical or similar instruments.
Investment securities classified as trading consist of equity securities, fixed income securities, and investments in mutual funds for which we provide
advisory services. Realized and unrealized gains and losses on trading securities are recorded in net
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gains on investments in the consolidated statements of operations. Realized gains and losses on sales of trading securities are computed on a specific
identification basis.
Investments classified as equity method investments represent seed investments in which we own between 20-50% of the outstanding voting interests in
the affiliated fund or when it is determined that we are able to exercise significant influence but not control over the investments. If the seed investment
results in significant influence, but not control, the investment will be accounted for as an equity method investment. When using the equity method, we
recognize our share of the investee's net income or loss for the period which is recorded in net gains (losses) on investments in the consolidated statements of
operations.
Investment securities classified as available-for-sale consist of U.S. Treasury notes, corporate bonds and other short-term investments. Unrealized gains
and losses on available-for-sale securities are excluded from earnings and are reported, net of deferred income tax, as a separate component of accumulated
other comprehensive income in stockholders’ equity until realized. We periodically review each individual security position that has an unrealized loss, or
impairment, to determine if that impairment is other-than-temporary. If impairment is determined to be other-than-temporary, the carrying value of the
security will be written down to fair value and the loss will be recognized in earnings. Realized gains and losses on sales of available-for-sale securities are
computed on a specific identification basis and are recorded in net gains (losses) on investments in the consolidated statements of operations.
Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of our investment in net assets of acquired companies over the fair value of the underlying identifiable net
assets at the dates of acquisition. We attribute all goodwill associated with past acquisitions to our single reporting unit. Goodwill is tested for impairment by
comparing the fair value of the reporting unit associated with the goodwill to the reporting unit's recorded value. If the fair value of the reporting unit is less
than its recorded value an impairment loss will be recorded.
The annual test of goodwill indicated that there were no facts or circumstances occurring in 2018 suggesting possible impairment. The impairment tests
included certain underlying key assumptions regarding future overall market trends and our operating performance. If actual future market results and our
operating performance vary unfavorably to those included in our financial forecast, we may be subject to impairment charges related to its goodwill.
Intangible Assets
Indefinite-lived intangible assets primarily represent the cost of mutual fund management contracts acquired. Investment management agreements
without a contractual termination date are classified as indefinite-lived intangible assets based upon the following: (i) there is no legal or statutory limitation
on the contract period to manage these investment products; (ii) we expect to, and have the ability to operate these investment products indefinitely; (iii) the
investment products have multiple investors and are not reliant on an individual investor or small group of investors for their continued operation; (iv) the
current competitive environment does not indicate a finite life; and (v) there is a high likelihood of continued renewal based on historical experience. The
assumption that investment management agreements are indefinite-lived assets is reviewed at least annually or more frequently if facts and circumstances
indicate that the useful life is no longer indefinite. Indefinite-lived intangible assets are tested for impairment by comparing the fair value of the assets to their
recorded values.
Income Tax Provision
Management judgment is required in developing our provision for income taxes, including the determination of deferred tax assets and liabilities and
any valuation allowance that might be required against deferred tax assets. As of December 31, 2018, we have not recorded a valuation allowance on deferred
tax assets. In the event that sufficient taxable income does not result in future years, among other things, a valuation allowance for certain of our deferred tax
assets may be required. Because the determination of our annual income tax provision is subject to judgments and estimates, it is likely that the actual results
will vary from those recorded in our financial statements. Hence, we recognize additions to and reductions in income tax expense during a reporting period
that pertains to prior period provisions as our estimated liabilities are revised and our actual tax returns and tax audits are completed.
We recognize tax benefits from uncertain tax positions only if it is more likely than not that the tax position will be sustained upon examination by the
taxing authorities, based on the technical merits of the position. The tax benefits recognized in the financial statements from such positions are then measured
based on the largest benefit that has a greater than 50% likelihood of being realized.
Payments Pursuant to the Tax Receivable Agreement
As a result of Manning & Napier's purchase of Class A units of Manning & Napier Group or exchange for Class A common stock of Manning & Napier
for Class A units of Manning & Napier Group and Manning & Napier Group's election under Section 754 of the Internal Revenue Code, we expect to benefit
from depreciation and amortization deductions from an
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increase in tax basis of tangible and intangible assets of Manning & Napier Group. Those deductions allocated to us will be taken into account in reporting
our taxable income.
In connection with our initial public offering ("IPO"), the TRA was entered into between Manning & Napier and the holders of Manning & Napier
Group, pursuant to which Manning & Napier is required to pay to such holders 85% of the applicable cash savings, if any, in U.S. federal, state, local and
foreign income tax that Manning & Napier actually realizes, or is deemed to realize in certain circumstances, as a result of (i) certain tax attributes of their
units sold to Manning & Napier or exchanged (for shares of Class A common stock) and that are created as a result of the sales or exchanges and payments
under the TRA and (ii) tax benefits related to imputed interest.
At December 31, 2018, we have recorded a total liability of $18.0 million, representing the payments due to the selling unit holders under the TRA.
Payments are anticipated to be made annually commencing from the date of each event that gives rise to the TRA benefits. The actual amount and timing of
any payments may vary from this estimate due to a number of factors, including a material change in the relevant tax law or our failure to earn sufficient
taxable income to realize all estimated tax benefits. The expected payment obligation assumes no additional uncertain tax positions that would impact the
TRAs.
Recent Accounting Pronouncements
See Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, "Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - Recent accounting pronouncements," included in
Item 8 of Part II of this Form 10-K.
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Year Ended December 31, 2018 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2017
Assets Under Management
The following table reflects changes in our AUM for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017:
Year Ended December 31,
2018

Period-to-Period

2017

$

%

(in millions)

Separately managed accounts
Beginning assets under management

$

16,856.6

Gross client inflows (1)

1,637.0

Gross client outflows (1)

(4,078.1)

Acquired/(disposed) assets
Market appreciation/(depreciation) & other

$

—
(2)

Ending assets under management
Average AUM for period

(623.4)

18,801.9 $
1,884.7
(6,675.3)
—
2,845.3

(1,945.3)

(10)%

(247.7)

(13)%

2,597.2
—

39 %
*

(3,468.7)

(122)%

$

13,792.1

$

16,856.6

$

(3,064.5)

(18)%

$

15,596.5

$

18,094.6

$

(2,498.1)

(14)%

$

8,256.6

$

12,881.1 $
2,079.0
(8,391.0)
(121.8)
1,809.3

(4,624.5)

(36)%

Mutual funds and collective investment trusts
Beginning assets under management
Gross client inflows (1)

1,965.2

Gross client outflows (1)

(3,093.4)

Acquired/(disposed) assets

(251.6)

Market appreciation/(depreciation) & other (2)

(505.3)

Ending assets under management
Average AUM for period

(113.8)
5,297.6
(129.8)

(5)%
63 %
*

(2,314.6)

(128)%

$

6,371.5

$

8,256.6

$

(1,885.1)

(23)%

$

7,333.3

$

10,272.4

$

(2,939.1)

(29)%

$

25,113.2

$

31,683.0 $
3,963.7
(15,066.3)
(121.8)
4,654.6

(6,569.8)

(21)%

(361.5)

(9)%

Total assets under management
Beginning assets under management
Gross client inflows (1)

3,602.2

Gross client outflows (1)

(7,171.5)

Acquired/(disposed) assets
Market appreciation/(depreciation) & other
Ending assets under management
Average AUM for period

(251.6)
(2)

(1,128.7)

7,894.8
(129.8)

52 %
*

(5,783.3)

(124)%

$

20,163.6

$

25,113.2

$

(4,949.6)

(20)%

$

22,929.8

$

28,367.0

$

(5,437.2)

(19)%

________________________
(*) Percentage change not meaningful
(1) Transfers of client assets between portfolios are included in gross client inflows and gross client outflows.
(2) Market appreciation/(depreciation) and other includes investment gains/(losses) on assets under management, the impact of changes in foreign
exchange rates and net flows from non-sales related activities including net reinvested dividends.
The total AUM decrease of $4.9 billion, or 20%, to $20.2 billion at December 31, 2018 from $25.1 billion at December 31, 2017 was attributable to net
client outflows of $3.6 billion and disposed assets of $0.3 billion, combined with $1.1 billion of market depreciation and other changes. Net client outflows
consisted of approximately $2.4 billion of net outflows from separate accounts and $1.1 billion from mutual funds and collective investment trusts. By
portfolio, the rates of change in AUM from December 31, 2017 to December 31, 2018 consisted of a $2.6 billion, or 32.2% decrease in our equity portfolio,
and a $2.1 billion, or 13.6% decrease in our blended asset portfolio.
While many of our key strategies achieved competitive relative returns in 2018, we attribute our 2018 net cash outflows to challenging three and five
year annualized returns in many of the strategies included in our blended asset and equity portfolios. Our ability to improve cash flows going forward will
depend on our ability to sustain the improved investment performance we achieved over the past year and execute on our strategic initiatives focused on
gathering and retaining client assets.
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The composition of our AUM was 68% in separate accounts and 32% in mutual funds and collective investment trusts as of December 31, 2018, a shift
from 67% in separate accounts and 33% in mutual funds and collective investment trusts at December 31, 2017. The composition of our AUM across
portfolios at December 31, 2018 was 67% in blended assets, 27% in equity, and 6% in fixed income, compared to 63% in blended assets, 32% in equity, and
5% in fixed income at December 31, 2017.
With regard to our separate accounts, gross client inflows of $1.6 billion were offset by approximately $4.1 billion of gross client outflows during the
year ended December 31, 2018. The $1.6 billion of gross client inflows included $0.9 billion into our blended asset portfolios, $0.6 billion into our equity
portfolios and $0.2 billion into fixed income. During the year ended December 31, 2018, 67% of our separate account gross client inflows were derived from
our Direct Channel with 58% representing contributions from existing Direct Channel relationships. Across all channels, gross client outflows were split with
39% withdrawals from existing accounts and 61% representing client cancellations. Our blended asset and equity portfolios experienced net client outflows of
approximately $1.2 billion and $1.1 billion, respectively. Our separate account clients redeemed assets at a rate of 24% during the year ended December 31,
2018, compared to a 36% for the year ended December 31, 2017. The annualized separate account retention rate was 86% for the year ended December 31,
2018 an improvement from 80% for the year ended December 31, 2017.
Net client outflows of $1.1 billion from our mutual fund and collective investment trusts included gross client inflows of $2.0 billion offset by gross
client outflows of $3.1 billion during the year ended December 31, 2018. Gross client inflows into our blended asset life cycle vehicles, including both risk
based and target date strategies, represented $1.0 billion, or 53%, of mutual fund and collective trust fund gross client inflows during the year ended
December 31, 2018. Gross client outflows were predominantly direct and intermediary channel cancellations and withdrawals from defined contribution and
institutional relationships. With regard to gross client outflows, $1.6 billion, or 51%, of mutual fund and collective investment trust gross client outflows were
from blended asset mutual fund and collective trust products.
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The following table sets forth our results of operations and other data for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017:
Year Ended December 31,
2018

Period-to-Period

2017

$

%

(in thousands, except share data)

Revenues
Management Fees
Separately managed accounts

$

Mutual funds and collective investment trusts

97,123

$

111,518

$

(14,395)

(13)%

41,462

65,716

(24,254)

(37)%

12,089

13,301

(1,212)

(9)%

Custodial services

7,591

8,162

(571)

(7)%

Other revenue

3,066

2,830

236

161,331

201,527

(40,196)

(20)%

Compensation and related costs

87,408

91,730

(4,322)

(5)%

Distribution, servicing and custody expenses

18,175

27,750

(9,575)

(35)%

Other operating costs

32,366

30,279

2,087

137,949

149,759

(11,810)

(8)%

23,382

51,768

(28,386)

(55)%

2,250

16,109

(13,859)

(86)%

25,632

67,877

(42,245)

(62)%

2,647

19,352

(16,705)

(86)%

Net income attributable to controlling and noncontrolling interests

22,985

48,525

(25,540)

(53)%

Less: net income attributable to noncontrolling interests

19,788

44,938

(25,150)

(56)%

$

(390)

(11)%

$

(14,017)

(45)%

Distribution and shareholder servicing

Total revenue

8%

Expenses

Total operating expenses
Operating income

7%

Non-operating income (loss)
Non-operating income (loss), net
Income before provision for income taxes
Provision for income taxes

$

3,197

$

3,587

Basic

$

0.21

$

0.25

Diluted

$

0.21

$

0.25

Net income attributable to Manning & Napier, Inc.
Per Share Data
Net income per share available to Class A common stock

Weighted average shares of Class A common stock outstanding
Basic

14,623,198

14,164,037

Diluted

14,630,170

14,237,025

$

0.26

$

0.32

Economic net income (1)

$

17,430

$

31,447

Economic net income per adjusted share (1)

$

0.22

$

0.40

Cash dividends declared per share of Class A common stock
Other financial and operating data

Weighted average adjusted Class A common stock outstanding (1)

78,916,638

79,567,507

________________________
(1) See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations – Supplemental Non-GAAP Financial Information”
for Manning & Napier’s reasons for including these non-GAAP measures in this report in addition to a reconciliation of non-GAAP financial
measures to GAAP measures for the periods indicated.
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Revenues
Separately managed account revenue decreased by $14.4 million, or 13% , to $97.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2018 from $111.5 million
for the year ended December 31, 2017. This decrease is driven primarily by a 14%, or $2.5 billion decrease in our average separately managed account AUM
for the year ended December 31, 2018 compared to the year ended December 31, 2017. On an annualized basis, our average separately managed account fee
for the year ended December 31, 2018 remained consistent at 0.62% when compared to the full year 2017. For both periods our separately managed account
standard fees ranged from 0.14% to 1.25% depending upon investment objective and account size. As of December 31, 2018, the concentration of
investments in our separately managed account assets was 65% blended assets, 27% equity and 8% fixed income, compared to 62% blended assets, 31%
equity and 7% fixed income as of December 31, 2017.
Mutual fund and collective investment trust revenue decreased by $24.3 million, or 37%, to $41.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2018 from
$65.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2017. This decrease is driven primarily by a 29%, or $2.9 billion, decrease in our average mutual fund and
collective investment trust AUM for the year ended December 31, 2018 compared to the year ended December 31, 2017. In addition, with the adoption of
Topic 606, effective January 1, 2018, third party record-keeping and administrative services for employee benefit plans participating in our collective
investment trusts of $2.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2018 are presented net as a reduction of mutual fund and collective investment trust
revenue. Prior to the adoption of Topic 606, third party record-keeper fees associated with our collective investment trusts were reported as distribution,
servicing and custody expense. On an annualized basis, our average fee on mutual fund and collective investment trust products decreased to 0.73% for the
year ended December 31, 2018 from 0.77% for the full year 2017. For both periods, management fees earned on our mutual fund and collective investment
trust management fees ranged from 0.14% to 1.00%, depending on investment strategy. As of December 31, 2018, the concentration of investments in our
mutual fund and collective investment trusts was 70% blended assets, 28% equity and 2% fixed income, compared to 63% blended assets, 36% equity and
1% fixed income as of December 31, 2017.
Distribution and shareholder servicing revenue decreased by $1.2 million, or 9%, to $12.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2018 from $13.3
million for the year ended December 31, 2017. This decrease is driven by a reduction in mutual fund and collective trust average AUM of 29% for the same
period; however, the reduction in mutual fund and collective trust AUM has exceeded the reduction in distribution and shareholder servicing revenue due to
the fact that net outflows have been concentrated in those funds where there is not a distribution and shareholder fee. In addition, during 2017 there was a
shift of AUM into funds that have a shareholder servicing fee.
Custodial services revenue decreased by $0.6 million, or 7%, to $7.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2018 from $8.2 million for the year
ended December 31, 2017. The decrease primarily relates to decreases in our collective investment trust AUM.
As discussed above in the Overview-Business Review section, we are in the midst of an effort to restructure fees for many of our mutual fund and
collective trust vehicles. The impact on our overall revenue margins will vary depending on the business mix at the time of the fee change.
Operating Expenses
Our operating expenses decreased by $11.8 million, or 8%, to $137.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2018 from $149.8 million for the year
ended December 31, 2017.
Compensation and related costs decreased by $4.3 million, or 5%, to $87.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2018 from $91.7 million for the
year ended December 31, 2017. The decrease was driven by an 11% reduction in average workforce and lower variable incentive costs for our sales team as a
result of the reduction in AUM and revenue. This decrease was partially offset by approximately $3.7 million of employee severance costs for both voluntary
and involuntary workforce reductions recognized in 2018, compared to $1.2 million of employee severance costs in 2017. As a percentage of revenue,
compensation and related costs for 2018 were 54%, compared to 46% in 2017.
Distribution, servicing and custody expenses decreased by $9.6 million, or 35%, to $18.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2018 from $27.8
million for the year ended December 31, 2017. Approximately $2.6 million of the decrease is a result of the adoption of Topic 606, at which time we began
recording fees paid to third parties who provide record-keeping and administrative services for employee benefit plans participating in our collective
investment trusts as a reduction of revenue. Prior to the adoption of Topic 606 on January 1, 2018, these fees were reported as expense. The remaining
decrease in expense was generally driven by a 29% decrease in mutual funds and collective investment trusts average AUM for the year ended December 31,
2018 compared to December 31, 2017. As a percentage of mutual fund and collective investment trust average AUM, distribution, servicing and custody
expense was 0.25% for the year ended December 31, 2018, compared to 0.27% for the year ended December 31, 2017.
Other operating costs increased by $2.1 million, or 7%, to $32.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2018 from $30.3 million for the year ended
December 31, 2017. The 2018 period includes $2.2 million of expense for fees due to a third
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party who provides accounting and administrative services. Prior to the adoption of Topic 606 on January 1, 2018, these fees were reported as a reduction of
revenue. Also reflected in other operating costs are gains of $2.1 million and $1.0 million for 2018 and 2017, respectively, from the Company's sale of the
Rainier U.S. mutual funds. As a percentage of revenue, other operating costs for the year ended December 31, 2018 were 20% for 2018 and 15% for 2017.
Non-Operating Income (Loss)
Non-operating income for the year ended December 31, 2018 was $2.3 million, a decrease of $13.9 million, from non-operating income of $16.1
million for the year ended December 31, 2017. The following table reflects the components of non-operating income (loss) for the years ended December 31,
2018 and 2017:
Year Ended December 31,
2018

Period-to-Period

2017

$

%

(in thousands)

Non-operating income (loss)
Interest expense

$

Interest and dividend income (1)
Change in liability under tax receivable agreement

(2)

Net gains (losses) on investments (3)
Total non-operating income (loss)

$

(49) $

(36) $

2,408

845

1,341
(1,450)
2,250

$

(13)

36 %

1,563

*

12,859

(11,518)

(90)%

2,441

(3,891)

*

(13,859)

(86)%

16,109

$

__________________________
(*) Percentage change not meaningful
(1) The increase in interest and dividend income for the year ended December 31, 2018 compared to 2017 is attributable to an increase in investments,
including U.S. Treasury notes, corporate bonds and other short-term investments to optimize cash management opportunities, coupled with an increase
in interest rates.
(2) The change in the liability under the tax receivable agreement for the year ended December 31, 2018 is attributed to a reduction in our effective tax
rate and a corresponding decrease in the payment of expected tax benefit under the TRA. Non-operating income during the year ended December 31,
2017 was primarily due to the enactment of U.S. tax reform in 2017. The U.S. tax reform reduced the corporate federal tax rate from 35% to 21%, and
thus reduced our expected tax benefits under the TRA and the corresponding payment of such benefits under the TRA.
(3) Amounts represent net income on investments we held to provide initial cash seeding for product development purposes. The amount varies
depending on the performance of our investments and the overall amount of our investments in seeded products.
Provision for Income Taxes
The tax provision decreased by $16.7 million, to $2.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2018 from $19.4 million for the year ended
December 31, 2017. The decrease was primarily driven by the enactment of U.S. tax reform during 2017. The tax law change decreases the corporate federal
tax rate from 35% to 21%. As a result, 2017 reflects an estimated tax provision of $16.5 million due to revaluing our net deferred tax assets. The remaining
decrease is driven by a decrease in the taxable earnings as compared to the prior year.
Supplemental Non-GAAP Financial Information
To provide investors with greater insight, promote transparency and allow for a more comprehensive understanding of the information used by
management in its financial and operational decision-making, we supplement our consolidated statements of operations presented on a GAAP basis with nonGAAP financial measures of earnings.
Management uses economic net income and economic net income per adjusted share as financial measures to evaluate the profitability and efficiency of
our business. Economic net income and economic net income per adjusted share are not presented in accordance with GAAP.
Economic net income is a non-GAAP measure of after-tax operating performance and equals the Company’s economic income less adjusted income
taxes. Adjusted income taxes are estimated assuming the exchange of all outstanding units of Manning & Napier Group, LLC into Class A common stock on
a one-to-one basis. Therefore, all income of Manning & Napier Group, LLC allocated to the units of Manning & Napier Group, LLC is treated as if it were
allocated to Manning & Napier and represents an estimate of income tax expense at an effective rate of 32.0% and 53.7% for the twelve months ended
December 31, 2018 and 2017, reflecting assumed federal, state and local income taxes. The increase in the effective tax rate in 2017 reflects the income tax
expense upon revaluing the Company's deferred tax assets due to the reduction of the corporate income tax rate from the enactment of U.S. tax reform in
2017.
Economic net income per adjusted share is equal to economic net income divided by the total number of adjusted Class A common shares outstanding.
The number of adjusted Class A common shares outstanding for all periods presented is determined by assuming the weighted average exchangeable units of
Manning & Napier Group, LLC and unvested equity
awards are converted into the Company’s outstanding Class A common stock as of the respective reporting date, on a one-to-one basis. The Company’s
management uses economic net income, among other financial data, to determine the earnings available to distribute as dividends to holders of its Class A
common stock and to the holders of the units of Manning & Napier Group, LLC.
Non-GAAP measures are not a substitute for financial measures prepared in accordance with GAAP and therefore should not be used in isolation of,
but in conjunction with, GAAP measures. Additionally, the Company’s non-GAAP measures may differ from similar measures used by other companies,
even if similar terms are used to identify such measures.
The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, a reconciliation of non-GAAP financial measures to GAAP measures:
Year Ended December 31,
2018

2017

(in thousands, except share data)

Net income attributable to Manning & Napier, Inc.
Add back: Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests
Add back: Provision for income taxes

$

3,197

$

3,587

19,788

44,938

2,647

19,352

Income before provision for income taxes

25,632

Adjusted income taxes (Non-GAAP)

67,877

8,202

Economic net income (Non-GAAP)

$

Weighted average shares of Class A common stock outstanding - Basic

17,430

36,430
$

31,447

14,623,198

14,164,037

63,489,881

64,387,304

Assumed vesting, conversion or exchange of:
Weighted average Manning & Napier Group, LLC units outstanding (noncontrolling interest)
Weighted average unvested restricted share-based awards
Weighted average adjusted shares (Non-GAAP)
$

Economic net income per adjusted share (Non-GAAP)

803,559

1,016,166

78,916,638

79,567,507

0.22

$

0.40

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Historically, our cash and liquidity needs have been met primarily through cash generated by our operations. Our current financial condition is highly
liquid, with a significant amount of our assets comprised of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, and investment securities held by us for the
purposes of optimizing short-term cash management and providing initial cash seeding for product development purposes.
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The following table sets forth certain key financial data relating to our liquidity and capital resources as of December 31, 2018 and 2017:
Year Ended December 31,
2018

2017
(in thousands)

Cash and cash equivalents

$

Accounts receivable
Investment securities
Amounts payable under tax receivable agreement (1)
Contingent consideration liability

(2)

59,586

$

78,262

$

11,447

$

15,337

$

91,190

$

70,404

$

18,023

$

21,827

$

—

$

—

__________________________
(1) In light of numerous factors affecting our obligation to make such payments, the timing and amounts of any such actual payments are based on our
best estimate as of the end of each period presented, including the ability to realize the expected tax benefits. Actual payments may significantly differ
from estimated payments. See “Critical Accounting Policies – Payments under the Tax Receivable Agreement” for more information.
(2) Represents the fair value of additional cash payments related to our acquisition of Rainier of up to $32.5 million over the period ending December 31,
2019, contingent upon Rainier's achievement of certain financial targets.
We have no material assets other than our ownership of Class A units of Manning & Napier Group and, accordingly, will depend on distributions from
Manning & Napier Group to pay taxes and operating expenses, as well as any dividends we may pay. As managing member of Manning & Napier Group, we
will determine the timing and amount of any distributions to be paid to its members. We intend to cause Manning & Napier Group to distribute cash to its
members, including us, in an amount sufficient to cover taxes and operating expenses, including dividends, if any, declared by us. If we do cause Manning &
Napier Group to make such distributions, M&N Group Holdings, MNCC and any other holders of units of Manning & Napier Group will be entitled to
receive equivalent distributions on a pari passu basis.
In determining the sufficiency of liquidity and capital resources to fund our business, we regularly monitor our liquidity position, including among other
things, cash, working capital, long-term liabilities, lease commitments and operating company distributions.
The Company is nearing the completion of the 2019 exchange period whereby eligible Class A units of Manning & Napier Group held by M&N Group
Holdings and MNCC may be tendered for exchange. In connection with the exchange, the Company has the ability to pay an amount of cash equal to the
number of units exchanged multiplied by the value of one share of the Company's Class A common stock less a market discount and expected expenses, or at
the Company's election issue shares of Class A common stock on a one-for-one basis. The Company anticipates that approximately 1.3 million of eligible
Class A units of Manning & Napier Group will be tendered for exchange during the second quarter of 2019.
We believe cash on hand and cash generated from operations will be sufficient over the next twelve months to meet our working capital requirements.
Further, we expect that cash on hand, including short-term investments and cash generated by operations will be sufficient to meet our liquidity needs for the
foreseeable future.
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Cash Flows
The following table sets forth our cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017. Operating activities consist primarily of net income
subject to adjustments for changes in operating assets and liabilities, equity-based compensation expense, changes in the liability under the tax receivable
agreement, deferred income tax expense, gain on sale of intangible assets and depreciation and amortization. Investing activities consist primarily of the
purchase and sale of investments for the purpose of providing initial cash seeding for product development purposes and cash management purposes, gain on
sale of intangible assets and purchases of property and equipment. Financing activities consist primarily of distributions to noncontrolling interests, dividends
paid on our Class A common stock, and purchases of Class A units held by the noncontrolling interests of Manning & Napier Group.
Years Ended December 31,
2018

2017
(in thousands)

Net cash provided by operating activities

$

22,838

$

56,421

Net cash used in investing activities

(21,508)

(30,559)

Net cash used in financing activities

(20,006)

(48,419)

Net change in cash flows

$

(18,676)

$

(22,557)

Year Ended December 31, 2018 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2017
Operating Activities
Operating activities provided $22.8 million and $56.4 million of net cash for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively. This overall
$33.6 million decrease in net cash provided by operating activities was due to a decrease in net income after adjustment for non-cash items of approximately
$28.0 million driven by lower revenues resulting primarily from changes in our average AUM. This decrease in cash provided by operating activities for the
year ended December 31, 2018 compared to 2017 was also due to a decrease of $5.6 million in operating assets and liabilities attributable to lower revenues.
Investing Activities
Investing activities used $21.5 million and $30.6 million of net cash for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively. The decrease in
cash used was primarily driven by changes in investing activities of $8.4 million due to our funding of and timing of activity within our investment securities.
In addition, we received proceeds of $2.1 million and $1.0 million for the sale of the Rainier U.S. mutual funds during the years ended 2018 and 2017,
respectively. During the year ended December 31, 2018, total net investment activity used $22.2 million of cash compared to $30.6 million during 2017.
Included in the 2018 investment activity was approximately $0.6 million of cash used, net, from the seeding and redemption of certain seeded portfolios for
product development purposes. In addition, we used approximately $2.5 million of cash to purchase interests in selected Manning & Napier series of mutual
funds to offset our deferred compensation obligations under our 2018 Long-Term Incentive Plan and approximately $21.6 million, net, was used of cash from
short-term investments for cash management purposes during the year ended December 31, 2018. Our purchases of property and equipment were
approximately $2.0 million and $1.4 million during the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.
Financing Activities
Financing activities used $20.0 million and $48.4 million of net cash for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively. This overall $28.4
million decrease in net cash used was primarily the result of a reduction in distributions to noncontrolling interests of $19.1 million due to lower income after
adjustment for non-cash items in 2018 compared to 2017. This decrease in cash used in financing activities was also driven by a decrease of $7.9 million of
cash used for the purchase of Class A units of Manning & Napier Group pursuant to the exchange agreement entered into at the time of our IPO of $1.9
million in 2018, compared to $9.8 million in 2017. This decrease was due to a lower exchange price and a lower number of units exchanged in 2018. In
addition, we used cash of $4.9 million for dividends paid on Class A common stock in 2018, compared to $6.0 million in 2017. In addition, a lower amount of
cash was used for the payment of shares withheld to satisfy tax withholding as no cash was used in 2018, compared to $0.3 million used in 2017 due to the
timing and amount of restricted share units vesting during the period.
Off Balance Sheet Arrangements
We did not have any off-balance sheet arrangements as of December 31, 2018.
Item 7A.

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.

As a "smaller reporting company," we are not required to provide this information.
Item 8.

Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.

Our consolidated financial statements listed in Item 15 are filed as part of this report on pages F-2 through F-28 and are incorporated by reference in
this Item 8.
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Item 9.

Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure.

None.
Item 9A.

Controls and Procedures.

Conclusion Regarding the Effectiveness of Disclosure Controls and Procedures
Our management, including our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and
procedures as of December 31, 2018 pursuant to Rule 13a-15 under the Exchange Act. Based on that evaluation, our principal executive officer and principal
financial officer have concluded that, as of December 31, 2018, our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) under the Exchange Act)
were effective to ensure that information we are required to disclose in reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed,
summarized and reported within the time periods specified in SEC rules and forms, and that such information is accumulated and communicated to our
management, including our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosures.
Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting (as the term is defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act)
during the quarter ended December 31, 2018 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial
reporting.
Management's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over our financial reporting, as defined in Rule 13a-15(f)
under the Exchange Act. Internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of our
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Because of
its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness
to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.
Our management, with the participation of our principal executive officer and our principal financial officer, has assessed the effectiveness of our
internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2018. In making this assessment, management used the criteria set forth in the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) in Internal Control - Integrated Framework (2013).
Based on the assessment using those criteria, management concluded that, as of December 31, 2018, our internal control over financial reporting was
effective.
Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
This Annual Report does not include an attestation report of our independent registered public accounting firm regarding internal control over financial
reporting. Management’s report was not subject to attestation by our independent registered public accounting firm pursuant to the rules of the SEC that
permit us to provide only management’s report in this Annual Report.
Item 9B.

Other Information.

None.
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PART III
Item 10.

Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

Information required by this item will be in our definitive Proxy Statement for our 2019 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on June 12, 2019, which
will be filed within 120 days of the end of our fiscal year ended December 31, 2018 (our “Proxy Statement”) and is incorporated herein by reference.
Item 11.

Executive Compensation

Information required by this item will be set forth in our Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein by reference.
Item 12.

Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters

Information required by this item will be set forth in our Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein by reference.
Item 13.

Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence

Information required by this item will be set forth in our Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein by reference.
Item 14.

Principal Accounting Fees and Services

Information required by this item will be set forth in our Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein by reference.
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PART IV
Item 15.
(a)

Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules.
The following documents are filed as part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K:
(1)
Financial Statements
(i)
Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition as of December 31, 2018 and 2017
(ii)
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017
(iii)
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017
(iv)
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017
(v)
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017
(vi)
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(2)

Financial Statement Schedules

There are no Financial Statement Schedules filed as part of this Annual Report on 10-K, as the required information is included in our
consolidated financial statements and in the notes thereto.
(b)

Exhibit Index:

Exhibit No.

Description

3.1

Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Manning & Napier, Inc. is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1
to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011, filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on March 28, 2012.

3.2

Amended and Restated Bylaws of Manning & Napier, Inc. are incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the Company’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission
on March 28, 2012.

4.1

Form of specimen certificate representing Manning & Napier, Inc.’s Class A common stock is incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.1 to Amendment No. 4 of the Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-175309) of the Company, filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on November 7, 2011.

10.1

Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Agreement of Manning & Napier Group, LLC. is incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011, filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 28, 2012.

10.2

Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Agreement of M&N Group Holdings, LLC. is incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011, filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 28, 2012.

10.3

Exchange Agreement, dated as of November 23, 2011, by and among Manning & Napier, Inc. and the other parties thereto is
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2011, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 28, 2012.

10.4

Tax Receivable Agreement, dated as of November 23, 2011, by and among Manning & Napier, Inc. and the other parties thereto is
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2011, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 28, 2012.

10.5

Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of November 23, 2011, by and among Manning & Napier, Inc. and the other parties
thereto is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2011, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 28, 2012.

10.6*

Manning & Napier, Inc. 2011 Equity Compensation Plan is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the Company’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission
on March 28, 2012.

10.7*

Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement under the Manning & Napier, Inc. 2011 Equity Compensation Plan is incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2017,
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 16, 2018.

10.8*

Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement, as amended December 1, 2018, under the Manning & Napier, Inc. 2011 Equity
Compensation Plan.
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10.9*

Manning & Napier 2018 Long-Term Incentive Plan.

10.10*

Form of LTIP Award Agreement under the Manning & Napier 2018 Long-Term Incentive Plan.

10.11*

Form of Stock Option Agreement under the Manning & Napier, Inc. 2011 Equity Compensation Plan is incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.8 to Amendment No. 2 of the Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-175309) of the Company,
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on September 23, 2011.

10.12

Amended and Restated Shareholders Agreement of MNA Advisors, Inc. is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011, filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on March 28, 2012.

10.13

Amended and Restated Operating Agreement of Manning & Napier Capital Company, L.L.C. is incorporated herein by reference
to Exhibit 10.12 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011, filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on March 28, 2012.

10.14

Form of Indemnification Agreement is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.13 to Amendment No. 2 of the Registration
Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-175309) of the Company, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on September
23, 2011.

10.15*

Employment Agreement, dated January 30, 2019, of Marc Mayer.

10.16*

Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement, dated January 30, 2019, by and between Manning & Napier, Inc., and Marc Mayer.

10.17*

Time-Vesting Stock Option Agreement, dated January 30, 2019, by and between Manning & Napier, Inc., and Marc Mayer.

10.18*

Performance-Vesting Stock Option Agreement, dated January 30, 2019, by and between Manning & Napier, Inc., and Marc
Mayer.

10.19*

Employment Agreement, dated August 1, 1993, of Jeff Coons is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.15 to Amendment
No. 2 of the Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-175309) of the Company, filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on September 23, 2011.

10.20*

Employment Agreement, dated June 28, 1993, of Charles Stamey is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.16 to
Amendment No. 2 of the Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-175309) of the Company, filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on September 23, 2011.

10.21

First Amendment to Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Agreement of M&N Group Holdings, LLC is
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.23 of the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2012, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 15, 2013.

10.22

First Amendment to Amended and Restated Shareholder Agreement of MNA Advisors, Inc. is incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.24 of the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2012, filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on March 15, 2013.

10.23

Second Amendment to Amended and Restated Shareholder Agreement of MNA Advisors, Inc. is incorporated herein by reference
to Exhibit 10.25 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2013, filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission on May 9, 2013.

10.24

Amendment to Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Agreement of Manning & Napier Group, LLC is incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.26 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2014,
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 16, 2015.

10.25

Amendment to Amended and Restated Operating Agreement of Manning & Napier Capital Company, L.L.C. is incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.27 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2014,
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 16, 2015.

10.26

Amendment to Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Agreement of M&N Group Holdings, LLC is incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.28 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2014,
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 16, 2015.

10.27

Amendment to Amended and Restated Shareholder Agreement of MNA Advisors, Inc. is incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.29 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2014, filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on March 16, 2015.

10.28

Form of Redemption Agreement between M&N Group Holdings, LLC and Manning & Napier Group, LLC, dated April 27, 2016
is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on May 2, 2016.
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10.29

Form of Redemption Agreement between Manning & Napier Capital Company, L.L.C. and Manning & Napier Group, LLC, dated
April 27, 2016 is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on May 2, 2016.

10.30

Form of Redemption Agreement between M&N Group Holdings, LLC and Manning & Napier Group, LLC, dated March 31,
2017 is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission on April 4, 2017.

10.31

Form of Redemption Agreement between Manning & Napier Capital Company, L.L.C. and Manning & Napier Group, LLC, dated
March 31, 2017 is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K as filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on April 4, 2017.

10.32

Form of Redemption Agreement between M&N Group Holdings, LLC and Manning & Napier Group, LLC, dated March 30,
2018 is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission on April 2, 2018.

10.33

Form of Redemption Agreement between Manning & Napier Capital Company, L.L.C. and Manning & Napier Group, LLC, dated
March 30, 2018 is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on April 2, 2018.

21.1

Subsidiaries of Manning & Napier, Inc.

23.1

Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers, LLP

31.1

Certification of the Company’s Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Exchange Act Rules 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a), as adopted pursuant
to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

31.2

Certification of the Company’s Principal Financial Officer pursuant to Exchange Act Rules 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a), as adopted
pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

32.1

Certification of the Company’s Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

32.2

Certification of the Company’s Principal Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

101

Materials from the Manning & Napier, Inc. Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2018, formatted in
Extensible Business Reporting Language (XBRL); (i) Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition, (ii) Consolidated
Statements of Operations, (iii) Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income, (iv) Consolidated Statements of Shareholders'
Equity, (v) Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, and (iv) related Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
__________________________
* Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement

Item 16.

Form 10-K Summary.

None.
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its
behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.
Dated: March 27, 2019
MANNING & NAPIER, INC.
By:

/s/ Marc Mayer
Name:

Marc Mayer

Title:

Chief Executive Officer
(principal executive officer)

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the
registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated below.
Signature

Capacity

/s/ Marc Mayer

Chief Executive Officer

Marc Mayer

(principal executive officer)

Date

March 27, 2019

/s/ Paul J. Battaglia

Principal Financial Officer

Paul J. Battaglia

(principal financial and accounting officer)

March 27, 2019

/s/ William Manning

Chairman of the Board of Directors

March 27, 2019

Director

March 27, 2019

Director

March 27, 2019

Director

March 27, 2019

Director

March 27, 2019

Director

March 27, 2019

Director

March 27, 2019

Director

March 27, 2019

William Manning
/s/ Joel Domino
Joel Domino
/s/ Edward George
Edward George
/s/ Richard Goldberg
Richard Goldberg
/s/ Barbara Goodstein
Barbara Goodstein
/s/ Kenneth Marvald
Kenneth Marvald
/s/ Edward J. Pettinella
Edward J. Pettinella
/s/ Geoffrey Rosenberger
Geoffrey Rosenberger
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Manning & Napier, Inc.
Opinion on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition of Manning & Napier, Inc. and its subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of
December 31, 2018 and 2017, and the related consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive income, shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for the
years then ended, including the related notes (collectively referred to as the “consolidated financial statements”). In our opinion, the consolidated financial
statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, and the results of its operations
and its cash flows for each of the two years in the period ended December 31, 2018 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.
Basis for Opinion
These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s
consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States) (“PCAOB”) and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the
applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.
We conducted our audits of these consolidated financial statements in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to error
or fraud. The Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. As part of our audits
we are required to obtain an understanding of internal control over financial reporting but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Company's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.
Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to error or fraud,
and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements. Our audits also included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

/s/PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Rochester, New York
March 27, 2019
We have served as the Company’s auditor since 2007, which includes periods before the Company became subject to SEC reporting requirements.
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Manning & Napier, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition
(In thousands, except share data)
December 31,
2018

2017

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents

$

59,586

$

78,262

Accounts receivable

11,447

15,337

Investment securities

91,190

70,404

5,221

4,870

167,444

168,873

5,649

5,407

Prepaid expenses and other assets
Total current assets
Property and equipment, net
Net deferred tax assets, non-current

20,795

23,298

Goodwill

4,829

4,829

Other long-term assets

3,842

2,773

Total assets

$

202,559

$

1,845

$

205,180

Liabilities
Accounts payable

$

Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Deferred revenue
Total current liabilities
Other long-term liabilities
Amounts payable under tax receivable agreement, non-current
Total liabilities

1,612

25,126

32,347

9,305

10,213

36,276

44,172

2,691

3,370

17,349

19,278

56,316

66,820

Commitments and contingencies (Note 10)
Shareholders’ equity
Class A common stock, $0.01 par value; 300,000,000 shares authorized, 15,310,958 and 15,039,347 issued and
outstanding at December 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, respectively

$

153

$

150

Additional paid-in capital

198,604

198,641

Retained deficit

(38,865)

(38,424)

Accumulated other comprehensive income

(77)

Total shareholders’ equity

(86)

159,815

Noncontrolling interests
Total shareholders’ equity and noncontrolling interests
Total liabilities, shareholders’ equity and noncontrolling interests

$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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160,281

(13,572)

(21,921)

146,243

138,360

202,559

$

205,180

Manning & Napier, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Operations
(In thousands, except share data)
Year Ended December 31,
2018

2017

Revenues
Management Fees
Separately managed accounts

$

97,123

Mutual funds and collective investment trusts
Distribution and shareholder servicing
Custodial services
Other revenue

$

111,518

41,462

65,716

12,089

13,301

7,591

8,162

3,066

2,830

161,331

201,527

Compensation and related costs

87,408

91,730

Distribution, servicing and custody expenses

18,175

27,750

Other operating costs

32,366

30,279

137,949

149,759

23,382

51,768

Total revenue
Expenses

Total operating expenses
Operating income
Non-operating income (loss)
Interest expense

(49)

Interest and dividend income
Change in liability under tax receivable agreement
Net gains (losses) on investments
Total non-operating income (loss)
Income before provision for income taxes
Provision for income taxes
Net income attributable to controlling and noncontrolling interests
Less: net income attributable to noncontrolling interests

(36)

2,408

845

1,341

12,859

(1,450)

2,441

2,250

16,109

25,632

67,877

2,647

19,352

22,985

48,525

19,788

Net income attributable to Manning & Napier, Inc.

44,938

$

3,197

$

3,587

Basic

$

0.21

$

0.25

Diluted

$

0.21

$

0.25

Net income per share available to Class A common stock

Weighted average shares of Class A common stock outstanding
Basic

14,623,198

14,164,037

Diluted

14,630,170

14,237,025

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

F-4

Manning & Napier, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
(In thousands)

Year Ended December 31,
2018

Net income attributable to controlling and noncontrolling interests

$

Net unrealized holding gains (losses) on investment securities, net of tax

2017

22,985

$

51

Reclassification adjustment for realized (gains) losses on investment securities included in net income
Comprehensive income
Less: Comprehensive income attributable to noncontrolling interest

(73)

42

—

23,078

48,452

19,872

Comprehensive income attributable to Manning & Napier, Inc.

$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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48,525

3,206

44,865
$

3,587

Manning & Napier, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity
(In thousands, except share data)
Common Stock- Class
A

Balance—January 1, 2017

Common StockClass B

Shares

Amount

Shares

Additional
Paid-In
Amount
Capital
$

Retained
Deficit

Accumulated
Other
Non
Comprehensive Controlling
Income (Loss)
Interests

$(37,383)

$

14,982,880

$ 150

1,000

—

$ 200,158

Net income

—

—

—

—

—

3,587

—

44,938

48,525

Distributions to noncontrolling interests

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

(32,173)

(32,173)

Net changes in unrealized investment securities gains
or losses

—

—

—

—

—

—

(73)

—

(73)

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

(224)

(272)

Common stock issued under equity compensation plan,
net of forfeitures

(13)

$ (28,434)

Total

56,467

—

Cancellation of Class B common stock

—

—

Shares withheld to satisfy tax withholding requirements
related to restricted stock units vested

—

—

—

—

(48)

—

—

Equity-based compensation

—

—

—

—

408

—

—

1,897

Dividends declared on Class A common stock - $0.32
per share

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

Impact of changes in ownership of Manning & Napier
Group, LLC

(1,000)

—

—

—

15,039,347

$ 150

—

Net income

—

—

Distributions to noncontrolling interests

—

Net changes in unrealized investment securities gains
or losses

—

Balance—December 31, 2017

Common stock issued under equity compensation plan,
net of forfeitures

—
$

(1,877)

(4,628)
—

—

(7,925)

—

—

3,197

—

19,788

22,985

—

—

—

—

—

—

(13,089)

(13,089)

—

—

—

—

—

9

(3)

—

—

—

—

—

—

1,855

2,268

—

—

—

1,224

3

—

—

—

—

—

413

Dividends declared on Class A common stock - $0.26
per share

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

15,310,958

$ 153

—

(3,904)

$ (21,921)

(9,802)

—

—

(86)

(4,628)

$ 198,641

271,611

$

2,305

—

Equity-based compensation

$(38,424)

$134,478

42

$138,360

51

(3,904)

Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle,
net of taxes (Note 3)
Impact of changes in ownership of Manning & Napier
Group, LLC (Note 4)
Balance—December 31, 2018

—
$

—

(447)
$ 198,604

266
—
$(38,865)

—
$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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(77)

(1,471)
$ (13,572)

1,490
(1,918)
$146,243

Manning & Napier, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(In thousands)
Year Ended December 31,
2018

2017

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income attributable to controlling and noncontrolling interests

$

22,985

$

48,525

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Equity-based compensation

2,268

Depreciation and amortization

2,305

1,719

1,763

Change in amounts payable under tax receivable agreement

(1,341)

(12,859)

Gain on sale of intangible assets

(2,626)

(1,043)

Net (gains) losses on investment securities

1,450

(2,441)

Deferred income taxes

2,431

18,612

3,890

6,538

79

13

(Increase) decrease in operating assets and increase (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses and other assets
Other long-term assets
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses and other liabilities

15

—

233

(441)

(6,582)

Deferred revenue

(908)

Other long-term liabilities

(775)

Net cash provided by operating activities

(3,924)
3
(630)

22,838

56,421

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of property and equipment

(1,950)

(1,352)

6,857

17,314

Purchase of investments

(90,160)

(87,380)

Sale of intangible assets

2,626

1,043

Sale of investments

Acquisitions, net of cash received
Proceeds from maturity of investments
Net cash used in investing activities

—

320

61,119

39,496

(21,508)

(30,559)

(13,089)

(32,173)

(4,878)

(6,005)

Cash flows from financing activities:
Distributions to noncontrolling interests
Dividends paid on Class A common stock
Payment of shares withheld to satisfy withholding requirements

—

Payment of capital lease obligations
Purchase of Class A units of Manning & Napier Group, LLC
Net cash used in financing activities
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

(272)

(121)

(167)

(1,918)

(9,802)

(20,006)

(48,419)

(18,676)

(22,557)

78,262

100,819

Cash and cash equivalents:
Beginning of period
End of period

$

F-7

59,586

$

78,262

Manning & Napier, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(In thousands)
Year Ended December 31,
2018

2017

Supplemental disclosures:
Cash paid during the period for interest

$

80

$

36

Cash payments during the period for taxes, net of refunds

$

(89)

$

1,058

Capital expenditures in accounts payable and accruals

$

266

$

238

Equipment acquired through capital lease obligation

$

34

$

94

Accrued dividends

$

306

$

1,203

Non-cash investing and financing activities:

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Manning & Napier, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Note 1—Organization and Nature of the Business
Manning & Napier, Inc. ("Manning & Napier" or the "Company") provides a broad range of investment solutions as well as a variety of consultative
services that complement its investment process. Founded in 1970, the Company offers U.S. and non-U.S. equity, fixed income and a range of blended asset
portfolios, such as life cycle funds and actively-managed exchange-traded fund ("ETF")-based portfolios. Headquartered in Fairport, New York, the Company
serves a diversified client base of high-net-worth individuals and institutions, including 401(k) plans, pension plans, Taft-Hartley plans, platforms,
endowments and foundations.
The Company was incorporated in 2011 as a Delaware corporation, and is the sole managing member of Manning & Napier Group, LLC and its
subsidiaries (“Manning & Napier Group”), a holding company for the investment management businesses conducted by its operating subsidiaries. The
diagram below depicts the Company's organization structure as of December 31, 2018.

_____________________
(1) The consolidated operating subsidiaries of Manning & Napier Group include Manning & Napier Advisors, LLC ("MNA"), Perspective Partners LLC,
Manning & Napier Information Services, LLC, Manning & Napier Investor Services, Inc., Exeter Trust Company and Rainier Investment
Management, LLC ("Rainier").
Note 2—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Presentation
The accompanying consolidated financial statements were prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America (“U.S. GAAP”) and related rules and regulations of the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC").
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimates or assumptions that affect the reported
amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. Actual results could differ from these estimates or assumptions.
Reclassifications
The Company changed the presentation of revenue within its consolidated statements of operations for the twelve months ended December 31, 2018.
Revenue, previously reported as a single line item, has been disaggregated to present revenue by the various services the Company provides. Amounts for the
comparative prior periods have been reclassified to conform to the current period presentation. These reclassifications had no impact on previously reported
net income or financial position and do not represent a restatement of any previously published financial results.
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Manning & Napier, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
For periods prior to and including December 31, 2017, the Company presented "Accounts receivable - affiliated mutual funds" on its consolidated
statements of financial condition. Further disclosure regarding accounts receivable from affiliated mutual funds and the components of accounts receivable as
of December 31, 2018 is included in "Accounts Receivable" in Note 3 of the notes to the consolidated financial statements. Amounts for the comparative
prior fiscal year periods have been reclassified to conform to the current period presentation. These reclassifications had no impact on previously reported net
income and do not represent a restatement of any previously published financial results.
Principles of Consolidation
As of December 31, 2018, Manning & Napier holds an economic interest of approximately 18.2% in Manning & Napier Group, but as managing
member controls all of the business and affairs of Manning & Napier Group. As a result, the Company consolidates the financial results of Manning & Napier
Group and records a noncontrolling interest on its consolidated statements of financial condition with respect to the remaining economic interest in
Manning & Napier Group held by M&N Group Holdings, LLC (“M&N Group Holdings”) and Manning & Napier Capital Company, LLC (“MNCC”).
All material intercompany transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.
In accordance with Accounting Standards Update ("ASU") 2015-02, Consolidation (Topic 810) – Amendments to the Consolidation Analysis, the
determination of whether a company is required to consolidate an entity is based on, among other things, an entity’s purpose and design, a company’s ability
to direct the activities of the entity that most significantly impact the entity’s economic performance, and whether a company is obligated to absorb losses or
receive benefits that could potentially be significant to the entity. The standard also requires ongoing assessments of whether a company is the primary
beneficiary of a variable interest entity (“VIE”). When utilizing the voting interest entity (“VOE”) model, controlling financial interest is generally defined as
majority ownership of voting interests.
The Company provides seed capital to its investment teams to develop new products and services for its clients. The original seed investment may be
held in a separately managed account, comprised solely of the Company's investments or within a mutual fund, where the Company's investments may
represent all or only a portion of the total equity invested in the mutual fund. Pursuant to U.S. GAAP, the Company evaluates its investments in mutual funds
on a regular basis and consolidates such mutual funds for which it holds a controlling financial interest. When no longer deemed to hold a controlling
financial interest, the Company would deconsolidate the fund and classify the remaining investment as either an equity method investment or as trading
securities, as applicable.
The Company serves as the investment adviser for Manning & Napier Fund, Inc. series of mutual funds (the “Fund”), Exeter Trust Company Collective
Investment Trusts (“CIT”) and Rainier Multiple Investment Trust. The Fund, CIT and Rainier Multiple Investment Trust are legal entities, the business and
affairs of which are managed by their respective boards of directors. As a result, each of these entities is a VOE. The Company holds, in limited cases, direct
investments in a mutual fund (which are made on the same terms as are available to other investors) and consolidates each of these entities where it has a
controlling financial interest or a majority voting interest. The Company's investments in the Fund amounted to approximately $3.6 million and $2.6 million
at December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively. As of December 31, 2017, the Company maintained significant influence in one mutual fund, Manning &
Napier Fund, Inc. Quality Equity Series, but did not maintain a controlling financial interest in the mutual fund, which was accounted for as an equity method
investment. During the first quarter of 2018, the Manning & Napier Fund, Inc. Quality Equity Series liquidated and closed.
Operating Segments
The Company operates in one segment, the investment management industry. The Company primarily provides investment management services to
separately managed accounts, mutual funds and collective investment trust funds. Management assesses the financial performance of these vehicles on a
combined basis.
Revenue
Investment Management: Investment management fees are computed as a percentage of assets under management ("AUM"). The Company's
performance obligation is a series of services that form part of a single performance obligation satisfied over time.
Separately managed accounts are paid in advance, typically for a semi-annual or quarterly period, or in arrears, typically for a monthly or quarterly
period. When investment management fees are paid in advance, the Company defers the revenue as a contract liability and recognizes it over the applicable
period. When investment management fees are paid in arrears, the Company estimates revenue and records a contract asset (accrued accounts receivable)
based on AUM as of the most recent month end date.
Mutual funds and collective investment trust investment management revenue is calculated and earned daily based on AUM. Revenue is presented net
of cash rebates and fees waived pursuant to contractual expense limitations of the funds. The Company also has agreements with third parties who provide
recordkeeping and administrative services for employee benefit
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plans participating in the collective investment trusts. The Company is acting as an agent on behalf of the employee benefit plan sponsors, therefore,
investment management revenue is recorded net of fees paid to third party service providers. Contractual obligations whereby the Company made payments
during the year ended December 31, 2017 of approximately $3.4 million to certain advisory clients with the intent of providing those clients a reduced fee are
presented as a reduction to revenue, in accordance with ASC 605-50, Revenue Recognition.
Distribution and shareholder servicing: The Company receives distribution and servicing fees for providing services to its affiliated mutual funds.
Revenue is computed and earned daily based on a percentage of AUM. The performance obligation is a series of services that form part of a single
performance obligation satisfied over time. The Company has agreements with third parties who provide distribution and administrative services for its
mutual funds. The agreements are evaluated to determine whether revenue should be reported gross or net of payments to third-party service providers. The
Company controls the services provided and acts as a principal in the relationship. Therefore, distribution and shareholder servicing revenue is recorded gross
of fees paid to third parties.
Custodial services: Custodial service fees are calculated as a percentage of the client’s market value with additional fees charged for certain
transactions. For the safeguarding and administrative services that are subject to a percentage of market value fee, the Company's performance obligation is a
series of services that form part of a single performance obligation satisfied over time. Revenue for transactions assigned a stand-alone selling price is
recognized in the period which the transaction is executed. Custodial service fees are billed monthly in arrears. The Company has agreements with third
parties who provide safeguarding, recordkeeping and administrative services for their clients. The Company controls the services provided and acts as a
principal in the relationship. Therefore, custodial service revenue is recorded gross of fees paid to third parties.
Costs to Obtain a Contract
Incremental first year commissions directly associated with new separate account and collective investment trust contracts are capitalized and amortized
on a straight-line basis over the estimated customer contract period of 7 years for separate accounts and 3 years for collective investment trust contracts. Refer
to Note 3 for further discussion.
Advisory Agreements
The Company derives significant revenue from its role as advisor to affiliated mutual funds and collective investment trusts. Fees earned for advisory
related services provided were approximately $54.6 million and $81.6 million for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively, which
represents greater than 10% of revenue in each period.
Cash and Cash Equivalents
The Company generally considers all highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less to be cash equivalents. Cash and cash
equivalents are primarily held in operating accounts at major financial institutions and also in money market securities. Cash equivalents are stated at cost,
which approximates market value due to the short-term maturity of these investments. The fair value of cash equivalents have been classified as Level 1 in
accordance with the fair value hierarchy.
Investment Securities
Investment securities are classified as either trading, equity method investments or available-for-sale and are carried at fair value. Fair value is
determined based on quoted market prices in active markets for identical or similar instruments.
Investment securities classified as trading consist of equity securities, fixed income securities, and investments in mutual funds for which the Company
provides advisory services. Realized and unrealized gains and losses on trading securities are recorded in net gains (losses) on investments in the consolidated
statements of operations. At December 31, 2018 and 2017, trading securities consist of investments held by the Company for the purpose of providing initial
cash seeding for product development purposes. In addition, at December 31, 2018, trading securities consist of investments to hedge economic exposure to
market movements on its deferred compensation plan.
Investments classified as equity method investments represent seed investments in which the Company owns between 20-50% of the outstanding voting
interests in the affiliated fund or when it is determined that the Company is able to exercise significant influence but not control over the investments. If the
seed investment results in significant influence, but not control, the investment will be accounted for as an equity method investment. When using the equity
method, the Company recognizes its share of the investee's net income or loss for the period which is recorded in net gains (losses) on investments in the
consolidated statements of operations.
Investment securities classified as available-for-sale consist of U.S. Treasury notes, corporate bonds and other short-term investments. Unrealized gains
and losses on available-for-sale securities are excluded from earnings and are reported, net of deferred income tax, as a separate component of accumulated
other comprehensive income in stockholders’ equity until
F-11

Manning & Napier, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
realized. The Company periodically reviews each individual security position that has an unrealized loss, or impairment, to determine if that impairment is
other-than-temporary. If impairment is determined to be other-than-temporary, the carrying value of the security will be written down to fair value and the loss
will be recognized in earnings. Realized gains and losses on sales of available-for-sale securities are computed on a specific identification basis and are
recorded in net gains (losses) on investments in the consolidated statements of operations.
Accounts Receivable
Accounts receivable represents the Company's unconditional rights to consideration arising from its performance under separately managed account,
mutual fund and collective investment trust, distribution and shareholder servicing and custodial contracts. The Company’s accounts receivable balances do
not include any significant allowance for doubtful accounts nor has any significant bad debt expense attributable to accounts receivable been recorded for the
years ended December 31, 2018 or 2017. Accounts receivable are stated at cost, which approximates market value due to the short-term collection of
balances. The fair value of accounts receivable have been classified as Level 1 in accordance with the fair value hierarchy.
Property and Equipment
Property and equipment are recorded at cost, less accumulated depreciation. Property and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
applicable life of the asset class. Depreciation is calculated for computer software, office equipment, and furniture and fixtures using useful lives of 3, 5, and
7 years, respectively. Internal and external costs incurred in connection with developing or obtaining software for internal use are capitalized and amortized
over the estimated useful lives of the software, which range from three to five years, beginning when the software project is complete and the application is
put into production. Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset or the remaining expected lease term.
Gains or losses upon sale or other disposition of fixed assets, are included in the consolidated statements of operations.
Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess cost over the fair value of the identifiable net assets of acquired companies. The Company attributes all goodwill to its
single reporting unit. Goodwill is tested for impairment annually during the fourth quarter or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying value may not be recoverable. There were no facts or circumstances occurring during 2018 or 2017 suggesting possible impairment.
Intangible Assets
Amortizing identifiable intangible assets generally represent the cost of client relationships and trademarks acquired. In valuing these assets, the
Company makes assumptions regarding useful lives and projected growth rates, and significant judgment is required. The Company periodically reviews its
identifiable intangible assets for impairment as events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of such assets may not be recoverable. If
the carrying amounts of those assets exceed their respective fair values, additional impairment tests are performed to measure the amount of the impairment
losses, if any.
Non-amortizing intangible assets generally represent the cost of mutual fund management contracts acquired. Non-amortizing intangible assets are
tested for impairment in the fourth quarter of each fiscal year, or more frequently if events or circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be
recoverable, by comparing the fair values of the management contracts acquired to their carrying values. The Company establishes fair value for purposes of
impairment test using the income approach. If the carrying value of a management contract acquired exceeds its fair value, an impairment loss is recognized
equal to that excess.
Leases
Rent under non-cancelable operating leases with scheduled rent increases is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease term, beginning on the
date of initial possession or the effective date of the lease agreement. Allowances and other lease incentives provided by the Company’s landlords are
amortized on a straight-line basis as a reduction of rent expense. The difference between straight-line rent expense and rent paid and the unamortized deferred
lease costs and build-out allowances are recorded as deferred rent liability in the consolidated statements of financial condition.
Equity-Based Compensation
The Company measures the cost of employee services received in exchange for an award of equity instruments based on the grant-date fair value of the
award. The Company recognizes this cost over the period during which an employee is required to provide service in exchange for the award, and accounts
for forfeitures as they occur. See Note 13 for additional information on equity-based compensation.
Deferred Compensation
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The Company issues deferred cash awards to certain employees which are linked in value to selected Manning & Napier series of mutual funds under
its 2018 Long-Term Incentive Plan. The employees earn a return linked to the appreciation or depreciation based on these series of mutual funds. The
Company currently hedges economically the exposure to market movements on its deferred compensation plan by holding investments in the Manning &
Napier series of mutual funds on its balance sheet. The Company recognizes as compensation expense the value of the liability to employees, including the
appreciation or depreciation of the liability, over the award's vesting period in proportion to the vested amount of the award. The Company immediately
recognizes the full value of the related investment, and any subsequent appreciation or depreciation of the investment, in Net gains (losses) on investments in
the consolidated statements of operations.
Income Taxes
The Company records a tax provision for the anticipated tax consequences of the reported results of operations. The provision for income taxes is
computed using the asset and liability method, under which deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the expected future tax consequences of
temporary differences between the financial reporting and tax basis of assets and liabilities, and for operating losses and tax credit carryforwards. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are measured using the currently enacted tax rates that apply to taxable income in effect for the years in which those tax assets are
expected to be realized or settled. The Company records a valuation allowance, if necessary, to reduce deferred tax assets to the amount that is believed more
likely than not to be realized.
The Company recognizes tax benefits from uncertain tax positions only if it is more likely than not that the tax position will be sustained upon
examination by the taxing authorities, based on the technical merits of the position. The tax benefits recognized in the financial statements from such
positions are then measured based on the largest benefit that has a greater than 50% likelihood of being realized upon ultimate settlement.
Comprehensive Income (Loss)
Comprehensive income is a measure of income which includes net income (loss) and other comprehensive income (loss). Other comprehensive income
(loss) consists of the change in unrealized gains and losses on available-for-sale investments. The changes in the balances of components comprising other
comprehensive income (loss) are presented in the accompanying consolidated statements of comprehensive income for the years ended December 31, 2018
and 2017.
Loss Contingencies
The Company accrues for estimated costs, including legal costs related to existing lawsuits, claims and proceedings when it is probable that a liability
has been incurred and the costs can be reasonably estimated. Potential loss contingencies and related accruals are reviewed at least quarterly and are adjusted
to reflect the impact and status of settlements, rulings, advice of counsel and other information pertinent to a particular matter. Significant differences could
exist between the actual cost required to investigate, litigate and/or settle a claim or the ultimate outcome of a suit and management’s estimate. These
differences could have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements. No loss accruals were recorded as of December 31, 2018 and
2017.
Recent Accounting Pronouncements
In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606). The revenue standard contains principals to
determine the measurement of revenue and timing of recognition and also impacts the accounting for incremental costs to obtain a contract. The Company
adopted the new standard on its effective date of January 1, 2018. Refer to Note 3 for further discussion regarding the impact of adoption of this standard.
In January 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-01, Recognition and Measurement of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities, which requires all equity
investments to be measured at fair value with changes in the fair value recognized through net income. The guidance is effective on January 1, 2018. The
Company's adoption of ASU 2016-01 on January 1, 2018 did not have a material impact on its consolidated financial statements.
In August 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-15, Statement of Cash Flows (Topic 230), Classification of Certain Cash Receipts and Cash Payments, to
clarify guidance on the classification of certain cash receipts and cash payments in the statement of cash flows. The FASB issued the ASU with the intent of
reducing diversity in practice regarding eight types of cash flows. The ASU is effective for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2017,
including interim periods within those annual reporting periods. The Company's adoption of ASU 2016-15 on January 1, 2018 did not have a material impact
on its consolidated financial statements.
Recent Accounting Pronouncements Not Yet Adopted
In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842), which is intended to increase transparency and comparability among
organizations by recognizing all lease transactions (with terms in excess of 12 months) on the balance sheet as a lease liability and a right-of-use asset (as
defined). In July 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-11, Leases - Targeted
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Improvements, which provides an optional transition method related to implementing the new lease standard. Under this new transition method, an entity
initially applies the new leases standard at the adoption date and recognizes a cumulative-effect adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings in the
period of adoption. The Company plans to adopt the new standard on January 1, 2019, using the optional transition method. The Company is currently
evaluating the impact of adoption on its consolidated financial statements. The Company expects that the adoption will result in an increase in total assets and
total liabilities as of January 1, 2019 and is currently assessing the expected impact, if any, to its consolidated statements of operations.
In January 2017, the FASB issued ASU 2017-04, Intangibles - Goodwill and Other (Topic 350), Simplifying the Test for Goodwill Impairment, which
simplifies the accounting for goodwill impairments by eliminating step two from the goodwill impairment test. The ASU requires goodwill impairments to be
measured on the basis of the fair value of the reporting unit relative to the reporting unit's carrying amount rather than on the basis of the implied amount of
goodwill relative to the goodwill balance of the reporting unit. The ASU is effective for annual and interim impairment tests for periods beginning after
December 15, 2019. Early adoption is allowed for annual and interim impairment tests occurring after January 1, 2017. The Company is evaluating the effect
of adopting this new accounting standard.
In February 2018, the FASB issued ASU No. 2018-02, Income Statement - Reporting Comprehensive Income (Topic 220): Reclassification of Certain
Tax Effects from Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income. The ASU requires a reclassification from accumulated other comprehensive income to retained
earnings for stranded tax effects resulting from the newly enacted federal corporate income tax rate as a result of the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act. The amount of
the reclassification is the difference between the historical corporate income tax rate and the newly enacted 21% corporate income tax rate. The ASU will be
effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2018, with early adoption permitted. The Company is evaluating the effect of adopting this new
accounting standard.
Note 3—Revenue, Contract Assets and Contract Liabilities
Adoption of ASU 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606)
On January 1, 2018, the Company adopted Topic 606 using the modified retrospective approach with the cumulative effect of initial application
recognized January 1, 2018. Results for reporting periods beginning after January 1, 2018 are presented under Topic 606, while prior period amounts are not
adjusted and continue to be reported in accordance with the Company's historic accounting policies under Topic 605. The Company elected the practical
expedient to adjust for active contracts that existed at the date of adoption. A reduction to opening shareholders' equity and noncontrolling interests of $1.5
million, net of taxes, as of January 1, 2018 has been recorded due to the cumulative impact of adopting Topic 606 related to the capitalization of incremental
contract costs.
While there were no changes in the timing of revenue recognition, upon the adoption of Topic 606, the Company changed the presentation of certain
revenue related costs on a gross versus net basis. The changes did not have a significant impact to total revenue, distribution, servicing and custody expenses
and other operating costs, and had no impact on net income. Changes in the presentation of revenue related costs on a gross versus net basis are summarized
below:
•

Fees in the amount $2.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2018 due to third parties who provide record-keeping and administrative services
for employee benefit plans participating in the Company's collective investment trusts are presented net as a reduction of mutual fund and collective
investment trust revenue. Prior to the adoption of Topic 606 third party record-keeper fees associated with the Company's collective investment trusts
were reported as distribution, servicing and custody expense.

•

Fees in the amount of $2.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2018 due to a third party who provides accounting and administrative services
on behalf of the Company to its affiliated mutual fund are presented as other operating costs. Prior to the adoption of Topic 606, these fees were
presented as a reduction of other revenue.

•

Fees in the amount of $0.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2018 due to a third party who provides safeguarding and administrative services
on behalf of the Company are presented as distribution, servicing and custody expense. Prior to the adoption of Topic 606, these fees were presented
as a reduction of custodial service revenue.
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Disaggregated Revenue
The following table represents the Company’s separately managed account and mutual fund and collective investment trust investment management
revenue by investment portfolio during the year ended December 31, 2018:
Year ended December 31, 2018
Mutual funds and
collective investment
trusts

Separately managed
accounts

Total

(in thousands)

Blended Asset

$

Equity
Fixed Income
Total

$

71,730

$

25,421

$

97,151

22,804

15,987

38,791

2,589

54

2,643

97,123

$

41,462

$

138,585

Accounts Receivable
Accounts receivable as of December 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017 consisted of the following:
December 31, 2018

December 31, 2017

(in thousands)

Accounts receivable - third parties

$

5,342

$

11,447

Accounts receivable - affiliated mutual funds and collective investment trusts
Total accounts receivable

$

7,278

$

15,337

6,105

8,059

Accounts receivable: Accounts receivable represents the Company's unconditional rights to consideration arising from its performance under separately
managed account, mutual fund and collective investment trust, distribution and shareholder servicing, and custodial service contracts. Accounts receivable
balances do not include an allowance for doubtful accounts nor has any significant bad debt expense attributable to accounts receivable been recorded during
the years ended December 31, 2018 or 2017.
Advisory and Distribution Agreements
The Company earns investment advisory fees, distribution fees and administrative service fees under agreements with affiliated mutual funds and
collective investment trusts. Fees earned for advisory and distribution services provided were approximately $54.6 million and $81.6 million during the years
ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively, which represents greater than 10% of revenue in each period. The following provides amounts due from
affiliated mutual funds and collective investment trusts reported within accounts receivable in the consolidated statement of financial condition as of
December 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017:
December 31, 2018

December 31, 2017

(in thousands)

Affiliated mutual funds (1)

$

Affiliated collective investment trusts

4,802

$

1,303

Accounts receivable - affiliated mutual funds and collective investment trusts

$

6,105

6,219
1,840

$

8,059

________________________
(1) December 31, 2017 balance includes $0.7 million of distribution and servicing fees receivable, which in the prior fiscal period were reflected in
"Accounts Receivable". This amount was reclassified to conform to the current period presentation (Note 2).
Contract assets and liabilities
Accrued accounts receivable: Accrued accounts receivable represents the Company's contract asset for revenue that has been recognized in advance of
billing separately managed account contracts. Consideration for the period billed in arrears is dependent on the client’s AUM on a future billing date and
therefore conditional as of the reporting period end. During the year ended December 31, 2018, revenue was decreased by less than $0.1 million for changes
in transaction price. Accrued accounts receivable of $0.2 million is reported within prepaid expenses and other assets in the consolidated statement of
financial condition as of December 31, 2018.
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Deferred revenue: Deferred revenue is recorded when consideration is received or unconditionally due in advance of providing services to the
Company's customer. Revenue recognized during the year ended December 31, 2018 that was included in deferred revenue at the beginning of the period was
approximately $9.9 million.
Costs to obtain a contract: Incremental first year commissions directly associated with new separate account and collective investment trust contracts
are capitalized and amortized straight-line over an estimated customer contract period of 7 years for separate accounts and 3 years for collective investment
trust contracts. The total net asset as of December 31, 2018 was approximately $1.2 million. Amortization expense included in compensation and related costs
totaled approximately $0.5 million during the year ended December 31, 2018. An impairment loss of approximately $0.3 million was recognized during the
year ended December 31, 2018 related to contract acquisition costs for client contracts that canceled during the period.
Note 4—Noncontrolling Interests
Manning & Napier holds an economic interest of approximately 18.2% in Manning & Napier Group, but as managing member controls all of the
business and affairs of Manning & Napier Group. As a result, the Company consolidates the financial results of Manning & Napier Group and records a
noncontrolling interest on its consolidated statement of financial conditions with respect to the remaining approximately 81.8% economic interest in
Manning & Napier Group held by M&N Group Holdings and MNCC. Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests on the consolidated statements of
operations represents the portion of earnings attributable to the economic interest in Manning & Napier Group held by the noncontrolling interests.
The following provides a reconciliation from “Income before provision for income taxes” to “Net income attributable to Manning & Napier, Inc.”:
Year Ended December 31,
2018

2017
(in thousands)

Income before provision for income taxes

$

Less: income (loss) before provision for income taxes of Manning & Napier, Inc. (1)
Income before provision for income taxes, as adjusted
Controlling interest percentage (2)

$

Plus: income (loss) before provision for income taxes of Manning & Napier, Inc. (1)
Income before income taxes attributable to Manning & Napier, Inc.
(3)

12,847

24,360

55,030
17.7%

4,432

9,750

1,272

12,847

5,704

22,597

2,507

Net income attributable to Manning & Napier, Inc.

$

67,877

1,272
18.2%

Net income attributable to controlling interest

Less: provision for income taxes of Manning & Napier, Inc.

25,632

3,197

19,010
$

3,587

__________________________
(1) Manning & Napier, Inc. incurs certain income or expenses that are only attributable to it and are therefore excluded from the net income attributable to
noncontrolling interests.
(2) Income before provision for income taxes is allocated to the controlling interest based on the percentage of units of Manning & Napier Group held by
Manning & Napier, Inc. The amount represents the Company's weighted ownership of Manning & Napier Group for the respective periods.
(3) The consolidated provision for income taxes is equal to the sum of (i) the provision for income taxes for entities other than Manning & Napier, Inc.
and (ii) the provision for income taxes of Manning & Napier, Inc. which includes all U.S. federal and state income taxes. The consolidated provision
for income taxes totaled approximately $2.6 million and $19.4 million for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.
A total of 63,349,721 units of Manning & Napier Group are held by the noncontrolling interests as of December 31, 2018. Pursuant to the terms of the
exchange agreement entered into at the time of the Company's initial public offering, such units may be exchangeable for shares of the Company's Class A
common stock. For any units exchanged, the Company will (i) pay an amount of cash equal to the number of units exchanged multiplied by the value of one
share of the Company's Class A common stock less a market discount and expected expenses, or, at the Company's election, (ii) issue shares of the
Company's Class A common stock on a one-for-one basis, subject to customary adjustments. As the Company receives units of Manning & Napier Group that
are exchanged, the Company's ownership of Manning & Napier Group will increase.
During the year ended December 31, 2018, M&N Group Holdings and MNCC exchanged a total of 581,344 Class A units of Manning & Napier Group
for approximately $1.9 million in cash. Subsequent to the exchange, the Class A units were retired. In addition, during the year ended December 31, 2018,
Class A common stock was issued under the 2011 Equity
F-16

Manning & Napier, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Compensation Plan (the "Equity Plan") for which Manning & Napier, Inc. acquired an equivalent number of Class A units of Manning & Napier Group, net
of forfeitures of unvested restricted stock awards.
The following provides a summary of the transactions that have impacted the Company's equity ownership interest in Manning & Napier Group during
the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017:
Manning & Napier Group Class A Units Held
Noncontrolling
Interests

Manning & Napier

As of January 1, 2017
Class A Units issued

13,826,575
(1)

As of December 31, 2017

—

79,611,146

—

17.4%

46,467

—%

(1,853,506)

(1,853,506)

0.4%

13,873,042

63,931,065

77,804,107

17.8%

253,694

—

253,694

0.3%

(581,344)

0.1%

Class A Units issued
Class A Units exchanged
As of December 31, 2018

65,784,571

46,467

Class A Units exchanged

Manning & Napier
Ownership %

Total

—
14,126,736

(581,344)
63,349,721

77,476,457

18.2%

_____________________
(1) The impact of the transaction of Manning & Napier's ownership was less than 0.1%.
Since the Company continues to have a controlling interest in Manning & Napier Group, the aforementioned changes in ownership of Manning &
Napier Group were accounted for as equity transactions under ASC 810, Consolidation. Additional paid-in capital and noncontrolling interests in the
Consolidated Statements of Financial Position are adjusted to reallocate the Company's historical equity to reflect the change in ownership of Manning &
Napier Group.
During the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Company made approximately $13.1 million and $32.2 million, respectively, in distributions
to noncontrolling interests. None of these distributions were payments pursuant to the tax receivable agreement (Note 14).
Note 5—Investment Securities
The following table represents the Company’s investment securities holdings at December 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017:
December 31, 2018
Unrealized
Gains

Cost

Unrealized
Losses

Fair
Value

(in thousands)

Available-for-sale securities
Fixed income securities

$

15,488

$

—

$

(75)

$

15,413

U.S. Treasury notes
Short-term investments

21,613

36

—

21,649

45,879

—

—

45,879
82,941

Trading securities
Equity securities

4,683

Mutual funds

3,566
8,249

Total investment securities

$
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December 31, 2017
Unrealized
Gains

Cost

Unrealized
Losses

Fair
Value

(in thousands)

Available-for-sale securities
Fixed income securities

$

19,589

$

—

$

(29)

$

19,560

U.S. Treasury notes

22,428

—

(42)

22,386

Short-term investments

22,323

—

—

22,323
64,269

Trading securities
Equity securities

3,548

Mutual funds

1,409
4,957

Equity method investments
Mutual funds

1,178

Total investment securities

$

70,404

Investment securities are classified as either trading, equity method investments or available-for-sale and are carried at fair value. Fair value is
determined based on quoted market prices in active markets for identical or similar instruments.
Investment securities classified as trading consist of equity securities, fixed income securities, and investments in mutual funds for which the Company
provides advisory services. At December 31, 2018 and 2017, trading securities consist of investments held by the Company to provide initial cash seeding for
product development purposes. In addition, at December 31, 2018, trading securities consist of investments to hedge economic exposure to market
movements on its deferred compensation plan. The Company recognized approximately $1.5 million of net unrealized losses and $1.8 million of net
unrealized gains related to investments classified as trading securities for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.
Investments classified as equity method investments represent seed investments in which the Company owns between 20%-50% of the outstanding
voting interests in the affiliated fund or when it is determined that the Company is able to exercise significant influence but not control over the investments.
Investment securities classified as available-for-sale consist of U.S. Treasury notes, corporate bonds and other short-term investments to optimize cash
management opportunities and for compliance with certain regulatory requirements. As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, approximately $0.6 million of the
U.S. Treasury notes is considered restricted. The Company periodically reviews each individual security position that has an unrealized loss, or impairment,
to determine if that impairment is other-than-temporary. No other-than-temporary impairment charges have been recognized by the Company during the years
ended December 31, 2018 or 2017.
The table below presents realized gains and losses on the sale of all securities for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017:
Year ended December 31,
2018

2017
(in thousands)

Gross realized investment gains

$

Gross realized investment losses

401

$

(347)

Net realized gains (losses)

$

54

1,670
(1,069)

$

601

Note 6—Fair Value Measurements
Fair value is defined as the price that the Company would receive upon selling an investment in an orderly transaction to an independent buyer in the
principal or most advantageous market of the investment. A fair value hierarchy is provided that gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets and liabilities (Level 1) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3).
The following three-tier fair value hierarchy prioritizes the inputs used in measuring fair value:
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•

Level 1—observable inputs such as quoted prices in active markets for identical securities;

•

Level 2—other significant observable inputs (including but not limited to quoted prices for similar securities, interest rates, prepayment rates, credit
risk, etc.); and

•

Level 3—significant unobservable inputs (including the Company’s own assumptions in determining the fair value of investments).
The following provides the hierarchy of inputs used to derive the fair value of the Company’s assets as of December 31, 2018 and 2017:

December 31, 2018
Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Totals

(in thousands)

Equity securities

$

4,683

Fixed income securities
Mutual funds

$

—

$

—

$

4,683

—

15,413

—

15,413

3,566

—

—

3,566

—

21,649

—

21,649

43,914

1,965

—

45,879

U.S. Treasury notes
Short-term investments
Total assets at fair value

$

52,163

$

39,027

$

—

$

91,190

Contingent consideration liability

$

—

$

—

$

—

$

—

Total liabilities at fair value

$

—

$

—

$

—

$

—

December 31, 2017
Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Totals

(in thousands)

Equity securities

$

Fixed income securities
Mutual funds
U.S. Treasury notes
Short-term investments

3,548

$

—

$

—

$

3,548

—

19,560

—

19,560

2,587

—

—

2,587

—

22,386

—

22,386

22,323

—

—

22,323

Total assets at fair value

$

28,458

$

41,946

$

—

$

70,404

Contingent consideration liability

$

—

$

—

$

—

$

—

Total liabilities at fair value

$

—

$

—

$

—

$

—

Short-term investments consists of certificate of deposits ("CDs") that are stated at cost, which approximate fair value due to the short maturity of the
investments and U.S. Treasury bills.
Valuations of investments in fixed income securities and U.S. Treasury notes and bills can generally be obtained through independent pricing services.
For most bond types, the pricing service utilizes matrix pricing, which considers one or more of the following factors: yield or price of bonds of comparable
quality, coupon, maturity, current cash flows, type and current day trade information, as well as dealer supplied prices. These valuations are categorized as
Level 2 in the hierarchy.
Contingent consideration was a component of the Company's purchase price of Rainier in 2016 of additional cash payments of up to $32.5 million over
the period ending December 31, 2019, contingent upon Rainier’s achievement of certain financial targets. The fair value of the contingent consideration is
calculated on a quarterly basis by forecasting Rainier’s adjusted earnings before interest, taxes and amortization ("EBITA") over the contingency period.
There were no changes in contingent consideration liability measured at fair value using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) for the twelve months
ended December 31, 2018.
The Company’s policy is to recognize transfers in and transfers out of the valuation levels as of the beginning of the reporting period. There were no
significant transfers between Levels during the year ended December 31, 2018 or 2017.
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Note 7—Property and Equipment
Property and equipment as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 consisted of the following:
December 31,
2018

2017
(in thousands)

Furniture and fixtures

$

2,506

$

2,519

Office equipment

4,146

4,841

Computer software

4,855

3,816

Leasehold improvements
Less: Accumulated depreciation

5,469

5,607

16,976

16,783

(11,327)

Property and equipment, net

$

(11,376)

5,649

$

5,407

Depreciation expense is included in other operating costs and totaled approximately $1.7 million for both years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017.
The Company has evaluated its property and equipment for impairment under the current accounting standards and has concluded that no impairment
loss has occurred as of December 31, 2018 and 2017.
Note 8—Goodwill and Intangible Assets
Goodwill
The carrying amount of goodwill was $4.8 million at both December 31, 2018 and 2017, and there was no accumulated impairment. There were no
changes in the carrying value of goodwill during the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017.
The Company completed its goodwill impairment testing in the fourth quarter of 2018 and determined that there were no facts and circumstances
occurring during 2018 suggesting possible impairment. No impairment of goodwill was recognized during the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017.
Intangible Assets
The following table reflects the components of intangible assets as of December 31, 2018 and 2017:
December 31,
2018

2017
(in thousands)

Intangible assets subject to amortization:
Cost - Separately managed account client relationships

$

Accumulated amortization - Separately managed account client relationships

897

$

(897)

Cost - Trademark

897
(897)

340

340

(190)

(145)

150

195

Cost - Mutual fund and collective trust contracts

2,578

2,578

Mutual fund and collective trust contracts

2,578

2,578

Accumulated amortization - Trademark
Intangible assets subject to amortization, net
Indefinite-lived intangible assets:

$

Total intangible assets, net

2,728

$

There were no facts or circumstances occurring during the years ended December 31, 2018 or 2017 suggesting possible impairment.
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Amortization expense was less than $0.1 million for both the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017. As of December 31, 2018, intangible assets
subject to amortization are being amortized over a weighted-average remaining life of 1.7 years. The estimated amortization expense to be recognized over
the next 5 years is as follows:
Year Ending December 31,

Estimated Amortization Expense

2019

$

(in thousands)

45

2020

45

2021

45

2022

15

2023

—

Thereafter

—
$

Total

150

During 2017, the Company entered into an agreement to sell certain Rainier U.S. mutual funds to a third party, with the selling price based on total
assets under management on the respective transaction closing dates. During the fourth quarter of 2017, the Company sold two mutual funds for
approximately $1.0 million and sold the remaining fund during the first quarter of 2018 for approximately $2.1 million. The carrying value of the intangible
assets for client relationships associated with these products was zero due to an impairment loss recognized during a prior period. The Company recognized a
gain of approximately $2.1 million and $1.0 million during the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively, for the sale of these funds, as included
in other operating costs in the consolidated statements of operations.
Note 9—Accrued Expenses and Other Liabilities
Accrued expenses and other liabilities as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 consisted of the following:
December 31,
2018

2017
(in thousands)

Accrued bonuses and sales commissions

$

16,121

$

19,153

Accrued payroll and benefits

4,087

3,877

Accrued sub-transfer agent fees

1,451

2,445

Dividends payable on Class A common stock

306

1,203

Amounts payable under tax receivable agreement

674

2,549

2,487

3,120

Other accruals and liabilities
$

25,126

$

32,347

During the year ended December 31, 2018, the Company commenced a voluntary employee retirement offering (the "offering"), available to employees
meeting certain age and length-of-service requirements as well as business function criteria. Employees electing to participate in the offering were subject to
approval by the Company, and received enhanced separation benefits. These employees are required to render service until their agreed upon termination date
(which varies from person to person) in order to receive the benefits and as such, the liability will be recognized ratably over the applicable service period.
The Company estimates the total employee severance costs under the offering to be approximately $2.6 million, of which approximately $2.2 million
was recognized during the year ended December 31, 2018. Also during the year ended December 31, 2018, the Company recognized approximately $1.5
million of severance costs as a result of involuntary workforce reductions. Employee severance costs recognized are included in compensation and related
costs in the consolidated statements of operations.
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The following table summarizes the changes in accrued employee severance costs recognized by the Company for the year ended December 31, 2018,
as included in accrued expenses and other liabilities in the consolidated statements of financial condition:
Twelve months ended
December 31, 2018
(in thousands)

Accrued employee severance costs as of December 31, 2017

$

659

Employee severance costs recognized

3,694

Payment of employee severance costs

(2,711)
$

Accrued employee severance costs as of December 31, 2018

1,642

Note 10—Commitments and Contingencies
The Company may from time to time enter into agreements that contain certain representations and warranties and which provide general
indemnifications. The Company may also serve as a guarantor of such obligations. The Company’s maximum exposure under these arrangements is
unknown, as this would involve future claims that may be made against the Company that have not yet occurred. The Company expects any risk of liability
associated with such guarantees to be remote.
Regulation
As an investment adviser to a variety of investment products, the Company and its affiliated broker-dealer are subject to routine reviews and inspections
by the SEC and the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority, Inc.. Additionally, the Company could be subject to non-routine reviews and inspections by the
National Futures Association and U.S. Commodity Futures Trading Commission in regards to the Company’s deminimis exposure to commodity interest
investments in the mutual funds and collective investment trust vehicles it operates. From time to time the Company may also be subject to claims, be
involved in various legal proceedings arising in the ordinary course of its business and other contingencies. The Company does not believe that the outcome
of any of these reviews, inspections or other legal proceedings will have a material impact on its consolidated financial statements; however, litigation is
subject to many uncertainties, and the outcome of individual litigated matters is difficult to predict. The Company will establish accruals for matters that are
probable, can be reasonably estimated, and may take into account any related insurance recoveries to the extent of such recoveries. As of December 31, 2018
and 2017, the Company has not accrued for any such claims, legal proceedings, or other contingencies.
Lease Commitments
The Company has several operating leases for office space, and leases its primary office facilities in Fairport, New York under an operating lease. The
Company also rents additional office space in various other locations throughout the United States. Total rental expense for all leases amounted to
approximately $3.7 million and $4.2 million for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively. As of December 31, 2018, minimum rent
payments relating to the office leases for years subsequent to 2018, are as follows:
Year Ending December 31,

Minimum Payments
(in thousands)

2019

$

3,748

2020

3,780

2021

3,712

2022

3,668

2023

3,369

Thereafter

13,397
$

31,674

Certain of the Company's operating leases have been subleased for which the Company will receive amounts totaling approximately $0.5 million over
the term of such leases.
As of December 31, 2018, the Company's contractual obligation for its primary office facilities was $26.1 million, or $2.9 million annually, under an
operating lease expiring on January 31, 2028.
At both December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Company had approximately $0.2 million and $0.3 million of total capital lease obligations, respectively.
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Note 11—Shareholders’ Equity and Capital Structure
The authorized capital stock of Manning & Napier consists of 300,000,000 shares of Class A common stock, par value $0.01 per share, and 2,000
shares of Class B common stock, par value $0.01 per share, and are further described below. In addition to the Class A and Class B common stock, the
Company has the authority to issue 100,000 shares of preferred stock, par value $0.01 per share.
Class A Common Stock
The holders of the Company’s Class A common stock are entitled to one vote for each share held of record on all matters submitted to a vote of
stockholders.
The holders of the Company’s Class A common stock are entitled to receive dividends, if declared by the Company’s board of directors, out of funds
legally available therefore, subject to any statutory or contractual restrictions on the payment of dividends.
The holders of the Company’s Class A common stock do not have preemptive, subscription, redemption or conversion rights.
Class B Common Stock
Pursuant to the Company's Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation the Company's Class B common stock entitles the holder thereof to a
majority of the vote on all matters submitted to a vote of stockholders. The Company's Class B common stock does not entitle the holder thereof to any right
to receive dividends or to receive a distribution upon the dissolution, liquidation or sale of all or substantially all of the Company's assets.
On November 17, 2017, all outstanding shares of the Company’s Class B common stock were cancelled and reverted to the status of authorized but
unissued shares of Class B common stock. The 1,000 shares of Class B common stock represented non-economic interests in the Company, were issued in
connection with the Company's initial public offering on November 17, 2011, and were held by William Manning, the Company's Chairman of the Board.
Voting
Generally, all matters to be voted on by stockholders must be approved by a majority of the votes entitled to be cast by all shares of Class A common
stock.
Shares Eligible for Future Sale
The Company is party to an exchange agreement with M&N Group Holding and MNCC, the other direct holders of all of the units of Manning &
Napier Group that are not held by the Company.
As of December 31, 2018, a total of 63,349,721 Class A units of Manning & Napier Group are held by the noncontrolling interests. Pursuant to the
terms of the exchange agreement entered into at the time of the Company's initial public offering, subject to certain restrictions, these units may be
exchangeable on an annual basis for shares of the Company’s Class A common stock. As of December 31, 2018, approximately 62.2 million Class A units of
Manning & Napier Group are eligible for exchange, of which approximately 60.0 million are held by William Manning. In the event that William Manning
maximizes his participation, certain restrictions are removed such that the total amount eligible would increase to approximately 63.3 million to allow for
other owners to participate in a similar proportion.
For any units of Manning & Napier Group exchanged, the Company will (i) pay an amount of cash equal to the number of units exchanged multiplied
by the value of one share of the Company’s Class A common stock less a market discount and expected expenses, or, at the Company’s election, (ii) issue
shares of the Company’s Class A common stock on a one-for-one basis, subject, in each case, to customary adjustments. As the Company receives units of
Manning & Napier Group that are exchanged, the Company’s ownership of Manning & Napier Group will increase. The decision whether to pay cash or issue
shares will be made by the independent members of the Company’s board of directors.
Note 12—Earnings per Common Share
Basic earnings per share (“basic EPS”) is computed using the two-class method to determine net income available to Class A common stock. The twoclass method includes an earnings allocation formula that determines earnings per share for each participating security according to dividends declared and
undistributed earnings for the period. The Company's restricted Class A common shares granted under the 2011 Equity Compensation Plan (the "Equity
Plan") have non-forfeitable dividend rights during their vesting period and are therefore considered participating securities under the two-class method. Under
the two-class method, the Company's net income available to Class A common stock is reduced by the earnings allocated to the unvested restricted Class A
common stock. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing net income available to Class A common stock by the weighted average number of common shares
outstanding during the period.
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Diluted earnings per share (“diluted EPS”) is computed under the more dilutive of either the treasury method or the two-class method. For the diluted
calculation, the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period is increased by the assumed conversion into Class A common
stock of the unvested equity awards and the exchangeable units of Manning & Napier Group, to the extent that such conversion would dilute earnings per
share.
The following is a reconciliation of the income and share data used in the basic and diluted earnings per share computations for the years ended
December 31, 2018 and 2017 under the two-class method:
Year Ended December 31,
2018

2017

(in thousands, except share data)

Net income attributable to controlling and noncontrolling interests

$

22,985

Less: net income attributable to noncontrolling interests

$

48,525

19,788

Net income attributable to Manning & Napier, Inc.

$

3,197

$

3,130

Less: allocation to participating securities

44,938
$

3,587

$

3,517

67

Net income available to Class A common stock
Weighted average shares of Class A common stock outstanding - basic

70

14,623,198

Dilutive effect from unvested equity awards
Weighted average shares of Class A common stock outstanding - diluted

14,164,037

6,972

72,988

14,630,170

14,237,025

Net income available to Class A common stock per share - basic

$

0.21

$

0.25

Net income available to Class A common stock per share - diluted

$

0.21

$

0.25

For the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, there were unvested equity awards of 1,602,337 and 790,000 respectively, excluded from the
calculation of diluted earnings per common share because the effect would have been anti-dilutive.
At December 31, 2018 and 2017 there were 63,349,721 and 63,931,065, respectively, Class A units of Manning & Napier Group which for each period,
subject to certain restrictions, may be exchangeable for up to an equivalent number of the Company’s Class A common shares. These units were not included
in the calculation of diluted earnings per common share for the respective periods because the effect would have been anti-dilutive.
Note 13—Equity Based Compensation
2011 Equity Compensation Plan
The Equity Plan was adopted by the Company's board of directors and approved by the Company's stockholders prior to the consummation of the IPO.
A total of 13,142,813 equity interests are authorized for issuance. The equity interests may be issued in the form of the Company's Class A common stock,
restricted stock units, units of Manning & Napier Group, or certain classes of membership interests in the Company which may convert into units of Manning
& Napier Group.
During the year ended December 31, 2018, 1,309,325 equity awards were granted under the Equity Plan.
The following table summarizes equity award activity for the year ended December 31, 2018 under the Company's Equity Plan:
Restricted
Stock Awards

Stock awards outstanding at January 1, 2018
Granted
Vested
Forfeited
Stock awards outstanding at December 31, 2018

Weighted Average Grant Date
Fair Value

852,123

$

12.09

1,309,325

$

2.07

(514,111)

$

7.70

(45,000)

$

12.20

$

5.31

1,602,337

The weighted average fair value of Equity Plan awards granted during the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 was $2.07 and $5.55, respectively,
based on the closing sale price of Manning & Napier Inc.'s Class A common stock as reported on the New York Stock Exchange on the date of grant, and,
when applicable, reduced by the present value of the dividends expected to be paid on the underlying shares during the requisite service period. Restricted
stock unit awards are not entitled to dividends declared on the underlying shares of Class A common stock until the awards vest.
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For each of the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Company recorded approximately $2.3 million of compensation expense related to
awards under the Equity Plan. The aggregate intrinsic value of awards that vested during the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 was approximately
$1.7 million and $1.2 million, respectively. As of December 31, 2018, there was unrecognized compensation expense related to 2011 Plan awards of
approximately $5.2 million, which the Company expects to recognize over a weighted average period of approximately 2.5 years.
During the year ended December 31, 2017 the Company withheld a total of 69,597 restricted shares as a result of net share settlements to satisfy
employee tax withholding obligations. The Company paid approximately $0.3 million in employee tax withholding obligations related to these settlements
during the year ended December 31, 2017. These net share settlements had the effect of shares repurchased and retired by the Company, as they reduced the
number of shares outstanding.
Note 14—Income Taxes
The Company is comprised of entities that have elected to be treated as either a limited liability company ("LLC"), or a “C-Corporation”. As such, the
entities functioning as LLCs are not liable for or able to benefit from U.S. federal and most state income taxes on their earnings, and earnings (losses) will be
included in the personal income tax returns of each entity’s unit holders. The entities functioning as C-Corporations are liable for or able to benefit from U.S.
federal, state and local income taxes on their earnings and losses, respectively.
During 2018, the Company completed its accounting for the tax effects of the enactment of U.S. tax reform which was signed into law on December 22,
2017. As of December 31, 2017, the Company made a reasonable estimate of the tax effect of the enactment and recognized provisional tax impacts related to
the revaluation of the Company's net deferred tax assets of approximately $16.5 million. As a result, the Company decreased its deferred tax asset related to
the tax receivable agreement ("TRA"), resulting in a $12.9 million reduction of the liability, representing 85% of the applicable cash savings. The Company
recognized no changes to the 2017 estimated provisional tax impact upon completion of its accounting in 2018.
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Components of the provision for income taxes consist of the following:
Year Ended December 31,
2018

2017
(in thousands)

Current
Federal

$

69

$

556

State and local

147

184

Current tax expense

216

740

Federal

1,339

16,137

State and local

1,092

2,475

Deferred

Deferred tax expense

2,431

Provision for income tax expense

$

2,647

18,612
$

19,352

The differences between income taxes computed using the U.S. federal income tax rate of 21% for the year ended December 31, 2018 and 34% for the
year ended December 31, 2017, and the provision for income taxes for continuing operations are as follows:
Year Ended December 31,
2018

2017
(in thousands)

Amount computed using the statutory rate

$

5,383

$

23,078

Increase (reduction) in taxes resulting from:
State and local taxes, including settlements and adjustments, net of federal benefit
Impact of enacted tax law changes
Net change in state deferred tax rate

193

408

—

16,512

1,316

Net adjustment to amounts payable under TRA
Benefit from the flow-through entities
Other, net

—

(281)

(4,372)

(4,067)

(15,163)

103

Provision for income taxes

$

2,647

(1,111)
$

19,352

The provision for income taxes includes a benefit attributable to the fact that the Company’s operations include a series of flow-through entities which
are generally not subject to federal and most state income taxes. Accordingly, a portion of the Company’s earnings are not subject to corporate level taxes. For
the year ended December 31, 2018, this favorable impact was partially offset by the $1.3 million provision recognized for the reduction in the Company's
effective tax rate. For the year ended December 31, 2017, the Company recognized a $16.5 million provision for the reduction in its effective tax rate
resulting from the enactment of U.S. tax reform.
Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities
As a result of Manning & Napier's purchase of Class A units of Manning & Napier Group or exchange for Class A common stock of Manning & Napier
for Class A units of Manning & Napier Group and Manning & Napier Group's election under Section 754 of the Internal Revenue Code, the Company
expects to benefit from depreciation and amortization deductions from an increase in tax basis of tangible and intangible assets of Manning & Napier Group.
Those deductions allocated to the Company will be taken into account in reporting the Company's taxable income.
In connection with the IPO, a TRA was entered into between Manning & Napier and the holders of Manning & Napier Group, pursuant to which
Manning & Napier is required to pay to such holders 85% of the applicable cash savings, if any, in U.S. federal, state, local and foreign income tax that
Manning & Napier actually realizes, or is deemed to realize in certain circumstances, as a result of (i) certain tax attributes of their units sold to Manning &
Napier or exchanged (for shares of Class A common stock) and that are created as a result of the sales or exchanges and payments under the TRA and (ii) tax
benefits related to imputed interest.
Under the TRA, Manning & Napier generally will retain the benefit of the remaining 15% of the applicable tax savings. There is a possibility that not
all of the 85% of the applicable cash savings will be paid to the selling or exchanging holder of
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Class A units. If it is determined that all or a portion of such applicable tax savings is in doubt, payment to such holders of Class A units will be the amount
attributable to the portion of the applicable tax savings that are determined not to be in doubt and the payment of the remainder at such time as it is reasonably
determined that the actual tax savings or that the amount is no longer in doubt.
At December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Company had recorded a total liability of approximately $18.0 million and $21.8 million, respectively,
representing the payments due to the selling unit holders under the TRA. Of these amounts, approximately $0.7 million and $2.5 million were included in
accrued expenses and other liabilities at December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively. Payments are anticipated to be made annually commencing from the date
of each event that gives rise to the TRA benefits. The timing of the payments is subject to certain contingencies including the Company having sufficient
taxable income to utilize all of the tax benefits defined in the TRA. The Company made payments pursuant to the TRA of approximately $2.5 million and
$2.4 million during the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.
Components of net deferred tax assets consist of the following:
December 31,
2018

2017
(in thousands)

Deferred tax assets
Tax receivable agreement

$

19,399

Bonus and commissions

$

22,680

408

Net operating loss carryforwards
Other
Total deferred tax assets

641

1,229

—

190

197

21,226

23,518

366

131

Deferred tax liabilities
Depreciation and amortization
Prepaid items
Total deferred tax liabilities
Net deferred tax assets

$

65

89

431

220

20,795

$

23,298

As of December 31, 2018, the Company had approximately $5.0 million net operating losses available to offset future taxable income for federal
income tax purposes that may be carried forward indefinitely and approximately $2.5 million for state income tax purposes that will expire through 2038 if
not utilized.
The Company has assessed the recoverability of the deferred tax assets and believes it is more likely than not that the assets will be realized. The
Company has not recorded a valuation allowance as of December 31, 2018 and 2017.
Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes
A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of the Company's liability for income taxes associated with unrecognized tax benefits is as
follows:
December 31,
2018

2017
(in thousands)

Balance as of January 1,

$

33

$

135

Increase related to current year tax positions

—

27

Decrease related to prior year tax positions

—

(129)

Balance as of December 31,

$

33

$

33

The Company’s policy regarding interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions is to recognize such items as a component of the provision for
income taxes. The Company recorded less than $0.1 million in interest and penalties in the consolidated statements of operations for the years ended
December 31, 2018 and 2017.
The Company does not expect that changes in the liability for unrecognized tax benefits during the next twelve months will have a significant impact on
the Company's financial position or results of operations.
F-27

Manning & Napier, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
The Company files income tax returns with Federal, state and local jurisdictions. The Company’s U.S. Federal and state tax matters for the years 2015
through 2017 remain subject to examination by the respective tax authorities.
Note 15—Related Party Transactions
Transactions with noncontrolling members
From time to time, the Company may be asked to provide certain services, including accounting, legal and other administrative functions for the
noncontrolling members of Manning & Napier Group. While immaterial, the Company has not received any reimbursement for such services.
The Company manages the personal funds and funds of affiliated entities of certain of the Company's executive officers and directors. Pursuant to the
respective investment management agreements, in some instances the Company waives or reduces its regular advisory fees for these accounts. The aggregate
value of the fees earned was approximately $0.1 million and $0.2 million in the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively. The aggregate value
of fees waived was less than $0.1 million and approximately $0.1 million in 2018 and 2017, respectively.
Affiliated fund transactions
The Company earns investment advisory fees and administrative service fees under agreements with affiliated mutual funds and collective investment
trusts. The aggregate value of revenue earned was $54.6 million and $81.6 million in the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively. Fees earned
for administrative services provided were approximately $2.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2018. See Note 3 for disclosure of amounts due from
affiliated mutual funds and collective investment trusts.
The Company incurs certain expenses on behalf of the collective investment trusts and has contractually agreed to limit its fees and reimburse expenses
to limit operating expenses incurred by certain affiliated fund series. The aggregate value of fees waived and expenses reimbursed to, or incurred for,
affiliated mutual funds and collective investment trusts was approximately $5.1 million and $6.5 million for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017,
respectively. As of December 31, 2018, the Company has recorded a receivable of approximately $0.2 million for expenses paid on behalf of an affiliated
mutual fund. These expenses are reimbursable to the Company under an agreement with the affiliated mutual fund, and are included within other long-term
assets on the consolidated statements of financial condition.
Note 16—Employee Benefit Plan
The Company offers the Manning & Napier Advisors, LLC 401(k) and Profit Sharing Plan (the “MNA Plan”) to all employees who meet the plan
criteria.
With respect to the 401(k) portion of the MNA Plan, participants may voluntarily contribute up to 75% of their regular salary subject to annual
limitations determined by the IRS. The Company matches an amount equivalent to 50% of a participant’s contribution, not to exceed 2% of their total
compensation. Matching contributions vest to the participants after three years of service. These contributions by the Company amounted to approximately
$1.0 million for both years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017.
With respect to the profit sharing portion of the MNA Plan, the Company may make annual profit sharing contributions, subject to certain limitations,
which vest immediately to individuals who are eligible. These contributions by the Company amounted to approximately $0.5 million and $1.0 million for the
years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.
Note 17—Subsequent Events
Distribution and Dividend
On March 5, 2019, the Board of Directors approved a distribution from Manning & Napier Group to Manning & Napier and the noncontrolling interests
of Manning & Napier Group. The amount of the distribution will be based on earnings for the quarter ended March 31, 2019, with a maximum amount of
$2.0 million. Concurrently, the Board of Directors declared a $0.02 per share dividend to the holders of Class A common stock. The dividend is payable on
May 1, 2019 to shareholders of record as of April 15, 2019.
Exchange of Class A units of Manning & Napier Group
The Company is nearing the completion of the 2019 exchange period whereby eligible Class A units of Manning & Napier Group held by M&N Group
Holdings and MNCC may be tendered for exchange. In connection with the exchange, the Company has the ability to pay an amount of cash equal to the
number of units exchanged multiplied by the value of one share of the Company's Class A common stock less a market discount and expected expenses, or at
the Company's election issue shares of Class A common stock on a one-for-one basis. Approximately 1.3 million of eligible Class A units of Manning &
Napier Group will be tendered for exchange. The Company anticipates the exchange will be finalized during the second quarter of 2019.
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MANNING & NAPIER, INC.
2011 EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN
RESTRICTED STOCK AWARD AGREEMENT
AGREEMENT, dated as of the date set forth in your Notice of Grant, between Manning & Napier, Inc., a Delaware
corporation (the “Company”), Manning & Napier Group, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (“MN Group”), and the
individual (the “Participant”) identified in the notice of restricted stock unit award grant ( the “Notice of Grant”) delivered to
Participant.

W I T N E S S E T H:
WHEREAS, the Company adopted the Manning & Napier, Inc. 2011 Equity Compensation Plan (the “Plan”), which Plan
authorizes, among other things, the grant of Stock-Based Awards, including, but not limited to, restricted stock units (“RSUs”) or
restricted stock shares (“RSSs” and together with the “RSUs”, the “Stock Grant”) pursuant to which Participants may receive
shares of Class A common stock, $.01 par value (“Class A Stock”) upon the vesting of the RSUs; and
WHEREAS, the Company’s Compensation Committee, as administrator of the Plan, has determined that it would be in the
best interests of the Company to make the Stock Grant documented herein and as managing member of MN Group caused MN
Group to take the necessary steps to comply with terms and conditions herein.
NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereto hereby agree as follows:
1
the Plan.

Definitions. Capitalized terms not defined in this Award Agreement shall have the meaning ascribed to such terms in

2 Stock Grant. Subject to the terms and conditions of the Plan and as set forth herein, the Company hereby grants to the
Participant, as of date hereof, the number of interests contained in the Stock Grant (the “Award”), as indicated in the Notice of
Grant. MN Group will issue supporting units on a one-for-one basis to the Company for each Award hereunder, either at the time of
vesting for RSUs or at the time of grant for RSSs. Upon termination of an Award, any such issued units to MNI shall be forfeited
back to MN Group to the extent unvested.
3 Status of RSUs and Stock Grant. Each RSU constitutes an unfunded and unsecured promise of the Company to deliver
(or cause to be delivered) to the Participant, subject to the terms of this Award Agreement, one share of Class A Stock (the “Share”
or “Shares” as the context requires) (or securities or other property equal to the Fair Market Value thereof) on the Scheduled
Vesting Date as defined herein. Each RSS shall consist of dividend paying, restricted Class A Stock, subject to the Scheduled
Vesting Date as defined herein. Such Class A Stock will be restricted from transfer during the vesting period and will be held on
behalf of the Participant at the Transfer Agent until the Scheduled Vesting Date.

4 Vesting. Subject to such further limitations as are provided in the Plan and as set forth herein, the RSUs and RSSs
covered by the Award shall vest as of the date(s) set forth in the Notice of Grant (the “Scheduled Vesting Date”) provided that the
Participant continues to provide services or to be in a service relationship with the Company, or one of its Affiliates (“Service”), as
of the Scheduled Vesting Date, provided further that upon the death of any Participant 100% vesting shall occur.1
5 Termination of Stock Grant.
(a) Except as otherwise provided in this Section 5 or the Notice of Grant, the Stock Grant, to the extent not previously
vested, shall terminate and become null and void upon the Participant’s ceasing for any reason to provide Services.
(b) In the sole discretion of the Committee (a “Committee Election”) and without any further action by or on behalf of the
Participant, upon a termination of Services, the Stock Grant, to the extent not previously vested, may become vested and the
Company in such case shall deliver (or cause to be delivered) the Shares with respect thereto.
(c) Clawback. If the Company’s Board of Directors or the Compensation Committee determines, in its sole discretion, that
Participant engaged in fraud or misconduct as a result of which the Company is required to, or decided to, restate its financial
statements, the Committee may, in its sole discretion, impose any or all of the following:

(x)

Immediate expiration of the Stock Grant, whether vested or not, if granted within the first 12 months after issuance or
filing of any financial statement that is being restated (the “Recovery Measurement Period”); and

(y)

Payment or transfer to the Company of the Gain from the Stock Grant, where the “Gain” consists of the greatest of (i)
the value of the Stock Grant on the applicable Grant Date pursuant to Section 2 above within the Recovery
Measurement Period, (ii) the value of Stock Grant received during the Recovery Measurement Period, as determined on
the date of the request by the Committee to pay or transfer, (iii) the gross (before tax) proceeds you received from any
sale of the Shares during the Recovery Measurement Period, and (iv) if transferred without sale during the Recovery
Measurement Period, the value of the Shares when so transferred. The amount paid or transferred to the Company shall
be adjusted to reflect any adjustment to the number of Shares finally awarded after application of the “Adjustments”
provisions above.

This remedy is in addition to any other remedies that the Company may have available in law or equity.
2

Payment is due in cash or cash equivalents within 10 days after the Committee provides written notice to you that it is enforcing
this provision. Payment will be calculated on a gross basis, without reduction for taxes or commissions. The Company may, but is
not required to, accept retransfer of Shares in lieu of cash payments.
6 Non−Transferability of Stock Grant. The RSUs, and any interest therein, shall not be assignable or transferable by the
Participant. The RSSs shall not be transferable by the Participant prior to the Scheduled Vesting Date, and thereafter transferability
shall be subject to Section 10 below. Unless otherwise noted in the Notice of Grant, the Stock Grant shall terminate and become
null and void immediately upon (i) the bankruptcy of the Participant, (ii) the Participant’s termination of Services (other than in
connection with a Committee Election upon a termination of Services by reason of the Participant’s death), or (iii) any attempted
assignment or transfer except as herein provided, including without limitation, any purported assignment, whether voluntary or by
operation of law, pledge, hypothecation or other disposition, attachment, trustee process or similar process, whether legal or
equitable, upon the RSUs.
7 No Special Rights. Neither the granting of the Stock Grant nor its vesting shall be construed to confer upon the
Participant any right with respect to the continuation of his or her service with the Company (or any Affiliate of the Company) or
interfere in any way with the right of the Company (or any Affiliate of the Company), subject to the terms of any separate
agreement to the contrary, at any time to terminate such service or to increase or decrease the compensation of the Participant from
the rate in existence as of the date hereof.
8 Representation. The Participant represents and warrants that he or she understands the Federal, state and local income
tax consequences of the granting of the Stock Grant to him or her and the vesting thereof. To the extent that the Company is
required to withhold any such taxes, then, unless both the Participant and the Committee have otherwise agreed upon alternate
arrangements, the Participant hereby agrees that the Company may deduct from any payments of any kind otherwise due to the
Participant the aggregate amount of such Federal, state and local taxes required to be so withheld, or if such payments are
inadequate to satisfy such Federal, state and local taxes, or if no such payments are due or to become due to the Participant, then,
the Participant agrees to provide the Company with cash funds or make other arrangements satisfactory to the Committee regarding
such payment. It is understood that all matters with respect to the total amount of taxes to be withheld in respect of any such
compensation income shall be determined by the Committee.
9 Noncompete; Nonsolicitation.
(a) In consideration of the granting of the Award, the Participant agrees that, if the Participant has been granted Awards
under the Plan and/or awards under the 2018 Long-Term Incentive Plan totaling more than $500,000 (valued at the time of grant)
during the term of Participant’s employment, the Participant shall not, during the entire term of the applicable Noncompete Period
(as defined below), directly or indirectly, engage in or become interested in, as owner, shareholder, partner, lender, investor,
director, officer, employee, consultant, agent, representative or otherwise, any Person engaged in any business competitive with that
of the
3

Company, MN Group or their Affiliates. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Participant shall not be deemed to have breached this
Section 9 by reason of purchasing stock in a corporation whose shares are listed on the New York Stock Exchange or quoted on
NASDAQ, provided that the Participant’s beneficial ownership (as defined in Rule 13d-3 under the Exchange Act) of any class of
equity securities in any such corporation is less than 5% of the aggregate number of outstanding shares of such class.
(b)
In consideration of the granting of the Award, the Participant agrees that during the entire term of the applicable
Noncompete Period, the Participant shall not, directly or indirectly, solicit any Person who is a Prospect of the Company, MN
Group or their Affiliates to become an investment advisory, financial brokerage, insurance brokerage, health consulting, employer
benefits, employee benefits or similar client of the Participant or any other Person.
(c) The Participant acknowledges and agrees that the covenants set forth in this Section 9 are reasonable and necessary for
the protection of the Company and MN Group. The Participant further agrees that irreparable injury will result to the Company and
MN Group in the event of any breach of the terms of Section 9, and that in the event of any actual or threatened breach of any of
the provisions contained in Section 9, the Company and MN Group will have no adequate remedy at law. The Participant
accordingly agrees that in the event of any actual or threatened breach by the Participant of any of the provisions contained in
Section 9, the Company or MN Group shall be entitled to seek such injunctive and other equitable relief as may be deemed
necessary or appropriate by a court of competent jurisdiction, without the necessity of showing actual monetary damages and
without posting any bond or other security. If any provision of this Section 9 is determined by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be not enforceable in the manner set forth herein, the Participant agrees that it is the intention of the parties that such provision
should be enforceable to the maximum extent permitted by law.
(d) For purposes of this Section 9, the term “Noncompete Period” means: (i) for areas within New York State (excluding
New York City), Ohio and Florida (the “Protected Areas”), the period from the date the Participant commenced Service with the
Company, MN Group or their Affiliates through the date that is twenty-four (24) months after his or her termination of Service with
the Company or its Affiliates, or (ii) for all U.S. States (including New York City) other than the Protected Areas in which the
Company, MN Group or their Affiliates do business, the period from the date the Participant commenced Service with the
Company, MN Group or their Affiliates through the date that is ninety (90) days after his or her termination of Service with the
Company or its Affiliates. For purposes of this Section 9, the term “Prospect” means any Person (i) who is on MN Group’s monthly
marketing group meeting list of prospects issued during the twelve months prior to termination of Service; (ii) who is on the
monthly, quarterly, or semiannual list of prospects submitted to MN Group’s products group manager (or Person fulfilling such
function) issued in the twelve months prior to termination of Service, (iii) who is on MN Group’s internal list of prospects, or
similar books and records, that each sales representative or client consultant (or their support staff) maintains in the twelve months
prior to termination of Service; or (iv) who has met with sales or marketing personnel of the Company, MN Group or their
Affiliates more than two times in the six months prior to termination of Service regarding the services provided by the Company,
MN Group or their Affiliates.
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(e) The Participant acknowledges and agrees that the provisions of this Section 9 shall survive and be enforceable by the
Company, MN Group or their Affiliates after the Participant ceases to be an employee of the Company, MN Group or any of their
Affiliates, unless the Participant is involuntarily terminated without cause by the Company, MN Group or any of their Affiliates (it
being understood that “cause” shall be determined at the sole, reasonable discretion of the Company, MN Group or the applicable
Affiliate). The provisions of this Section 9 shall supersede any non-compete language included in any Restricted Stock Award
Agreement previously executed by the Participant, the Company and MN Group.
10 Stock Retention. The Participant acknowledges and agrees that the Shares to be delivered upon vesting of the Stock
Grant shall be subject to the Company’s stock retention requirements , which will be specified in the Notice of Grant. In the event
that the Participant fails to comply with the stock retention requirements of this Section 10 and the Notice of Grant, the Participant
shall be subject to such disciplinary action as the Committee determines, in its sole discretion, to be appropriate under the
circumstances, including, but not limited to, termination of employment.
11 RSUs Provide No Rights of Stockholder. The Participant shall not be deemed for any purpose to be a stockholder of
the Company with respect to the RSUs except to the extent that the Shares have been delivered to the Participant on the Scheduled
Vesting Date with respect thereto.
12 Notices. Any communication or notice required or permitted to be given hereunder shall be in writing, and, if to the
Company, to its principal place of business, Attention: Secretary, and, if to the Participant, to the address as appearing on the
records of the Company. Such communication or notice shall be deemed given if and when (a) properly addressed and posted by
registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, or (b) delivered by hand.
13 Incorporation of Plan by Reference. The Award is granted pursuant to the terms of the Plan, the terms of which are
incorporated herein by reference, and the Award shall in all respects be interpreted in accordance with the Plan. In the event of any
inconsistency between the Plan and this Award Agreement, the Plan shall govern. The Committee shall interpret and construe the
Plan and this Award Agreement, and their interpretations and determinations shall be conclusive and binding upon the parties
hereto and any other person claiming an interest hereunder, with respect to any issue arising hereunder or thereunder.
14 Acknowledgement. The Participant acknowledges receipt of the copy of the Plan attached hereto as Exhibit A.
15 Counterparts. This Award Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but
all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument.
16 Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of New
York, but without regard to its principles of conflicts of law. In the event any provision of this Award Agreement shall be held
invalid, illegal or unenforceable, in whole or in part, for any reason, such determination shall not affect the validity, legality or
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enforceability of any remaining provision, portion of provision or this Award Agreement overall, which shall remain in full force
and effect as if the Award Agreement had been absent the invalid, illegal or unenforceable provision or portion thereof.

[SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused this Agreement to be executed by its duly authorized officer,
and by electronically accepting the Notice of Grant in accordance with the instructions in such notice, Participant will be deemed a
party to, and legally bound by the terms of, this Agreement.
MANNING & NAPIER, INC.

By: ____________________________________
Name:
Title:
MANNING & NAPIER GROUP, LLC
By:______________________________________
Name:
Title:
PARTICIPANT
By:______________________________________
Name:
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MANNING & NAPIER
2018 LONG-TERM INCENTIVE PLAN
1.

Purpose

Manning & Napier, Inc. and Manning & Napier Advisors, LLC hereby adopt this Manning & Napier, Inc. 2018 Long-Term
Incentive Plan effective as of November 8, 2018. The Plan is intended to reward and retain key contributors and to further align
their interests with those of the shareholders of the Company and the Manning & Napier Fund, Inc. by providing for incentive
awards in various investment options.
2. Definitions
As used in this Plan, the following terms shall have the following meanings:
2.1. “2011 Incentive Plan” means the Manning & Napier, Inc. 2011 Equity Compensation Plan, as amended and restated
from time to time, including any successor plan thereto.
2.2.
“Account” means a notional, bookkeeping account established under the Plan for a Participant to reflect the
Participant’s Award and the Investment Units to which the Award is allocated, as adjusted to reflect all applicable Investment
Adjustments in accordance with Section 7 and payments pursuant to Section 9.
2.3. “Affiliate” means, with respect to any Person, any other Person that directly or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries controls, is controlled by or is under common control with the Person in question. As used herein, “control” means
the possession, direct or indirect, of the power to direct or cause the direction of management and policies of a Person, whether
through ownership of voting securities, by contract or otherwise.
2.4. “Award” means an amount credited by the Company, MN Advisors or any of their Affiliates to a Participant’s
Account, which will be allocated to Investment Units from the available Investment Options pursuant to Section 7.
2.5.
“Award Agreement” means the award agreement or similar documentation and any other forms or documents
evidencing the terms of an Award under the Plan, including any notice of grant.
2.6. “Board” means the Board of Directors of the Company.
2.7. “Cause” means, unless otherwise provided in an applicable Award Agreement, a termination of employment or
service, based on a finding by the Committee, that the Participant engaged in conduct (a) which involves fraud, moral turpitude,
willful misconduct, bad faith or commission of a crime that is classified as a felony under New York law and in the reasonable
opinion of the Board is injurious to the Company, MN Advisors or their Affiliates, or (b) that
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constitutes grounds for termination for cause under the Participant’s employment, consulting or service agreement with the
Company, MN Advisors or their Affiliates, to the extent applicable, or under any policies in effect applicable to the Participant and
relating to his or her employment by, or association with, the Company, MN Advisors or their Affiliates.
2.8. “Change in Control” has the meaning given such term in the 2011 Incentive Plan.
2.9. “Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended from time to time, or any successor statute thereto,
and any regulations issued from time to time thereunder. To the extent that reference is made to any particular section of the Code,
such reference shall be, where the context so admits, to any corresponding provisions of any succeeding law.
2.10. “Committee” means the Committee that administers the 2011 Incentive Plan.
2.11. “Company” means Manning & Napier, Inc., a corporation organized under the laws of the State of Delaware.
2.12. “Designation Date” shall mean the date or dates as of which a designation of investment directions by a Participant
pursuant to Section 7, or any change in a prior designation of investment directions by a Participant pursuant to Section 7, shall
become effective. The Designation Dates in a particular year shall be determined by the Committee; provided, however, that each
trading day of the NYSE shall be available as a Designation Date unless the Committee selects different Designation Dates.
2.13. “Effective Date” means the date this Plan is adopted by the Committee on behalf of the Company and MN Advisors.
2.14. “Employee” means a person who is an employee of the Company, MN Advisors or any of their Affiliates, as
determined by the Committee in its sole discretion.
2.15. “Exchange Act” means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended from time to time, and as now or hereafter
construed, interpreted and applied by regulations, rulings and cases.
2.16. “Fair Market Value” of an Investment Unit on any given date means the Net Asset Value (“NAV”) per share of the
Investment Option underlying the Investment Unit on that date. The NAV of an Investment Option for a given date is the current
value of one share of such Investment Option, as determined by the accounting agent of the Investment Option at the close of
financial markets on such date. Any mutual fund trades placed while the NYSE is open will be transacted at the NAV calculated at
market close. Otherwise, trades placed will be transacted at the following business day’s NAV.
2.17. “Fund” means the Manning & Napier Fund, Inc., a corporation organized under the laws of Maryland.
2.18. “Grant Date” means the date as of which an Award is granted, as determined under Section 6.1.
2
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2.19. “Investment Adjustment” means an adjustment made to the balance of an Account for an Award in accordance with
Section 7 to reflect the performance of the Investment Units to which the value of the Account for that Award or portion thereof is
allocated and measured.
2.20. “Investment Agent” means the person appointed by MN Advisors to invest the Accounts of Participants, or if no
person is so designated, the Committee.
2.21. “Investment Option” means an investment option made available under the Plan from time to time by the Committee
for purposes of valuing Awards and Accounts for Awards. In the event that an Investment Option ceases to exist or is no longer to
be an Investment Option, the Committee may designate a substitute Investment Option for the discontinued investment option.
2.22. “Investment Unit” means a restricted unit whose value is equal to 100 percent of the value of one share of the
underlying Investment Option. A Participant does not have any interest in the shares of the Investment Option upon which the
value of an Investment Unit is based, nor any ownership rights, including voting and dividend rights, unless and until the
Investment Unit vests and a share of such Investment Option is issued to the Participant.
2.23. “Managing Member” means the Company, as the Managing Member of Manning & Napier Group, LLC.
2.24. “MN Advisors means Manning & Napier Advisors, LLC, a limited liability company organized under the laws of the
State of Delaware.
2.25. “NYSE” means the New York Stock Exchange.
2.26. “Operating Agreement” means the Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Agreement of MN Advisors,
dated as of October 6, 2011, as in effect from time to time.
2.27. “Participant” means any holder of an outstanding Award under the Plan.
2.28. “Person” means any individual, corporation, firm, partnership, joint venture, limited liability company, estate, trust,
business association, organization, or other entity.
2.29. “Plan” means this Manning & Napier, Inc. 2018 Long-Term Incentive Plan, as amend from time to time, and
including any attachments or addenda hereto.
2.30. “Specified Employee” means a key employee as defined under Section 409A of the Code.
2.31. “Vesting Date” has the meaning given to such term in Section 6.2.
3. Term of the Plan
Awards may be granted under the Plan at any time prior to the termination of the Plan by the Company. Awards granted
pursuant to the Plan shall not expire solely by reason of the termination of the Plan.
3
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4. Administration
The Plan shall be administered by the Committee. Subject to the provisions of the Plan, the Committee shall have complete
authority, in its discretion, to make or to select the manner of making all determinations with respect to the Awards to be granted by
the Company, MN Advisors or any of their Affiliates under the Plan including the Employees to receive Awards. In making such
determinations, the Committee may take into account the nature of the services rendered by such employees, their present and
potential contributions to the success of the Company, MN Advisors and their Affiliates, and such other factors as the Committee in
its discretion shall deem relevant. Subject to the provisions of the Plan, the Committee shall also have complete authority to
interpret the Plan, to prescribe, amend and rescind rules and regulations relating to it, to determine the terms and provisions of the
respective Award Agreements (which need not be identical), and to make all other determinations necessary or advisable for the
administration of the Plan. The Committee’s determinations made in good faith on matters referred to in the Plan shall be final,
binding and conclusive on all persons having or claiming any interest under the Plan or any Awards made pursuant hereto.
5. Authorization of Grants
5.1. Eligibility. The Committee may grant from time to time and at any time prior to the termination of the Plan one or
more Awards to any Employee.
5.2. General Terms of Awards. Each grant of an Award shall be subject to all applicable terms and conditions of the Plan,
and such other terms and conditions, not inconsistent with the terms of the Plan, as the Committee may prescribe.
5.3. Non-Transferability of Awards. Awards shall not be transferable, and no Awards or interest therein may be sold,
transferred, pledged, assigned, or otherwise alienated or hypothecated, other than by will or by the laws of descent and distribution.
5.4. Conditions to Receipt of Awards.
(a) Unless otherwise waived by the Committee, no prospective Participant shall have any rights with respect to an
Award unless and until such Participant has executed an Award Agreement evidencing the Award, delivered a fully executed copy
thereof to the Company, and otherwise complied with the applicable terms and conditions of such Award.
(b) Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, no Award may be made to an individual who has committed
any act which could serve as a basis for (i) denial, suspension or revocation of the registration of any investment adviser, including
Affiliates of the Company or MN Advisors, under Section 203(e) of the Investment Advisers Act of 1940, as amended, or Rule
206(4)-4(b) thereunder, or for disqualification of any investment adviser, including Affiliates of the Company or MN Advisors, as
an investment adviser to a registered investment company pursuant to Sections 9(a) or 9(b) of the Investment Company Act of
1940, as amended, (ii) precluding the Company, MN Advisors or their respective Affiliates from acting as a fiduciary by operation
of Section 411 of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended, or (iii)
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precluding the Company, MN Advisors or their respective Affiliates from qualifying as a “qualified professional asset manager”
within the meaning of Department of Labor Prohibited Transaction Exemption 84-14.
6. Specific Terms of Awards
6.1. Date of Grant. The granting of an Award shall take place at the time specified in the Award Agreement. Awards
credited to an Employee’s Account under the Plan will be credited in Investment Units pursuant to Section 7.
6.2. Vesting. Except as otherwise provided by Section 8, a Participant shall vest in his or her Award on the dates specified
in the applicable Award Agreement (each, a “Vesting Date”). The Vesting Dates of Awards set forth in the Award Agreement shall
be established by the Committee in its sole discretion and may vary for each Participant. In the event that the Award Agreements do
not specify the Vesting Dates, and in the absence of any Committee action, a Participant shall vest in his or her Award according to
the following schedule: (a) one-third of the Award shall vest on the first anniversary of the Grant Date; (b) one-third of the Award
shall vest on the second anniversary of the Grant Date; and (c) the remaining one-third of the Award shall vest on the third
anniversary of the Grant Date. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Plan or any Award Agreement, the
Committee shall have the authority, exercisable in its sole discretion, to accelerate the vesting of any Awards.
6.3. Termination of Association with the Company. Unless the Committee shall provide otherwise in the applicable Award
Agreement for any Award of Incentive Units, upon termination of a Participant’s employment or other association with the
Company, MN Advisors and their Affiliates for any reason prior to the applicable Vesting Date, any unvested portion of an
outstanding Award shall be forfeited on the terms specified in the applicable Award Agreement; provided, however, that military or
sick leave or other bona fide leave shall not be deemed a termination of employment or other association if it does not exceed the
longer of 90 days or the period during which the absent Participant’s reemployment rights, if any, are guaranteed by statute or by
contract.
6.4. Awards to Participants Outside the United States. The Committee may modify the terms of any Award under the Plan
granted to a Participant who is, at the time of grant or during the term of the Award, resident or primarily employed outside of the
United States in any manner deemed by the Committee to be necessary or appropriate in order that the Award conform to laws,
regulations, and customs of the country in which the Participant is then resident or primarily employed, or so that the value and
other benefits of the Award to the Participant, as affected by foreign tax laws and other restrictions applicable as a result of the
Participant’s residence or employment abroad, shall be comparable to the value of such an Award to a Participant who is resident or
primarily employed in the United States. The Committee may establish supplements to, or amendments, restatements, or alternative
versions of the Plan for the purpose of granting and administrating any such modified Award.
7. Investment Options and Investment Adjustments
5
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7.1. Investment Options.
(a) Establishment. The Committee shall establish from time to time the Investment Option(s) that will be available
under the Plan. At any time, the Committee may, in its discretion, add one or more additional Investment Options under the Plan,
and in connection with any such addition, may permit Participants to select from among the then-available Investment Options
under the Plan to measure the value of such Participants’ Accounts for their Awards. In addition, the Committee, in its sole
discretion, may discontinue any Investment Option at any time, and provide for the portions of Participants’ Accounts designated to
the discontinued Investment Option to be reallocated to another Investment Option(s).
(b) Investment Direction. Subject to such limitations, operating rules and procedures as may from time to time be
required by law, imposed by the Committee or contained elsewhere in the Plan, each Participant may communicate to the
Investment Agent a direction (in accordance with this Section 7) as to how his or her Account for an Award should be deemed to be
invested among the Investment Options made available by the Committee. The Participant’s investment directions shall designate
the percentage (in any whole percent multiples, which must total 100 percent) of the portion of the subsequent contributions to the
Participant’s Account for an Award which is requested to be deemed to be invested in such Investment Options, and shall be subject
to the rules set forth below. The Investment Agent shall credit the value of the Participant’s Accounts in accordance with the
directions of the Participant except to the extent that the Committee directs it to the contrary. The Committee has the authority, but
not the requirement, in its sole and absolute discretion, to direct in the Award Agreement for a particular Award that a Participant’s
Account for the Award be invested among such investments as it deems appropriate and advisable, which investments need not be
the same for each Participant.
(c)
Form of Investment Direction. Any initial or subsequent investment direction shall be in writing to the
Investment Agent on a form supplied by the Company, or, as permitted by the Investment Agent, may be by oral designation or
electronic transmission designation to the Investment Agent. A designation shall be effective: (i) as of the Designation Date the
direction is received and accepted by the Investment Agent if so received before the market close for the NYSE on such
Designation Date, to the extent practicable; or (ii) as of the Designation Date next following the date the direction is received and
accepted by the Investment Agent if not received before the market close for the NYSE on such Designation Date, or as soon
thereafter as administratively practicable, subject to the Committee’s right to override such direction. The Participant may, if
permitted by the Committee, make an investment direction to the Investment Agent for his or her existing Accounts as of a
Designation Date and a separate investment direction to the Investment Agent for contribution credits to his or her Accounts for
Awards occurring after the Designation Date.
(d) Effect of Investment Direction. All amounts associated with a Participant’s Account for an Award shall be
credited to Investment Options in accordance with the then effective investment direction, unless the Committee directs otherwise.
Unless otherwise changed by the Committee, an investment direction shall remain in effect until the Participant’s Account for an
6
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Award is paid or forfeited in their entirety, or until a subsequent investment direction is received and accepted by the Investment
Agent.
(e) Change of Investment Direction. If a Participant files an investment direction with the Investment Agent for his
or her existing Account for an Award as of a Designation Date which is received and accepted by the Investment Agent and not
overridden by the Committee, then the Participant’s existing Account for the Award shall be deemed to be reallocated as of the next
Designation Date (or as soon thereafter as administratively practicable) among the designated Investment Options according to the
percentages specified in such investment direction. Unless otherwise changed by the Committee, an investment direction shall
remain in effect until the Participant’s Account for an Award is paid or forfeited in its entirety, or until a subsequent investment
direction is received and accepted by the Investment Agent.
(f) Limits on Investment Direction. The Committee, in its sole discretion, may place limits on a Participant’s ability
to make changes with respect to any Investment Options.
(g) Invalid Investment Direction. If the Investment Agent receives an initial or subsequent investment direction
with respect to an Account for an Award which it deems to be incomplete, unclear or improper, or which is unacceptable for some
other reason (determined in the sole and absolute discretion of the Investment Agent), the Participant’s investment direction for
such Account then in effect shall remain in effect (or, in the case of a deficiency in an initial investment direction, the Participant
shall be deemed to have filed no investment direction) until the Participant files an investment direction for such Account
acceptable to the Investment Agent.
(h) Default Investment Direction. If the Investment Agent does not possess valid investment directions covering the
full balance of a Participant’s Account for an Award or subsequent contributions thereto (including, without limitation, situations in
which no investment direction has been filed, situations in which the investment direction is not acceptable to the Investment Agent
under Section 7.1(g), or situations in which some or all of the Participant’s designated investments are no longer permissible
Investment Options), the Participant shall be deemed to have directed that the undesignated portion of the Account for the Award
be credited to a money-market fund or similar short-term investment fund; provided, however, the Committee may provide for the
undesignated portion to be allocated to or among the Investment Option(s) that the Participant did designate in the same proportion
as the designated portion, or may provide for any other allocation method it deems appropriate, in its discretion.
(i) Indemnity for Investment Direction. None of the directors and employees (including, without limitation, each
member of the Committee) of the Company, MN Advisors and their Affiliates and their designated agents and representatives shall
have any liability whatsoever for the investment of a Participant’s Account, or for the investment performance of a Participant’s
Account. Each Participant, as a condition to his or her participation hereunder, agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the
Company, MN Advisors and their Affiliates and their directors, managers and employees (including, without limitation, each
member of the Committee) and their designated agents and representatives from any losses or damages of any kind (including,
without limitation, lost opportunity costs) relating to the investment direction of a Participant’s Account. The Investment Agent
shall have no liability whatsoever for the investment direction of a Participant’s
7
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Account, or for the investment performance of a Participant’s Account. Each Participant, as a condition to his or her participation
hereunder, agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Investment Agent, and its agents and representatives, from any losses or
damages of any kind (including, without limitation, lost opportunity costs) relating to the investment direction of a Participant’s
Account.
7.2. Adjustment of Accounts. While a Participant’s Account for an Award does not represent the Participant’s ownership
of, or any ownership interest in, any particular assets, the Participant’s Accounts shall be adjusted in accordance with the
Investment Option(s), subject to the conditions and procedures set forth herein or established by the Committee from time to time.
Any notional cash earnings generated under an Investment Option (such as interest, cash dividends and short-term and long-term
gains and other distributions) shall, at the Committee’s sole discretion, either be deemed to be credited in that Investment Option or
in one or more other Investment Option(s) designated by the Committee. All notional acquisitions and dispositions of Investment
Options under a Participant’s Account shall be deemed to occur at such times as the Committee shall determine to be
administratively feasible in its sole discretion and the Participant’s Account shall be adjusted accordingly. In addition, a
Participant’s Account may be adjusted from time to time, in accordance with procedures and practices established by the
Committee, in its sole discretion, to reflect any notional transactional costs and other fees and expenses relating to the deemed
investment, disposition or carrying of any Investment Option for the Participant’s Account.
7.3. Valuation of Accounts Pending Payment. To the extent that the payment of any portion of any Account for an Award
is deferred, whether pursuant to the terms of the Plan, or for any other reason, any amounts remaining to the credit of the Account
for the Award shall continue to be adjusted pursuant to this Section 7.
8. Change in Control Provisions
Unless otherwise determined by the Committee or evidenced in an applicable Award Agreement or employment or other
agreement, in the event of a Change in Control, the Committee shall have the discretion, exercisable either in advance of such
Change in Control or at the time thereof, to provide for one or more of the following: (a) the continuation of outstanding Awards
after the Change in Control without change; and (b) the acceleration of the vesting of outstanding Awards on or prior to the closing
of the Change in Control.
9. Payment of Awards
9.1. Time and Form of Payment.
(a) Generally. Except as otherwise provided by this Section 9.1 or the applicable Award Agreement, a Participant’s
Award or portion thereof shall be paid as soon as administratively practicable following the applicable Vesting Date for such Award
or portion thereof, but in no event later than the 15th day of the third month of the year following the year in which the applicable
Vesting Date occurs.
(b) Death. Unless the applicable Award Agreement provides otherwise, in the event of the death of a Participant
prior to the applicable Vesting Date, the Participant’s outstanding
8
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Awards shall be paid as soon as administratively practicable following the date of death, but in no event later than the 15th day of
the third month of the year following the year in which the death occurs.
(c) Termination of Employment. Unless the applicable Award Agreement provides otherwise, if the Committee
accelerates the vesting of a Participant’s Award in connection with a Participant’s termination of employment, the Participant’s
Award or portion which is accelerated shall be paid as soon as administratively practicable following the date of the Participant’s
termination of employment, but in no event later than the 15th day of the third month of the year following the year in which the
termination of employment occurs.
(d) Change in Control. Unless the applicable Award Agreement provides otherwise, if the Committee accelerates
the vesting of a Participant’s Award in connection with a Change in Control pursuant to Section 8, the Participant’s Award or
portion which is accelerated shall be paid as soon as administratively practicable following the date of the Change in Control, but in
no event later than the 15th day of the third month of the year following the year in which the Change in Control occurs.
(e) Participant Designation Not Permitted. The Participant will not be permitted, either directly or indirectly, to
designate the year of payment.
9.2. Payment Medium and Amount. Payment of a Participant’s vested Account for an Award or portion thereof shall be
made in cash; provided, however, that the Committee may, in its sole discretion, pay an Account for an Award or portion thereof in
a medium other than cash, including shares of the Investment Units to which the Account is allocated. Where payment of a
Participant’s vested Account for an Award or portion thereof is to be made in cash, the amount of payment shall be determined
based on the Fair Market Value of the Investment Units to which the Participant’s vested Account or portion thereof being paid is
allocated and measured.
9.3.
Taxes. The Company, MN Advisors and their Affiliates shall have the authority, duty and power to determine,
withhold and report the amount of any applicable employment taxes and any applicable foreign, federal, state, or local taxes as may
be required under any applicable provision of the Code and any other applicable law with respect to any amount payable under the
Plan.
9.4. Holding Period. The Committee may require a Participant to hold the cash or other property received in payment of an
Award for a specified period following the date of such payment, and may provide for any holding period to expire earlier upon the
occurrence of any specified event or in the Committee’s discretion.
10. No Special Employment or Other Rights
Nothing contained in the Plan or in any Award Agreement shall confer upon any recipient of an Award any right with
respect to the continuation of his or her employment or other association with the Company, MN Advisors or any of their Affiliates,
or interfere in any way with the right of the Company, MN Advisors or any of their Affiliates, subject to the terms of any separate
9
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employment or consulting agreement, any provision of law, or the Operating Agreement to the contrary, at any time to terminate
such employment or consulting agreement or to increase or decrease, or otherwise adjust, the other terms and conditions of the
recipient’s employment or other association with the Company, MN Advisors or any such Affiliate.
11. Nonexclusivity of the Plan
The adoption of the Plan by the Company and MN Advisors shall not be construed as creating any limitations on the power
of the Company or MN Advisors to adopt such other incentive arrangements as it may deem desirable, including without limitation,
the granting of similar awards other than under the Plan, and such arrangements may be either applicable generally or only in
specific cases.
12. Section 409A of the Code
Unless the applicable Award Agreement provides otherwise, the Awards are intended to be exempt from the requirements of
Section 409A of the Code under the short-term deferral exemption described in Section 1.409A-1(b)(4) of the Treasury
Regulations, and the Plan shall be interpreted and administered consistent with such intention. To the extent that an Award is
subject to Section 409A of the Code, the Plan shall be interpreted and administered in a manner that will comply with Section 409A
of the Code; including to the extent that a payment to a Participant who is a Specified Employee at the time of his or her separation
from service is required to be delayed by six months pursuant to Section 409A of the Code, such payment shall be made no earlier
than the first day of the seventh month following the Participant’s separation from service and the amount of such payment will
equal the sum of the payments that would have been paid to the Specified Employee during the six-month period immediately
following the Specified Employee’s separation from service had the payment commenced as of such date, as adjusted pursuant to
Section 7.3. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Company, MN Advisors and their Affiliates makes no representations that the
Awards under the Plan are exempt from or comply with Section 409A of the Code, and in no event shall the Company, MN
Advisors or any of their Affiliates be liable for all or any portion of any taxes, penalties, interest or other expenses that may be
incurred by a Participant on account of non-compliance with Section 409A of the Code.
13. Termination and Amendment of the Plan and Awards
The Company and MN Advisors may at any time terminate the Plan or make such modifications of the Plan as they shall
deem advisable. Unless the Company and MN Advisors otherwise expressly provide, or may deem necessary or appropriate to
comply with applicable law, including without limitation the provisions of Section 409A of the Code, no termination or amendment
of the Plan may adversely affect the rights of the recipient of an Award previously granted hereunder without the consent of the
recipient of such Award.
The Plan shall take effect on the Effective Date. The Board may amend, alter or discontinue the Plan, but no amendment,
alteration, or discontinuation shall be made that would impair the rights of a Participant under any Award theretofore granted
without such Participant’s consent. The Board reserves the right to terminate the Plan at any time. No Awards shall be granted
under the
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Plan after such termination date. The Plan shall remain in effect with respect to Awards made under the Plan prior to the
termination of the Plan until such Awards have been satisfied or terminated in accordance with the terms of the Plan and the
applicable Award Agreements.
The Committee may amend the terms of any Award theretofore granted, prospectively or retroactively, provided that the
Award as amended is consistent with the terms of the Plan, and further provided that, other than as the Committee may deem
necessary or appropriate to comply with or qualify for an exemption from applicable law, including without limitation the
provisions of Section 409A of the Code, no amendment or modification of an outstanding Award may adversely affect the rights of
the recipient of such Award without his or her consent. An amendment or modification to an Award that is necessary or appropriate
to comply with applicable law or that does not adversely affect the rights of the recipient of such Award may be made without the
consent of such recipient.
14. Notices and Other Communications
Any notice, demand, request or other communication hereunder to any party shall be deemed to be sufficient if contained in
a written instrument delivered in person or duly sent by first class registered, certified or overnight mail, postage prepaid, or by
facsimile with a confirmation copy by regular, certified or overnight mail, addressed or sent by facsimile, as the case may be, (a) if
to the recipient of an Award, at his or her residence address last filed with the Company or MN Advisors, and (b) if to the Company
or MN Advisors, at their principal place of business, addressed to the attention of the Managing Member, or to such other address
or facsimile number, as the case may be, as the addressee may have designated by notice to the addressor. All such notices,
requests, demands and other communications shall be deemed to have been received: (i) in the case of personal delivery, on the
date of such delivery, (ii) in the case of mailing, when received by the addressee, and (iii) in the case of facsimile transmission,
when confirmed by facsimile machine report.
15. Governing Law
The Plan and all Award Agreements and actions taken thereunder shall be governed, interpreted and enforced in accordance
with the laws of the State of New York without regard to the conflict of laws principles thereof.
16. Miscellaneous
16.1. Status of Plan. The Plan is intended to be a plan that is not qualified within the meaning of Section 401(a) of the
Code and shall be administered and interpreted in a manner consistent with that intent. All Accounts and all credits and other
adjustments to such Accounts shall be bookkeeping entries only and shall be utilized solely as a device for the measurement and
determination of amounts to be paid under the Plan. No Accounts, credits or other adjustments under the Plan shall be interpreted
as an indication that any benefits under the Plan are in any way funded.
16.2. Unsecured General Creditor. Participants and their beneficiaries, heirs, successors and assigns shall have no legal or
equitable rights, interests or claims in any property or assets of
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the Company, MN Advisors or any of their Affiliates. For purposes of the payment of benefits under the Plan, any and all of the
assets of the Company, MN Advisors and their Affiliates, shall be, and remain, the general, unpledged unrestricted assets of the
Company, MN Advisors and their Affiliates, respectively. The obligation of the Company, MN Advisors or any of their Affiliates
under the Plan shall be merely that of an unfunded and unsecured promise to pay money in the future.
16.3. Nonassignability. Neither a Participant nor any other person shall have any right to commute, sell, assign, transfer,
pledge, anticipate, mortgage or otherwise encumber, transfer, hypothecate, alienate or convey in advance of actual receipt, the
amounts, if any, payable hereunder, or any part thereof, which are, and all rights to which are expressly declared to be, unassignable
and non-transferable. No part of the amounts payable shall, prior to actual payment, be subject to seizure, attachment, garnishment
or sequestration for the payment of any debts, judgments, alimony or separate maintenance owed by a Participant or any other
person, be transferable by operation of law in the event of a Participant’s or any other person’s bankruptcy or insolvency or be
transferable to a spouse as a result of a property settlement or otherwise.
16.4. Costs of the Plan. The costs and expenses of the Plan shall be borne by the Company, MN Advisors and their
Affiliates; provided, however, that the Committee, in its sole discretion, may charge an annual administrative fee to each Participant
which shall be deducted from each Participant’s Account during the year in which the fee is assessed.
16.5. Terms. Whenever any words are used herein in the masculine, they shall be construed as though they were in the
feminine in all cases where they would so apply; and whenever any words are used herein in the singular or in the plural, they shall
be construed as though they were used in the plural or the singular, as the case may be, in all cases where they would so apply.
16.6. Captions. The captions of the sections of the Plan are for convenience only and shall not control or affect the
meaning or construction of any of its provisions.
16.7. Successors. The provisions of the Plan shall bind and inure to the benefit of the Company, MN Advisors and their
Affiliates and their successors and assigns and the Participant and the Participant’s heirs and assigns.
16.8. Validity. In case any provision of the Plan shall be illegal or invalid for any reason, said illegality or invalidity shall
not affect the remaining parts hereof, but the Plan shall be construed and enforced as if such illegal or invalid provision had never
been inserted herein.
*****
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Exhibit 10.10

MANNING & NAPIER
2018 LONG-TERM INCENTIVE PLAN
LTIP AWARD AGREEMENT
AGREEMENT, dated as of the date set forth in your Notice of Grant, between Manning & Napier, Inc., a Delaware
corporation (the “Company”), Manning & Napier Advisors, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (“MN Advisors”), and the
individual (the “Participant”) identified in the notice of LTIP award grant ( the “Notice of Grant”) delivered to the Participant.
W I T N E S S E T H:
WHEREAS, the Company adopted the Manning & Napier, Inc. 2018 Long-Term Incentive Plan (the “Plan”), which
authorizes the grant of Awards, pursuant to which Participants receive a contribution that is hypothetically invested in Investment
Options under the Plan; and
WHEREAS, the Committee has determined that it would be in the best interests of the Company to grant the Award
documented herein, and as Managing Member of MN Advisors, caused MN Advisors to take the necessary steps to comply with
terms and conditions herein.
NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereto hereby agree as follows:
1.
in the Plan.

Definitions. Capitalized terms not defined in this Award Agreement shall have the meaning ascribed to such terms

2. Award Grant. Subject to the terms and conditions of the Plan and as set forth herein, the Company hereby grants to the
Participant, as of the date hereof, an Award with the value indicated in the Notice of Grant. The value of the Award will be credited
to an Account maintained by the Investment Agent for the Award, which the Participant may allocate among the Investment
Options made available to the Participant, subject to the terms of the Plan. Allocations to an Investment Option shall be designated
in Investment Units of that Investment Option.
3. Status of Award Grant. Each Award constitutes an unsecured promise of the Company to pay (or cause to be delivered)
to the Participant, subject to the terms of this Award Agreement, cash, securities or other property (including shares underlying the
Investment Units into which the Award is allocated) equal to the Fair Market Value of the Investment Units into which the Award is
allocated on the Scheduled Vesting Date (as defined herein).
4. Vesting. Subject to such further limitations as are provided in the Plan and as set forth herein, the Award shall vest as of
the date(s) set forth in the Notice of Grant (the “Scheduled Vesting Date”) provided that the Participant continues to provide
services or to be in a service
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relationship with the Company, MN Advisors or one of its Affiliates (“Service”), as of the Scheduled Vesting Date, provided
further that upon the death of any Participant 100% vesting shall occur.
5. Termination of Award.
(a) Except as otherwise provided in this Section 5 or the Notice of Grant, the Award, to the extent not previously
vested, shall terminate and become null and void upon the Participant’s ceasing for any reason to provide Services.
(b) In the sole discretion of the Committee (a “Committee Election”) and without any further action by or on
behalf of the Participant, upon a termination of Services, the Award, to the extent not previously vested, may become vested and the
Company in such case shall deliver (or cause to be delivered) the Shares with respect thereto.
(c)
Clawback. If the Company’s Board of Directors or the Compensation Committee determines, in its sole
discretion, that Participant engaged in fraud or misconduct as a result of which the Company is required to, or decided to, restate its
financial statements, the Committee may, in its sole discretion, impose immediate expiration of the Award, whether vested or not, if
granted within the first twelve (12) months after issuance or filing of any financial statement that is being restated. This remedy is
in addition to any other remedies that the Company may have available in law or equity.
(d) Holding Period. Unless the Committee determines otherwise, the portion (as specified in the Notice of Grant)
of the cash or shares in any Investment Units received by a Participant in payment of the Award shall be held by the Participant
following the date of payment for the holding period specified by the Notice of Grant.
6. Non−Transferability of Awards. The Award, and any interest therein, shall not be assignable or transferable by the
Participant. Unless otherwise noted in the Notice of Grant, the Award shall terminate and become null and void immediately upon
(i) the bankruptcy of the Participant, (ii) the Participant’s termination of Services (other than in connection with a Committee
Election upon a termination of Services by reason of the Participant’s death), or (iii) any attempted assignment or transfer except as
herein provided, including without limitation, any purported assignment, whether voluntary or by operation of law, pledge,
hypothecation or other disposition, attachment, trustee process or similar process, whether legal or equitable, upon the Award.
7. No Special Rights. Neither the granting of the Award nor its vesting shall be construed to confer upon the Participant
any right with respect to the continuation of his or her service with the Company (or any Affiliate of the Company) or interfere in
any way with the right of the Company (or any Affiliate of the Company), subject to the terms of any separate agreement to the
contrary, at any time to terminate such service or to increase or decrease the compensation of the Participant from the rate in
existence as of the date hereof.
8. Representation. The Participant represents and warrants that he or she understands the Federal, state and local income
tax consequences of the granting of the Award to him or her and the vesting and payment thereof. To the extent that the Company is
required to withhold any such
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taxes, then, unless both the Participant and the Committee have otherwise agreed upon alternate arrangements, the Participant
hereby agrees that the Company may deduct from any payments of any kind otherwise due to the Participant the aggregate amount
of such Federal, state and local taxes required to be so withheld, or if such payments are inadequate to satisfy such Federal, state
and local taxes, or if no such payments are due or to become due to the Participant, then, the Participant agrees to provide the
Company with cash funds or make other arrangements satisfactory to the Committee regarding such payment. It is understood that
all matters with respect to the total amount of taxes to be withheld in respect of any such compensation income shall be determined
by the Committee.
9. Noncompete; Nonsolicitation.
(a) In consideration of the granting of the Award, the Participant agrees that, if the Participant has been granted
Awards under the Plan and/or awards under the 2011 Incentive Plan totaling more than $500,000 (valued at the time of grant)
during the term of Participant’s employment, the Participant shall not, during the entire term of the applicable Noncompete Period
(as defined below), directly or indirectly, engage in or become interested in, as owner, shareholder, partner, lender, investor,
director, officer, employee, consultant, agent, representative or otherwise, any Person engaged in any business competitive with that
of the Company, MN Advisors or their Affiliates. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Participant shall not be deemed to have
breached this Section 9 by reason of purchasing stock in a corporation whose shares are listed on the NYSE or quoted on
NASDAQ, provided that the Participant’s beneficial ownership (as defined in Rule 13d-3 under the Exchange Act) of any class of
equity securities in any such corporation is less than 5% of the aggregate number of outstanding shares of such class.
(b) In consideration of the granting of the Award, the Participant agrees that during the entire term of the applicable
Noncompete Period, the Participant shall not, directly or indirectly, solicit any Person who is a Prospect (as defined herein) of the
Company, MN Advisors or their Affiliates to become an investment advisory, financial brokerage, insurance brokerage, health
consulting, employer benefits, employee benefits or similar client of the Participant or any other Person.
(c) The Participant acknowledges and agrees that the covenants set forth in this Section 9 are reasonable and
necessary for the protection of the Company and MN Advisors. The Participant further agrees that irreparable injury will result to
the Company and MN Advisors in the event of any breach of the terms of this Section 9, and that in the event of any actual or
threatened breach of any of the provisions contained in this Section 9, the Company and MN Advisors will have no adequate
remedy at law. The Participant accordingly agrees that in the event of any actual or threatened breach by the Participant of any of
the provisions contained in this Section 9, the Company or MN Advisors shall be entitled to seek such injunctive and other
equitable relief as may be deemed necessary or appropriate by a court of competent jurisdiction, without the necessity of showing
actual monetary damages and without posting any bond or other security. If any provision of this Section 9 is determined by a court
of competent jurisdiction to be not enforceable in the manner set forth herein, the Participant agrees that it is the intention of the
parties that such provision should be enforceable to the maximum extent permitted by law.
3

(d) For purposes of this Section 9, the term “Noncompete Period” means: (i) for areas within New York State
(excluding New York City), Ohio and Florida (the “Protected Areas”), the period from the date the Participant commenced Service
with the Company, MN Advisors or their Affiliates through the date that is twenty-four (24) months after his or her termination of
Service with the Company or its Affiliates, or (ii) for all U.S. States (including New York City) other than the Protected Areas in
which the Company, MN Advisors or their Affiliates do business, the period from the date the Participant commenced Service with
the Company, MN Advisors or their Affiliates through the date that is ninety (90) days after his or her termination of Service with
the Company or its Affiliates. For purposes of this Section 9, the term “Prospect” means any Person (i) who is on MN Advisors’s
monthly marketing group meeting list of prospects issued during the twelve (12) months prior to termination of Service; (ii) who is
on the monthly, quarterly, or semiannual list of prospects submitted to MN Advisors’s products group manager (or Person fulfilling
such function) issued in the twelve (12) months prior to termination of Service, (iii) who is on MN Advisors’s internal list of
prospects, or similar books and records, that each sales representative or client consultant (or their support staff) maintains in the
twelve (12) months prior to termination of Service; or (iv) who has met with sales or marketing personnel of the Company, MN
Advisors or their Affiliates more than two times in the six months prior to termination of Service regarding the services provided
by the Company, MN Advisors or their Affiliates.
(e) The Participant acknowledges and agrees that the provisions of this Section 9 shall survive and be enforceable
by the Company, MN Advisors or their Affiliates after the Participant ceases to be an employee of the Company, MN Advisors or
any of their Affiliates, unless the Participant is involuntarily terminated without Cause by the Company, MN Advisors or any of
their Affiliates (it being understood that “Cause” shall be determined at the sole, reasonable discretion of the Company, MN
Advisors or the applicable Affiliate). The provisions of this Section 9 shall supersede any non-compete language included in any
Restricted Stock Award Agreement or LTIP Award Agreement previously executed by the Participant, the Company, and MN
Advisors.
10. Notices. Any communication or notice required or permitted to be given hereunder shall be in writing, and, if to the
Company, to its principal place of business, Attention: Secretary, and, if to the Participant, to the address as appearing on the
records of the Company. Such communication or notice shall be deemed given if and when (a) properly addressed and posted by
registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, or (b) delivered by hand.
11. Incorporation of Plan by Reference. The Award is granted pursuant to the terms of the Plan, the terms of which are
incorporated herein by reference, and the Award shall in all respects be interpreted in accordance with the Plan. In the event of any
inconsistency between the Plan and this Award Agreement, the Plan shall govern. The Committee shall interpret and construe the
Plan and this Award Agreement, and their interpretations and determinations shall be conclusive and binding upon the parties
hereto and any other person claiming an interest hereunder, with respect to any issue arising hereunder or thereunder.
12. Counterparts. This Award Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but
all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument.
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13. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of New
York, but without regard to its principles of conflicts of law. In the event any provision of this Award Agreement shall be held
invalid, illegal or unenforceable, in whole or in part, for any reason, such determination shall not affect the validity, legality or
enforceability of any remaining provision, portion of provision or this Award Agreement overall, which shall remain in full force
and effect as if the Award Agreement had been absent the invalid, illegal or unenforceable provision or portion thereof.
[SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW]
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused this Agreement to be executed by its duly authorized officer, and by
electronically accepting the Notice of Grant in accordance with the instructions in such notice, Participant will be deemed a party
to, and legally bound by the terms of, this Agreement.
MANNING & NAPIER, INC.

By: ____________________________________
Name:
Title:
MANNING & NAPIER ADVISORS, LLC
By:______________________________________
Name:
Title:
PARTICIPANT
By:______________________________________
Name:
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Exhibit 10.15
EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT
This EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”) is entered into as of January 30, 2019 (the “Effective Date”), by
and between Manning & Napier, Inc. (together with its successors and assigns, the “Company”), and Marc Mayer (the
“Executive”).
RECITALS
WHEREAS, the Company and the Executive wish for the Executive to be employed by the Company upon the terms and
conditions as set forth herein;
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions contained herein, and other good and
valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto agree as follows:
1.

Employment.

1.1
Employment and Term. The Company hereby agrees to employ the Executive, and the Executive hereby
accepts employment by the Company, on the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth. The Executive’s term of employment by the
Company under this Agreement (the “Term”) shall commence on the Effective Date and end on the date on which the term of
employment is terminated in accordance with Section 5. The Executive’s employment with the Company shall be on an “at-will”
basis.
1.2

Executive Representations.

(a) The Executive represents and warrants to the Company that he may enter into and fully perform all of
his obligations under this Agreement and as an employee of the Company without breaching, violating, or conflicting with (i) any
judgment, order, writ, decree, or injunction of any court, arbitrator, government agency, or other tribunal that applies to the
Executive, or (ii) any agreement, contract, obligation, or understanding to which the Executive is a party or may be bound. Upon
any breach or inaccuracy of the foregoing, the terms and benefits of this Agreement shall be null and void. The Executive shall
indemnify and hold harmless the Company from and against any and all claims, liabilities, damages and reasonable costs of defense
and investigation arising out of any breach or inaccuracy in any of the foregoing representations.
(b)
The Executive hereby confirms that he is generally familiar with the Securities Act of 1933, the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Investment Advisors Act of 1940, all as amended, applicable state securities laws, the
Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 as amended (“ERISA”), and the rules and regulations thereunder, and with the
Company’s Code of Business Conduct and Ethics. The Executive further acknowledges that compliance with applicable federal and
state laws, rules and regulations — including, without limitation, applicable provisions of securities, antifraud, and ERISA statutes
and/or regulations — is vital to the business

of the Company. The Executive will at all times (i) conduct himself in accordance with, and will not violate, such laws, rules,
regulations, and Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, (ii) not make any material statements to prospective or current customers of
the Company without a reasonable factual basis therefor, and (iii) not omit to make any material statement to prospective or current
customers necessary to avoid causing any other statements made by the Executive to be misleading. The Executive agrees that any
material violation of this Section 1.2(b), among others, shall be Cause for termination under the terms of this Agreement.
2.

Position, Duties and Responsibilities.

2.1 Position and Duties. During the Term, the Company shall employ the Executive in the capacity of the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company, subject to the control and direction of the Company’s Board of Directors (the “Board”). The
Executive shall also have such other duties, powers, and authority as are commensurate with his position as Chief Executive
Officer, and such other duties and responsibilities that are commensurate with his position as specifically delegated to him from
time to time by the Board.
2.2 Exclusive Services and Efforts. The Executive agrees to devote his efforts, energies, and skill to the discharge
of the duties and responsibilities attributable to his position and, except as set forth herein, agrees to devote all of his professional
time and attention to the business and affairs of the Company. The Executive shall not own an interest in any outside business nor
engage in expectation of compensation or profit in any other outside professional activities (including, but not limited to:
investment research, advisory or banking services; the underwriting, offer or sale of securities; merchant banking or business
consulting services), whether pre-existing to this Agreement or otherwise, without the prior written consent of the Company, except
for ownership of less than five percent of the issued and outstanding securities of a publicly traded company, subject to the
Company’s trading policies. Any and all licenses to conduct business shall be disclosed to the Company or an affiliate unless the
prior written consent of the Company has been obtained to do otherwise.
2.3
Compliance with Company Policies. The Executive shall be subject to the bylaws, policies, practices,
procedures and rules of the Company, including those policies and procedures set forth in the Company’s Code of Business
Conduct and Ethics. The Executive’s material violation of the terms of such documents shall be considered a breach of the terms of
this Agreement.
2.4 Location of Employment. The Executive’s principal office, and principal place of employment, shall be at the
Company’s offices in Fairport, New York; provided that at his discretion, the Executive shall be entitled to work remotely one day
per week; and provided that the Executive may be required under business circumstances to travel outside of such location in
connection with performing his duties under this Agreement.
3.

Compensation.

3.1 Base Salary. During the Term, the Company shall pay to Executive an annual salary of $500,000 (the “Base
Salary”), payable not less frequently than monthly. The Base Salary
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will be reviewed annually by the Compensation Committee of the Board (the “Committee”) and may be increased (but not
decreased without the Executive’s consent) to reflect the Executive’s performance and responsibilities.
3.2

Annual Cash Bonuses.

(a) 2019 Cash Bonus. The Executive shall be eligible to receive a cash bonus for 2019 (the “2019 Cash Bonus”) in
the amount of $2.25 million, payable in cash as follows: (i) $750,000 in the first payroll following the Effective Date; (ii) $750,000
in the first payroll following July 1, 2019, subject to the Executive’s continued employment with the Company through the
applicable payment date; and (iii) $750,000 in the last payroll of 2019, subject to the Executive’s continued employment with the
Company through the applicable payment date. In the event of the termination of the Executive by the Company for Cause (as
defined herein) or a voluntary resignation by the Executive without Good Reason (as defined herein) during 2019, the Executive
shall immediately forfeit the unpaid portion of the 2019 Cash Bonus and shall repay to the Company the portions of the 2019 Cash
Bonus received by the Executive on or before the date of such termination or resignation within 30 days of the Termination Date
(as defined herein).
(b) 2020 Cash Bonus. The Executive shall be eligible to receive a cash performance bonus for 2020 (the “2020
Cash Bonus”) with a target amount of $2.25 million if operating revenue for 2020 is less than $180 million or $2.5 million if
operating revenue for 2020 is equal to or greater than $180 million (“Target”) based on the satisfaction of the performance criteria
and with threshold and maximum opportunities, all as described on Schedule A hereto, subject to the Executive’s continued
employment with the Company through December 31, 2020. Any earned 2020 Cash Bonus shall be paid in cash as soon as
practicable in the calendar year immediately following the year to which it relates.
(c) 2021 and Later Cash Bonuses. The Executive shall be eligible to receive a cash performance bonus for 2021
and later years (each, a “Subsequent Year Cash Bonus”) with a target amount of no less than $2.25 million, provided that the
Company’s operating revenue for the preceding year is at least $180 million; if the Company’s operating revenue for 2020 or a later
year is less than $180 million, the Committee and the Executive shall negotiate in good faith to determine an appropriate target
bonus amount for the following year. Each Subsequent Year Cash Bonus shall be subject to the satisfaction of the performance
criteria and to the Executive’s continued employment with the Company through the applicable payment date, and with threshold
and maximum opportunities, all as established by the Committee prior to the start of such year. Any earned Subsequent Year Cash
Bonus shall be paid in cash as soon as practicable in the calendar year immediately following the year to which it relates.
3.4

Special Sign-On Awards.

(a) Restricted Stock Units Award. In order to further align the Executive’s interests with the interests of the
Company’s shareholders, on the Effective Date, the Committee will grant the Executive an award of time-vesting restricted stock
units (the “RSUs”) with respect to 375,000 shares of the Company’s Class A common stock, subject to the terms and conditions of
the Manning & Napier, Inc. 2011 Equity Compensation Plan (the “Plan”) and the form of award
3

agreement attached hereto as Exhibit A. The RSUs shall vest as follows: (i) one-third on the Effective Date; (ii) one-third on
December 31, 2019; and (ii) one-third on December 31, 2020 (each such date, an “RSU Vesting Date”), subject to the terms and
conditions of the applicable award agreement including with respect to continued employment.
(b) Time-Vesting Stock Options. In order to further align the Executive’s interests with the interests of the
Company’s shareholders, on the Effective Date, the Committee will grant the Executive an award of time-vesting stock options to
purchase up to 500,000 shares of the Company’s Class A common stock (the “TSOs”), subject to the terms and conditions of the
Plan and the form of award agreement attached hereto as Exhibit B. The TSOs shall vest as follows: (i) one-third on January 1,
2020; (ii) one-third on January 1, 2021; and (iii) one-third on January 1, 2022 (each such date, a “TSO Vesting Date”), subject to
the terms and conditions of the applicable award agreement including with respect to continued employment. The exercise price of
the TSOs shall be equal to the closing price of the Company’s Class A common stock on the date of grant.
(c) Performance-Vesting Stock Options. In order to further align the Executive’s interests with the interests
of the Company’s shareholders, on the Effective Date, the Committee will grant the Executive an award of performance-vesting
stock options to purchase up to 3 million shares of the Company’s Class A common stock (the “PSOs”) subject to the terms and
conditions of the Plan and the form of award agreement attached hereto as Exhibit C. The PSOs shall vest in accordance with the
terms and conditions of the applicable award agreement including with respect to continued employment. The exercise price of the
PSOs shall be equal to the closing price of the Company’s Class A common stock on the date of grant.
4.

Employee Benefits; Fringe Benefits and Perquisites.

4.1 Benefits. The Executive shall be entitled to participate in such health, group insurance, welfare, pension, and
other employee benefit plans, programs, and arrangements as are made generally available from time to time to other employees of
the Company, subject to the Executive’s satisfaction of all applicable eligibility conditions of such plans, programs, and
arrangements. Nothing herein shall be construed to limit the Company’s ability to amend or terminate any employee benefit plan or
program in its sole discretion.
4.2
Fringe Benefits; Perquisites. During the Term, the Executive shall be entitled to participate in all fringe
benefits and perquisites made available to other employees of the Company, subject to the Executive’s satisfaction of all applicable
eligibility conditions to receive such fringe benefits and perquisites.
4.3

Vacation. During the Term, the Executive shall be entitled to four weeks’ vacation annually.

4.4

Reimbursements.

(a) Business Expenses. Subject to such policies generally applicable to senior executives of the Company,
as may from time to time be established by the Board, the Company shall pay or reimburse the Executive for all reasonable
expenses (including travel
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expenses) actually incurred or paid by the Executive during the Term in the performance of the Executive’s services under this
Agreement (“Expenses”), promptly upon presentation of appropriate supporting documentation and otherwise in accordance with
and subject to the expense reimbursement policy of the Company.
(b)
Legal Expenses. The Company shall pay or reimburse the Executive for up to $20,000 of legal
expenses incurred by the Executive in connection with the negotiation of this Agreement, promptly upon presentation of
appropriate supporting documentation.
(c)
Relocation Expenses. The Company shall pay or reimburse the Executive for up to $20,000 of
relocation costs incurred in 2019, promptly upon presentation of appropriate supporting documentation.
(d) Travel Expenses. The Company shall pay or reimburse the Executive for up to $20,000 per year for
travel expenses between New York, New York and Rochester, New York (or Fairport, New York, as the case may be) actually
incurred or paid by the Executive, promptly upon presentation of appropriate supporting documentation.
4.5 Controlling Document. To the extent there is any inconsistency between the terms of this Agreement and the
terms of any plan or program under which compensation or benefits are provided hereunder, this Agreement shall control.
Otherwise, the Executive shall be subject to the terms, conditions and provisions of the Company’s plans and programs, as
applicable.
5.

Termination.
5.1

Termination Upon Death. This Agreement shall terminate automatically upon the Executive’s death.

5.2
Removal from Position Upon Disability. If during the Term, the Executive incurs a Disability, then the
Company, by written notice to the Executive, shall have the right to remove him from his position. The Executive’s status as an
inactive employee of the Company shall continue after such removal for the period of time that his Disability continues. However,
the Company shall have no obligation to reinstate or otherwise continue the Executive’s employment if he should recover from his
Disability and any such termination shall not constitute a termination without Cause. For purposes of this Agreement, “Disability”
shall have the same meaning given such term in the long-term disability plan or policy maintained by the Company.
5.3
Termination for Cause. The Company may at any time, by written notice to the Executive, terminate the
Executive’s employment hereunder for Cause. For purposes hereof, the term “Cause” shall mean: (a) a material breach by the
Executive of his fiduciary duties to the Company; (b) the Executive’s material breach of this Agreement or any other agreement
between the Company or the Board and the Executive, which, if curable, remains uncured or continues after 30 days’ notice by the
Company thereof; (c) the conviction of, or entry of a plea of guilty or nolo contendere to, (i) any crime constituting a felony in the
jurisdiction in which committed, (ii) any crime involving moral turpitude (whether or not a felony), or (iii) any other criminal act
involving embezzlement, misappropriation of money, or fraud (whether or not a felony); (d) reporting to work
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or working while using illegal drugs; or (e) the Executive’s material negligence or dereliction in the performance of, or failure to
perform the Executive’s duties of employment with the Company, which remains uncured or continues after 30 days’ notice by the
Company thereof; or (f) any willful conduct, action or behavior by the Executive that is materially damaging to the Company,
whether to the business interests, finance or reputation. In addition, Executive’s employment shall be deemed to have terminated
for Cause if, on the date that the Executive’s employment terminates, facts and circumstances exist that would have justified a
termination for Cause, even if such facts and circumstances are discovered after such termination.
5.4

Termination without Cause. The Company may terminate the Executive’s employment without Cause at any

5.5

Resignation with or without Good Reason.

time.

(a) This Agreement and the Executive’s employment hereunder may be terminated by the Executive with
or without Good Reason at any time.
(b) For purposes of this Agreement, “Good Reason” means any of the following that has not been approved
in writing in advance by the Executive: (i) a material diminution of the Executive’s titles, duties, responsibilities, authorities
(including those set forth on Schedule B attached hereto) or reporting relationship or obligations, as set forth in this Agreement,
including, but not limited to, the appointment of a co-Chief Executive Officer of the Company, the Executive becoming the chief
executive officer of a division or subsidiary instead of the Chief Executive Officer of the Company, or the Executive no longer
reporting directly to the Board; (ii) the failure of the Board to nominate the Executive for election or reelection as a director of the
Company; (iii) a material reduction in the Executive’s Base Salary or target cash bonus (other than pursuant to the terms of this
Agreement); (iv) a relocation of the Executive’s principal place of employment by more than 50 miles from the Company’s offices
in Fairport, New York (other than a relocation to New York, New York); (v) the Executive is not the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company (or of the ultimate parent company of the entity succeeding to the Company’s business following a Change in Control);
or (vi) a material breach by the Company of this Agreement or any other agreement between the Company or the Board and the
Executive. Notwithstanding the foregoing, “Good Reason” for the Executive to resign shall not exist unless: (A) the Executive
provides the Company with written notice of the existence of the condition giving rise to Good Reason specifying in reasonable
detail the facts and circumstances claimed to provide a basis for termination of the Executive’s employment for Good Reason
within 90 days after its initial occurrence; (B) the Company fails to remedy such condition within 30 days after its receipt of such
written notice; and (C) the Executive resigns within 60 days after the cure period has lapsed. Any resignation or termination
pursuant to the terms of this Section 5.5 shall not constitute a breach of this Agreement by either party. In addition to, and in no
way limiting, the foregoing, “Good Reason” shall include the agreement of the Committee that a resignation shall be treated as a
resignation with Good Reason.
(c) For purposes of this Agreement, a “Change in Control” shall mean any of the following:
6

(i) any person who is not an “affiliate” (as defined in Rule 12b-2 under the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934, as amended) of the Company as of the Effective Date becomes the beneficial owner, directly or indirectly, of 50 percent or
more of the combined voting power of the then outstanding securities of the Company except pursuant to a public offering of
securities of the Company; provided, however, that the event described in this paragraph (i) shall not be deemed to be a Change in
Control by virtue of an acquisition of Company voting securities by: (A) the Company or any affiliate of the Company, (B) William
Manning or an entity which he controls, (C) any employee benefit plan (or related trust) sponsored or maintained by Company or
any affiliate of the Company, or (D) any underwriter temporarily holding securities pursuant to an offering of such securities;
(ii) the sale of the Company substantially as an entity (whether by sale of stock, sale of assets,
merger, consolidation, or otherwise) to a person who is not an affiliate of the Company as of the Effective Date; or
(iii) there occurs a merger, consolidation or other reorganization of the Company with a person who
is not an affiliate of the Company as of the Effective Date, and in which shareholders of the Company immediately preceding the
merger hold less than 50 percent of the combined voting power for the election of directors of the Company immediately following
the merger.
For purposes of this Section 5.5(c), the term “person” shall include a legal entity, as well as an individual.
5.6 Return of Information and Data. Upon the termination of employment of the Executive’s employment with the
Company (the “Termination Date”), the Executive (or his legal representative) will deliver to the Company all copies of investment
strategy descriptions, screens, research procedures manuals, operations and/or marketing procedures manuals, statements of
investment objectives, marketing brochures, and other materials of the Company or of any of its affiliates which may be in his
possession. The Executive will not retain but will deliver to the Company any other documents, including copies, relating to the
information, knowledge or data described above.
6. Compensation Upon Termination. Other provisions of this Agreement notwithstanding, upon the occurrence of an
event described in Section 5, the parties shall have the following rights and obligations:
6.1 Death. If the Executive’s employment is terminated during the Term by reason of the Executive’s death, the
Company shall pay to the Executive’s estate the Accrued Benefits. “Accrued Benefits” means: (a) the accrued but unpaid Base
Salary through the Termination Date, payable within 30 days following the Termination Date; (b) reimbursement for any
unreimbursed Expenses incurred through the Termination Date, payable within 30 days following the Termination Date; (c)
accrued but unused vacation days; and (d) all other payments, benefits, or fringe benefits to which the Executive shall be entitled as
of the Termination Date under the terms of any applicable compensation arrangement or benefit, equity, or fringe benefit plan or
program or grant. If the Executive’s employment is terminated during the Term by reason of the Executive’s
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death: (i) if the death occurs on or between July 1, 2019 and December 31, 2019, the Company shall also pay to the Executive’s
estate any unpaid portion of the 2019 Cash Bonus, payable within 30 days following the Termination Date; and (ii) if the
termination occurs after 2019, the unvested RSUs shall immediately vest on the Termination Date and the Company shall also pay
to the Executive’s estate a pro-rata portion of the target amount of the annual cash bonus for the year in which the termination
occurs based on the number of days in such year through the Termination Date, payable within 30 days following the Termination
Date.
6.2

Disability.

(a) If the Executive is removed from his position during the Term because of his Disability, the Company
shall pay to the Executive the Accrued Benefits. If the Executive is removed from his position during the Term because of his
Disability: (i) if the removal occurs on or between July 1, 2019 and December 31, 2019, the Company shall also pay to the
Executive any unpaid portion of the 2019 Cash Bonus, payable within 30 days following the Termination Date; and (ii) if the
removal occurs after 2019, the unvested RSUs shall immediately vest on the Termination Date and the Company shall also pay to
the Executive a pro-rata portion of the target amount of the annual cash bonus for the year in which the removal occurs based on
the number of days in such year through the Termination Date, payable within 30 days following the Termination Date. All
payments to be provided to the Executive under this Section 6.2(a) shall be subject to the Executive’s compliance with the
restrictions in Section 8.
(b) In addition, the Executive, for the period of time during which his Disability continues, may continue to
participate in certain of the employee benefit plans in which he participated immediately prior to his removal. These benefits would
include participation in, as applicable and to the extent defined in the Company’s applicable plans, group life, medical/dental and
disability insurance plans, each at the same ratio of employer/employee contribution as applicable to the Executive immediately
prior to his removal; and, thereafter, at the same ratio of employer/employee contribution as then-applicable to other executivelevel employees in the Company. In addition, the Executive shall be entitled to compensation and benefits accrued through the date
of his removal from his duties, including any amounts payable to the Executive under any Company profit sharing or other
employee benefit plan up to the date of removal, to the extent permitted under the terms of such plan.
6.3
Termination for Cause or Resignation without Good Reason. If the Executive’s employment shall be
terminated by the Company for Cause, or by the Executive without Good Reason, then: (a) the Company shall pay to the Executive
the Accrued Benefits; and (b) the Executive shall immediately forfeit as of the Termination Date his unvested RSUs, TSOs, PSOs
and any unpaid annual cash bonuses.
6.4

Termination without Cause or Resignation for Good Reason.

(a) If the Executive’s employment is terminated by the Company without Cause, or the Executive resigns
for Good Reason, the Company shall pay to the Executive the Accrued Benefits. If the Executive’s employment is terminated by
the Company without Cause, or the Executive resigns for Good Reason: (i) the Company shall pay to the Executive severance in
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the amount of $5 million payable (the “Severance Payments”) over the two-year period following the Termination Date; provided,
however, any installments that would otherwise be paid before the period for the execution and non-revocation of the Release (as
defined below) expires will be retained by the Company and paid with the first payroll period commencing on or after expiration of
such period; and (ii) if the termination occurs after 2019, the unvested RSUs shall immediately vest on the Termination Date. If the
Executive’s employment is terminated by the Company without Cause, or the Executive resigns for Good Reason, during 2019, the
aggregate amount of the Severance Payments shall be reduced by (i) the amount of the 2019 Cash Bonus received by the Executive
prior to the Executive’s termination of employment, and (ii) the Base Salary received or to be received by the Executive from the
Company for the period prior to the Executive’s termination of employment.
(b) If the Executive’s employment is terminated by the Company without Cause, or the Executive resigns
for Good Reason, on or after January 1, 2020, and a Change in Control occurs within 12 months following the Termination Date,
then the Company shall pay to the Executive in cash an amount equal to (i) the number of TSOs that would have vested after the
Termination Date had the Executive remained employed by the Company through the date of the Change in Control, multiplied by
(ii) the value of a share of the Company’s Class A common stock in the Change in Control transaction over the exercise price of the
TSOs. Such payment shall be made within 30 days following the date of the Change in Control. This provision shall only apply to
the first Change in Control to occur within the 12-month period following the Termination Date.
(c) All payments to be provided to the Executive under this Section 6.4 shall be subject to the Executive’s
(x) compliance with the restrictions in Section 8 and (y) execution of a general release and waiver of claims against the Company,
its officers, directors, employees and agents from any and all liability arising from the Executive’s employment relationship with
the Company (which release will include an agreement between both parties not to disparage the other) that is not revoked (the
“Release”).
6.5
Termination or Repayment of Severance Payments. In addition to the foregoing, and not in any way in
limitation thereof, or in limitation of any right or remedy otherwise available to the Company, if the Executive violates any
provision of this Agreement, any obligation of the Company to pay Severance Payments shall be terminated and of no further force
or effect, and the Executive shall promptly repay to the Company any Severance Payments previously made to the Executive, in
each case, without limiting or affecting the Executive’s obligations under this Agreement or the Company’s other rights and
remedies available at law or equity.
6.6 Return of Company Property. Upon termination of the Executive’s employment for any reason or under any
circumstances, the Executive shall promptly return any and all of the property of the Company and any affiliates (including,
without limitation, all computers, keys, credit cards, identification tags, documents, data, confidential information, work product,
and other proprietary materials), and other materials.
6.7 Post-Termination Cooperation. The Executive agrees and covenants that, following the Term, he shall, to the
extent requested by the Company, cooperate in good faith with the Company to assist the Company in the pursuit or defense of
(except if the Executive is adverse
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with respect to) any claim, administrative charge, or cause of action by or against the Company as to which the Executive, by virtue
of his employment with the Company or any other position that the Executive holds that is affiliated with or was held at the request
of the Company, has relevant knowledge or information, including by acting as the Company’s representative in any such
proceeding and, without the necessity of a subpoena, providing truthful testimony in any jurisdiction or forum. The Company shall
compensate Executive at a rate consistent with his Base Salary per hour for services provided in compliance with this Section 6.7
and shall reimburse Executive for his reasonable out-of-pocket expenses incurred in compliance with this Section 6.7.
6.8 Post-Termination Non-Assistance. Executive agrees and covenants that, following the Term, he or she shall not
voluntarily assist, support, or cooperate with, directly or indirectly, any person or entity alleging or pursuing or defending against
any claim, administrative charge, or cause or action against or by the Company, including by providing testimony or other
information or documents, except under compulsion of law. Should Executive be compelled to testify, nothing in this Agreement is
intended or shall prohibit Executive from providing complete and truthful testimony. Nothing in this Agreement shall in any way
prevent Executive from cooperating with any investigation by any federal, state, or local governmental agency.
7.
Intellectual Property. All inventions, discoveries, ideas, improvements, innovations or developments, and other
intellectual property, whether patentable or not, relating to the existing business or products, or proposed business or products
disclosed to the Executive during his employment, of the Company and its affiliates, conceived, generated or reduced to practice by
or worked on by Executive, alone or in combination with others, whether or not during working hours, during his employment by
the Company, shall be the exclusive property of the Company and its affiliates. The Executive shall execute and deliver to the
Company all assignments and other documents, and take all other action reasonably requested by the Company, at the Company’s
expense, during or subsequent to his employment, to vest title in any such inventions or other intellectual property in the Company
and its affiliates and/or to obtain patents, trademarks or copyrights therefor.
8.

Restrictive Covenants.

In the course of developing its investment advisory business, the Company and its affiliates have developed forms of
organization, business processes, procedures, computer software, investment strategies, screens and pricing disciplines, client
procurement and retention strategies, marketing and business strategies, and other aspects of its business (collectively, the
“procedures”) which it considers, and the Executive acknowledges, to be proprietary and/or distinctive within its businesses. Many
of these procedures have been created and refined over a period of many years, at considerable cost, and in some cases may not
change for a period of many years. The Company and its affiliates seek to protect its distinctive and proprietary procedures from
competitors by obtaining from the Executive various non-disclosure and non-competition agreements, which the Executive
acknowledges are reasonably necessary for the protection of the interests of the Company and its affiliates.
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8.1

Non-Disclosure.

(a) The Executive shall forever hold in a fiduciary capacity for the benefit of the Company all secret or
confidential information, knowledge or data relating to the Company or any of its affiliates, and their respective businesses, which
shall have been obtained by the Executive during the Executive’s employment by the Company or any of its affiliates and which
shall not be public knowledge (other than as a result of a breach of this Section 8.1 by the Executive), including, without limitation,
such information, knowledge or data regarding its or their business or investment methodologies, procedures, programs, source
codes, clients, information relating to clients, prices, product strengths and weaknesses, or future developments or plans. The
Executive shall not, without the prior written consent of the Company or except as required by law or in a judicial or administrative
proceeding with subpoena powers, communicate or divulge any such information, knowledge or data to anyone other than the
Company and those designated by it.
(b) Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing in this Agreement shall (i) prohibit the Executive from making
reports of possible violations of federal law or regulation to any governmental agency or entity in accordance with the provisions of
and rules promulgated under Section 21F of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 or Section 806 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002, or of any other whistleblower protection provisions of state or federal law or regulation, or (ii) require notification or prior
approval by the Company of any reporting described in clause (i).
(c)
Pursuant to The Defend Trade Secrets Act (18 USC § 1833(b)), the Executive may not be held
criminally or civilly liable under any federal or state trade secret law for disclosure of a trade secret: (i) made in confidence to a
government official, either directly or indirectly, or to an attorney, solely for the purpose of reporting or investigating a suspected
violation of law; and/or (ii) in a complaint or other document filed in a lawsuit or other proceeding, if such filing is made under
seal. Additionally, the Executive, if suing the Company for retaliation based on the reporting of a suspected violation of law, may
disclose a trade secret to his attorney and use the trade secret information in the court proceeding, so long as any document
containing the trade secret is filed under seal and the Executive does not disclose the trade secret except pursuant to court order.
8.2 Non-Competition. The Executive will not, without the express written consent of the Company, which consent
shall not be unreasonably withheld, during the period of the Executive’s employment with the Company, and for a period of two
years thereafter, directly or indirectly, (a) engage in (as a principal, partner, director, officer, stockholder (except as permitted
below), agent, employee, or consultant); or (b) be financially interested in, any entity materially engaged in any portion of the
business of the Company or its affiliates within the territory served, or contemplated to be entered, by the Company or its affiliates
on the date of such termination of employment. Nothing contained herein shall (i) prevent the Executive from owning beneficially
or of record not more than five percent of the outstanding equity securities of any entity whose equity securities are registered
under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or are listed for trading on any recognizable United States or foreign stock exchange
or market, (ii) prevent the Executive from being an employee, principal, partner, officer, stockholder or agent of an asset owner
(e.g., pension
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plan, endowment, family office, etc.), or (iii) prevent the Executive from serving on the board of directors or board of trustees of a
mutual fund at any time after the three-month anniversary of the Executive’s termination of employment. The business of the
Company and its affiliates shall be defined to include investment management, investment research, advice and discretionary
management; custody and trust administration; wealth, benefits and risk management services, and related business.
8.3 Non-Solicitation. The Executive will not, for a period of two years after the termination of the Executive’s
employment with the Company for any reason, directly or indirectly, whether alone or as partner, owner, officer, director,
employee, shareholder, consultant, or otherwise, without the express written consent of the Company, hire, employ, retain, or
contract any person who then is or during one year prior to the termination date was an employee of or consultant to the Company
or its affiliates and with whom the Executive has material contact. The Executive will not, for a period of two years after the
termination of the Executive’s employment with the Company for any reason, directly or indirectly, whether alone or as partner,
owner, officer, director, employee, shareholder, consultant, or otherwise, without the express written consent of the Company, (a)
persuade or encourage or attempt to persuade or encourage any customer, client, partner, affiliate, supplier, or vendor of the
Company or an affiliate to cease doing business with the Company or an affiliate or to compete with the Company or an affiliate on
its own or with any competitor of the Company or an affiliate, or (c) solely with respect to clients or customers for whom the
Company or an affiliate is a provider of investment management services with respect to 50% or more of the client’s or customer’s
assets under management, do business with, accept or engage any such customer, client, partner, affiliate, supplier, or vendor of the
Company or an affiliate for products or services competitive with the Company or an affiliate. The Executive acknowledges that
the foregoing restrictions in this Section 8 are necessary since many of the procedures, strategies and other business plans and
techniques of the Company and its affiliates have considerable ongoing value.
8.4 Enforceability of Provisions. If any restriction set forth in this Section 8 is found by any court of competent
jurisdiction to be unenforceable because it extends for too long a period of time or over too great a range of activities or in too
broad a geographic area, it shall be interpreted to extend only over the maximum period of time, range of activities or geographic
area as to which it may be enforceable, it being understood and agreed that by the execution of this Agreement, the parties hereto
regard the restrictions herein as reasonable and compatible with their respective rights.
8.5 Remedy for Breach. The Executive hereby acknowledges that the provisions of this Section 8 are reasonable
and necessary for the protection of the Company and its respective subsidiaries and affiliates. In addition, the Executive further
acknowledges that the Company and its respective subsidiaries and affiliates will be irrevocably damaged if such covenants are not
specifically enforced. Accordingly, the Executive agrees that, in addition to any other relief to which the Company may be entitled,
the Company will be entitled to seek and obtain injunctive relief (without the requirement of any bond) from a court of competent
jurisdiction for the purposes of restraining the Executive from an actual or threatened breach of such covenants. In addition, and
without limiting the Company’s other remedies, in the event of any breach by the Executive of such
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covenants, the Company will have no obligation to pay any of the amounts that remain payable by the Company in Section 6.
9.

Tax Matters.

9.1 Withholdings. The Company may withhold from any amounts payable under this Agreement such federal,
state or local taxes as shall be required to be withheld pursuant to any applicable law or regulation.
9.2
Section 280G. In the event that the Executive becomes entitled to any payments or benefits under this
Agreement and any portion of such payments or benefits, when combined with any other payments or benefits provided to
Executive (including, without limiting the generality of the foregoing, by reason of the exercise or vesting of any stock options or
the receipt or vesting of any other equity awards), which in the absence of this Section 9.2 would be subject to the tax (the “Excise
Tax”) imposed by Section 4999 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), then the amount payable to the
Executive under this Agreement shall, either (a) be reduced to the largest amount or greatest right such that none of the amounts
payable to the Executive under this Agreement and any other payments or benefits received or to be received by Executive as a
result of, or in connection with, an event constituting a change in the ownership or effective control of the Company or in the
ownership of a substantial portion of the assets of the Company (within the meaning of Section 280G(b)(2)(A) of the Code) or the
termination of employment shall be treated as “parachute payments” within the meaning of Section 280G(b)(2) of the Code, or (b)
be made in full, with Executive bearing full responsibility for any Excise Tax liability, whichever of (a) or (b) provides the
Executive with a larger net after-tax amount. The Company shall cooperate in good faith with the Executive in making such
determination, including but not limited to providing the Executive with an estimate of any parachute payments as soon as
reasonably practicable prior to an event constituting a change in the ownership or effective control of the Company or in the
ownership of a substantial portion of the assets of the Company (within the meaning of Section 280G(b)(2)(A) of the Code). Any
reduction pursuant to this Section 9.2 shall be made in a manner compliant with Section 409A of the Code. This Section 9.2 shall
apply in lieu of any provision applicable to the Executive under any other agreement or arrangement (including the Plan) with
respect to Section 4999 of the Code. All determinations with respect to this Section 9.2 shall be made by an independent nationally
recognized certified public accounting firm reasonably acceptable to the Executive at the Company’s sole expense. The after-tax
amount shall be calculated, as applicable, using the maximum marginal income tax rates for each year in which the payment is
payable to the Executive (based upon the rates in effect for such year as set forth in the Code at the relevant time).
9.3 Section 409A. The compensation and benefits provided under this Agreement are intended to qualify for an
exemption from or to comply with the requirements of Section 409A of the Code and the treasury regulations and other official
guidance issued thereunder (collectively, “Section 409A”), so as to prevent the inclusion in gross income of any compensation or
benefits accrued hereunder in a taxable year prior to the taxable year or years in which such amount would otherwise be actually
distributed or made available to the Executive, and this Agreement shall be administered and interpreted consistent with such
intention. The preceding
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provision, however, shall not be construed as a guarantee by the Company of any particular tax effect to the Executive under this
Agreement. The Company shall not be liable to the Executive for any payment made under this Agreement that is determined to
result in an additional tax, penalty or interest under Section 409A, nor for reporting in good faith any payment made under this
Agreement as an amount includible in gross income under Section 409A. References to “termination of employment” and similar
terms used in this Agreement mean, to the extent necessary to comply with or qualify for an exception from Section 409A, the date
that the Executive first incurs a “separation from service” within the meaning of Section 409A. To the extent any reimbursement
provided under this Agreement is includable in the Executive’s income, such reimbursements shall be paid to the Executive not
later than December 31st of the year following the year in which the Executive incurs the expense and the amount of reimbursable
expenses provided in one year shall not increase or decrease the amount of reimbursable expenses to be provided in a subsequent
year. Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, if at the time of the Executive’s separation from service with the
Company, the Executive is a “specified employee” as defined in Section 409A, and any payment payable under this Agreement as a
result of such separation from service is required to be delayed by six months pursuant to Section 409A, then the Company will
make such payment on the date that is six months and one day following the Executive’s separation from service with the
Company. The amount of such payment will equal the sum of the payments that would have been paid to the Executive during the
six-month period immediately following the Executive’s separation from service had the payment commenced as of such date.
Each payment under this Agreement shall be designated as a “separate payment” within the meaning of Section 409A.
10.

Miscellaneous.

10.1 Clawback. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement to the contrary, in order to comply with
Section 10D of the Exchange Act, and any regulations promulgated, or national securities exchange listing conditions adopted, with
respect thereto (collectively, the “Clawback Requirements”), if the Company is required to prepare an accounting restatement due
to the material noncompliance of the Company with any financial reporting requirements under the securities laws, then the
Executive shall return to the Company, or forfeit if not yet paid, the amount of any “incentive-based compensation” (as defined
under the Clawback Requirements) received during the three-year period preceding the date on which the Company is required to
prepare the accounting restatement, based on the erroneous data, in excess of what would have been paid to the Executive under the
accounting restatement as determined by the Company in accordance with the Clawback Requirements and any policy adopted by
the Company pursuant to the Clawback Requirements.
10.2 Right of Set Off. In the event of a breach by the Executive of the provisions of this Agreement, the Company
is hereby authorized at any time and from time to time, to the fullest extent permitted by law, and after 10 days prior written notice
to the Executive, to set off and apply any and all amounts at any time held by the Company on behalf of the Executive and all
indebtedness at any time owing by the Company to the Executive against any and all of the obligations of the Executive now or
hereafter existing.
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10.3 Notices. Any notice, consent, demand, or other communication to be given under or in connection with this
Agreement shall be in writing and shall be delivered personally, telecopied, or sent by certified, registered or express mail, postage
prepaid, to the parties at the following addresses or at such other addresses as shall be specified by the parties by like notice, and
shall be deemed given when so delivered personally, telecopied or if mailed, two days after the date of mailing, , if to the Company,
at its principal office, and, if to the Executive, to him at the address noted in the Company’s records.
10.4 Entire Agreement. This Agreement and the documents referenced herein contain the entire understanding of
the Company and the Executive and supersedes all prior or contemporaneous negotiations, correspondence, understandings and
agreements between the parties, regarding the subject matter of this Agreement.
10.5 Inconsistencies. In the event of any inconsistency between any provision of this Agreement and any provision
of any Company arrangement, the provisions of this Agreement shall control, unless the Executive and the Company otherwise
agree in a writing that expressly refers to the provision of this Agreement that is being waived.
10.6
Amendment. This Agreement may not be amended or modified otherwise than by a written agreement
executed by the parties hereto or their respective successors and legal representatives. No delay on the part of any party in
exercising any right, power or privilege hereunder shall operate as a waiver thereof, nor shall any waiver on the part of any party of
any right, power or privilege hereunder, nor any single or partial exercise of any right, power or privilege hereunder preclude any
other or further exercise thereof or the exercise of any other right, power or privilege hereunder.
10.7 Governing Law; Jurisdiction. This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the substantive laws of
the State of New York, without regard to any principles of conflicts of laws. Any claim by either party against the other in
connection with any provision of this Agreement or any claim, dispute, or controversy arising from the employment as
contemplated hereby, (including claims for injunctive relief), may be prosecuted in the applicable court described below. The venue
for any claim or action shall be in a court in Rochester, New York, in the Western District of New York (if in federal court) and in
Monroe County, New York (if in state court). Each party hereby consents to the exclusive jurisdiction of the courts in the preceding
sentence for the claims or actions specified therein (including actions or claims by affiliates of the Company) agrees that service of
process shall be sufficient if sent to the applicable party at the address designated pursuant to Section 10.3, by registered or certified
mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested.
10.8 Assignment. This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and shall be binding upon the Company and its
successors. This Agreement is personal to the Executive and shall not be assignable by Executive otherwise than by will or the laws
of descent and distribution. The Company will require any successor (whether direct or indirect, by purchase, merger, consolidation
or otherwise) to all or substantially all of the business and/or assets of the Company to expressly assume and agree to perform this
Agreement in the same manner and to the same extent that the Company would be required to perform it if no such succession had
taken place. As used in this Agreement, “Company” shall mean the Company as hereinbefore defined and any successor to its
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business and/or assets as aforesaid which assumes and agrees to perform this Agreement by operation of law, or otherwise.
10.9 Voluntary Execution; Representations. Executive acknowledges that (a) he has consulted with or has had the
opportunity to consult with independent counsel of his own choosing concerning this Agreement and has been advised to do so by
the Company, and (b) he has read and understands this Agreement, is competent and of sound mind to execute this Agreement, is
fully aware of the legal effect of this Agreement, and has entered into it freely based on his own judgment and without duress.
10.10 Headings. The headings of the Sections and Subsections contained in this Agreement are for convenience
only and shall not be deemed to control or affect the meaning or construction of any provision of this Agreement.
10.11 Construction. The language used in this Agreement shall be deemed to be the language chosen by the parties
to express their mutual intent, and no rule of strict construction shall be applied against any party.
10.12 Survivorship. Except as otherwise set forth in this Agreement, the respective rights and obligations of the
parties shall survive any termination of Executive’s employment.
10.13 Severability. If any term, provision, covenant or restriction of this Agreement, or any part thereof, is held by
a court of competent jurisdiction of any foreign, federal, state, county or local government or any other governmental, regulatory or
administrative agency or authority to be invalid, void, unenforceable or against public policy for any reason, the remainder of the
terms, provisions, covenants and restrictions of this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect and shall in no way be affected,
impaired or invalidated.
10.14
Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original, but all such counterparts shall together constitute one and the same instrument. Signatures delivered by
facsimile or PDF shall be effective for all purposes.
[Signature Page Immediately Follows]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement on the date first above written.
MANNING & NAPIER, INC.

By:

/s/ Sarah C. Turner
Sarah C. Turner,
Corporate Secretary

/s/ Marc Mayer
Marc Mayer

[Signature Page to Employment Agreement]
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SCHEDULE A
2020 CASH BONUS PERFORMANCE REQUIREMENTS
Component 1: 2020 Pretax Operating Income (35% of Target)
•

The payout metrics for this component are as follows:
2020 Pretax Operating
Income

Payout
2020 Operating
Revenue < $180 million

2020 Operating
Revenue => $180
million

>= Maximum

$60 million

$1,687,500

$1,775,000

= Target

$30 million

$787,500

$875,000

= Threshold

$20 million

$487,500

$575,000

Pretax Operating Income means the Company’s “Operating Income” as reported on the Company’s audited financial statements.
Operating Revenue means the Company’s “Total Revenue” as reported on the Company’s audited financial statements.
•

If the level of performance achieved is not represented in the table set forth above, then the Payout shall be determined by
straight-line interpolation from the levels of performance specified in the table set forth above immediately less than and
greater than the level of performance actually achieved. No Payout will be earned if 2020 Pretax Operating Income is less
than $20 million.

•

2020 Pretax Operating Income will be calculated net of the Executive’s salary, cash incentive income and expense for the
RSUs, but without factoring in the expense of the TSOs and the PSOs.

Component 2: Company Investment Performance (30% of Target)
•

The payout for this component will be earned if 50% or more of the Company’s assets under management meet or exceed
their relevant benchmarks for 2019-2020.
Payout
2020 Operating Revenue < $180
million

2020 Operating Revenue =>
$180 million

=>50% AUM Meet or Exceed
Benchmarks

$675,000

$750,000

<50% AUM Meet or Exceed
Benchmarks

$0

$0
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Component 3: Strategic Initiatives (35% of Target)
•

The payout for this component will be based on the achievement of strategic initiatives to be mutually agreed upon by the
Executive and the Board in the fourth quarter of 2019.

•

The strategic initiatives may include, but are not limited to, things such as: (i) planning and executing the Company’s
information technology modernization, (ii) restoring employee morale/reducing voluntary turnover, (iii) introducing
artificial intelligence as a tool for the Company’s investment efforts, (iv) reducing the firm’s cost structure, (v) new product
development, and (vi) developing strategic partnerships.
Payout
2020 Operating Revenue < $180 2020 Operating Revenue => $180
million
million
Maximum Payout

$787,000

$875,000
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SCHEDULE B
EXECUTIVE AUTHORITIES
The purpose of this Schedule is to illustrate the operational authority of the Executive to introduce, lead and execute strategic
initiatives with the support and oversight of the Board. To avoid any doubt, the Executive’s authority includes, and is not limited to:
1.

Present the Board a comprehensive plan within approximately 180 days of the effective date of his employment agreement.

2.

To quickly and comprehensively assess the costs and benefits of the major structural areas of the Company in an effort to
simplify and reduce unnecessary complexity and expense.

3.

Depending on the results of the above and other assessments of costs and complexities, to pursue appropriate cost to revenue
ratios for the Company.

4.

To be able to hire personnel to augment or replace existing resources.

5.

To explore growth opportunities.

6.

To pursue strategic opportunities, with the knowledge of the Board.

For the avoidance of doubt, nothing contained in this Schedule shall infringe upon or otherwise limit the ability of the Board to
exercise its authority and fulfill its fiduciary responsibilities.
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EXHIBIT A
FORM OF RESTRICTED STOCK UNIT AWARD AGREEMENT

[Attached]
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EXHIBIT B
FORM OF TIME-VESTING STOCK OPTION AWARD AGREEMENT

[Attached]
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EXHIBIT C
FORM OF PERFORMANCE-VESTING STOCK OPTION AWARD AGREEMENT

[Attached]
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Exhibit 10.16

MANNING & NAPIER, INC.
2011 EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN
RESTRICTED STOCK UNIT AWARD AGREEMENT
RESTRICTED STOCK UNIT AWARD AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”), dated as of January 30, 2019, by and between
Manning & Napier, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the “Company”), and Marc Mayer (the “Participant”).
W I T N E S S E T H:
WHEREAS, the Company adopted the Manning & Napier, Inc. 2011 Equity Compensation Plan (the “Plan”), which
authorizes, among other things, the grant of restricted stock units (“RSUs”) pursuant to which Participants may receive shares of
the Company’s Class A common stock, $.01 par value (“Class A Stock”), to officers and employees of the Company; and
WHEREAS, the Committee has determined that it would be in the best interests of the Company to grant the RSUs set forth
herein.
NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereto hereby agree as follows:
1.

Definitions. Capitalized terms not defined in this Agreement shall have the meaning ascribed to such terms in the

Plan.
2.
Award. Subject to the terms and conditions of the Plan and as set forth herein, the Company hereby grants to the
Participant, as of the date hereof, an award of 375,000 RSUs.
3.
Status of RSUs. Each RSU constitutes an unfunded and unsecured promise of the Company to deliver (or cause to
be delivered) to the Participant, subject to the terms of this Agreement, one share of Class A Stock (or securities or other property
equal to the Fair Market Value thereof) on the applicable vesting date.
4.

Vesting.

(a)
Subject to such further limitations as are provided in the Plan and as set forth herein, the RSUs shall vest
ratably with one-third of the RSUs vesting on January 30, 2019; an additional one-third of the RSUs vesting on December 31,
2019; and the remaining one-third of the RSUs vesting on December 31, 2020, provided that the Participant continues to be
employed by the Company through the applicable vesting date.
(b)
Notwithstanding Section 4(a) above, and subject to such further limitations as are provided in the Plan and
as set forth herein, the RSUs will immediately vest upon:
(i)
termination of the Participant’s employment after December 31, 2019 by reason of the Participant’s
death or “Disability” (as defined in the Employment Agreement by

and between the Company and the Participant, effective as of January 30, 2019 (the “Employment Agreement”));
(ii)
termination of the Participant’s employment after December 31, 2019 by the Company without
“Cause” (as defined in the Employment Agreement); or
(iii)
Employment Agreement).

the Participant’s resignation after December 31, 2019 for “Good Reason” (as defined in the

5.
Dividend Equivalents. If and to the extent that the RSUs vest, additional cash payments equal to the amount of
dividends, if any, which would have been paid to the Participant had shares of Class A Stock been issued in lieu of the RSUs which
have vested, as well as any cash dividend for which the record date has passed but the RSU payment date has not yet occurred, will
be paid at the same time as the RSUs on which the dividend equivalents are being paid. No interest shall be included in the
calculation of such dividend equivalents.
6.

Termination of Award.

(a)
The RSUs, to the extent not previously vested and subject to the remainder of this Section 6, shall
terminate and become null and void upon termination of the Participant’s employment.
(b)
In the sole discretion of the Committee and without any further action by or on behalf of the Participant,
upon termination of the Participant’s employment, the RSUs, to the extent not previously vested, may become vested and the
Company in such case shall deliver (or cause to be delivered) the shares of Class A Stock with respect thereto.
7.
Malus Clawback. If the Board or the Committee determines, in its sole discretion, that Participant engaged in fraud
or misconduct as a result of which the Company is required to, or decided to, restate its financial statements, the Committee may, in
its sole discretion, impose any or all of the following: (a) immediate expiration of the RSUs, whether vested or not, if granted
within the first 12 months after issuance or filing of any financial statement that is being restated (the “Recovery Measurement
Period”); and (b) payment or transfer to the Company of the Gain from the RSUs, where the “Gain” consists of the greatest of (i)
the value of the RSUs on the grant date if within the Recovery Measurement Period, (ii) the value of the RSUs during the Recovery
Measurement Period, as determined on the date of the request by the Committee to pay or transfer, (iii) the gross (before tax)
proceeds you received from any sale of the shares of Class A Stock during the Recovery Measurement Period, and (iv) if
transferred without sale during the Recovery Measurement Period, the value of the shares of Class A Stock when so transferred.
This remedy is in addition to any other remedies that the Company may have available in law or equity. Payment is due in cash or
cash equivalents within 10 days after the Committee provides written notice to you that it is enforcing this provision. Payment will
be calculated on a gross basis, without reduction for taxes or commissions. The Company may, but is not required to, accept
retransfer of shares of Class A Stock in lieu of cash payments.
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8.
Non-Transferability. The RSUs, and any interest therein, shall not be assignable or transferable by the Participant
other than by will or the laws of descent and distribution. The RSUs shall terminate and become null and void immediately upon
the bankruptcy of the Participant, or upon any attempted assignment or transfer except as herein provided, including without
limitation, any purported assignment, whether voluntary or by operation of law, pledge, hypothecation or other disposition,
attachment, trustee process or similar process, whether legal or equitable, upon the RSUs.
9.
Stock Retention. The Participant agrees to retain and hold 100 percent of the net number of shares of Class A
Stock received from the vesting and payment of the RSUs until termination of the Participant’s employment.
10.
No Special Rights. Neither the granting of the RSUs nor their vesting shall be construed to confer upon the
Participant any right with respect to the continuation of his employment with the Company (or any Affiliate of the Company) or
interfere in any way with the right of the Company (or any Affiliate of the Company), subject to the terms of any separate
agreement to the contrary, at any time to terminate such employment or to increase or decrease the compensation of the Participant
from the rate in existence as of the date hereof.
11.
Taxes. The Participant represents and warrants that he understands the federal, state and local income tax
consequences of the granting of the RSUs to the Participant and the vesting thereof. It is understood that all matters with respect to
the total amount of taxes to be withheld in respect of any such compensation income shall be determined by the Company. To the
extent that the Company is required to withhold any such taxes, the Participant may satisfy such tax withholding by one or more of
the following means: (a) remitting to the Company in cash an amount sufficient to satisfy any federal, state, local or other
withholding tax obligations; (b) to the extent permitted by applicable law, having the Company withhold a number of shares of
Class A Stock having an aggregate Fair Market Value on the date such withholding tax obligation arises equal to an amount
sufficient to satisfy any federal, state, local or other withholding tax obligations; or (c) having the Company deduct from any
payments of any kind otherwise due to the Participant the aggregate amount of any federal, state, local or other withholding tax
obligations, provided that if such payments are inadequate to satisfy such withholding tax obligations, or if no such payments are
due or to become due to the Participant, then, the Participant agrees to provide the Company with cash funds or make other
arrangements satisfactory to the Company regarding such payment. In the event that the Participant fails to make arrangements
with the Company to satisfy in full its federal, state, local or other withholding tax obligations, the Company shall have the right to
collect such tax withholding using the methods provided by clauses (b) and (c).
12.
Restrictive Covenants. In consideration of the granting of the RSUs, the Participant agrees to be bound by the
restrictive covenants set forth in the Employment Agreement. The Participant acknowledges and agrees that the provisions of this
Section 12 shall survive and be enforceable by the Company after the Participant ceases to be an employee of the Company, MN
Group or any of their Affiliates.
13.
No Rights of Shareholder. Except as otherwise provided in Section 5 above, the Participant shall not be deemed
for any purpose to be a shareholder of the Company with respect
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to the RSUs except to the extent that shares of Class A Stock shall have been issued to the Participant upon vesting of the RSUs.
14.
Notices. Any communication or notice required or permitted to be given hereunder shall be in writing, and, if to
the Company, to its principal place of business, Attention: Secretary, and, if to the Participant, to the address as appearing on the
records of the Company. Such communication or notice shall be deemed given if and when (a) properly addressed and posted by
registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, or (b) delivered by hand.
15.
Incorporation of Plan by Reference. The RSUs are granted pursuant to the terms of the Plan, the terms of which
are incorporated herein by reference, and the RSUs shall in all respects be interpreted in accordance with the Plan. In the event of
any inconsistency between the Plan and this Agreement, the Plan shall govern. The Committee shall interpret and construe the Plan
and this Agreement, and their interpretations and determinations shall be conclusive and binding upon the parties hereto and any
other person claiming an interest hereunder, with respect to any issue arising hereunder or thereunder.
16.
Amendment. The Committee may amend this Agreement, prospectively or retroactively, provided that the
Agreement as amended is consistent with the terms of the Plan, and further provided that, other than as the Committee may deem
necessary or appropriate to comply with applicable law, including without limitation the provisions of Section 409A of the Code,
no amendment or modification may adversely affect the rights of the Participant without his or her consent. An amendment or
modification of this Agreement that is necessary or appropriate to comply with applicable law or that does not adversely affect the
rights of the Participant may be made without the consent of the Participant.
17.
Entire Agreement. This Agreement and the Employment Agreement constitute the entire agreement of the parties
hereto with respect to the matters contained herein and constitute the only agreement between the parties with respect to the matters
contained herein.
18.
Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but
all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument.
19.

Acknowledgement. The Participant acknowledges receipt of a copy of the Plan.

20.
Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of
New York, but without regard to its principles of conflicts of law. In the event any provision of this Agreement shall be held
invalid, illegal or unenforceable, in whole or in part, for any reason, such determination shall not affect the validity, legality or
enforceability of any remaining provision, portion of provision or this Agreement overall, which shall remain in full force and
effect as if the Agreement had been absent the invalid, illegal or unenforceable provision or portion thereof
21.
Section 409A. The RSUs and dividend equivalents are intended to be exempt from Section 409A of the Code,
and the Plan and this Agreement shall be administered and interpreted consistent with such intent. Notwithstanding the foregoing,
the Company makes no representations
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that the RSUs and dividend equivalents are exempt from Section 409A of the Code, and in no event shall the Company or any
Affiliate be liable for all or any portion of any taxes, penalties, interest or other expenses that may be incurred by the Participant on
account of a violation of Section 409A of the Code.
[SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have executed this Agreement as of the date first above written.
MANNING & NAPIER, INC.

By: /s/ Sarah C. Turner
Name: Sarah C. Turner
Title: Corporate Secretary
PARTICIPANT
/s/ Marc Mayer
Marc Mayer
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Exhibit 10.17
MANNING & NAPIER, INC.
2011 EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN
STOCK OPTION AGREEMENT
STOCK OPTION AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”), dated as of January 30, 2019, by and between Manning & Napier,
Inc., a Delaware corporation (the “Company”), and Marc Mayer (the “Participant”).
W I T N E S S E T H:
WHEREAS, the Company adopted the Manning & Napier, Inc. 2011 Equity Compensation Plan (the “Plan”), which
authorizes, among other things, the grant of options to purchase shares of the Company’s Class A common stock, $.01 par value
(“Class A Stock”), to officers and employees of the Company; and
WHEREAS, the Committee has determined that it would be in the best interests of the Company to grant the option set
forth herein.
NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereto hereby agree as follows:
1.

Definitions. Capitalized terms not defined in this Agreement shall have the meaning ascribed to such terms in the

Plan.
2. Grant of Option. Subject to the terms and conditions of the Plan and as set forth herein, the Company hereby grants to
the Participant, as of the date hereof, an option (the “Option”) to purchase from the Company all or any part of an aggregate
number of 500,000 shares of Class A Stock. The Option shall be treated as a nonqualified stock option.
3. Exercise Price. The Option shall become exercisable at a per share price of $2.01 (the “Exercise Price”).
4. Vesting.
(a) Subject to such further limitations as are provided in the Plan and as set forth herein, the Option shall vest
ratably over a three-year period, with one-third of the shares of Class A Stock covered by the Option vesting on January 1, 2020; an
additional one-third of the shares of Class A Stock covered by the Option vesting on January 1, 2021; and the remaining one-third
of the shares of Class A Stock covered by the Option vesting on January 1, 2022, provided that the Participant continues to be
employed by the Company through the applicable vesting date.
(b) Notwithstanding Section 4(a) above, and subject to such further limitations as are provided in the Plan and as
set forth herein, in the event of a “Change in Control” of the Company (as defined in the Employment Agreement by and between
the Company and the Participant, effective as of January 30, 2019 (the “Employment Agreement”)) on or after January 1,

2020 and before January 1, 2023, the Option shall vest in full upon the closing of such Change in Control if the Company remains a
public company following such transaction.
5. Termination of Option.
(a) The Option, to the extent not previously exercised and subject to the remainder of this Section 5, shall terminate
and become null and void at the close of business on the date that is the fourth anniversary of the applicable vesting date (each, an
“Option Expiration Date”).
(a) Except as otherwise provided in Sections 5(c) and (d) below, upon termination of the Participant’s employment
with the Company, the Option, to the extent not previously exercised, shall terminate and become null and void 90 days after such
termination of the Participant’s employment, or upon the applicable Option Expiration Date, whichever occurs first.
(b) Upon termination of the Participant’s employment by reason of the Participant’s death or “Disability” (as
defined in the Employment Agreement), the Option, to the extent not previously exercised, shall terminate and become null and
void 12 months after such termination of the Participant’s employment, or upon the applicable Option Expiration Date, whichever
occurs first.
(c) Upon termination of the Participant’s employment by the Company for “Cause” (as defined in the Employment
Agreement) or the Participant’s resignation without “Good Reason” (as defined in the Employment Agreement), the Option: (i) to
the extent not previously vested, shall terminate and become null and void; and (ii) to the extent vested but not previously
exercised, shall terminate and become null and void 90 days after such termination or resignation, or upon the applicable Option
Expiration Date, whichever occurs first.
6. Exercisability.
(a) Upon termination of the Participant’s employment, the Option shall be exercisable only to the extent that the
Option is vested and is in effect on the date of such termination of the Participant’s employment.
(a) To the extent exercisable, the Option may be exercised by a legal representative on behalf of the Participant in
the event of Disability, or, in the case of the death of the Participant, by the estate of the Participant or by any person or persons
who acquired the right to exercise the Option by bequest or inheritance or by reason of the death of the Participant.
7. Manner of Exercise.
(a) The Option may be exercised in full at one time or in part from time to time to the extent vested by giving
written notice, signed by the person exercising the Option, to the Company, stating the number of shares of Class A Stock with
respect to which the Option is being
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exercised and the date of exercise thereof, which date shall be at least five days after the giving of such notice.
(a) Full payment by the Participant of the Exercise Price for the shares of Class A Stock purchased shall be made
on or before the exercise date specified in the notice of exercise by any of the following methods, at the Participant’s election: (i)
delivery of cash or check payable to the order of the Company in an amount equal to such Exercise Price; (ii) subject to the
Committee’s discretion, delivery of shares of Class A Stock owned by the Participant having a Fair Market Value equal in amount
to such Exercise Price (except where payment by delivery of shares of Class A Stock would adversely affect the Company’s results
of operations under U.S. generally accepted accounting principles or where payment by delivery of shares of Class A Stock
outstanding for less than six months would require application of securities laws relating to profit realized on such shares);
(iii) withholding shares of Class A Stock with an aggregate Fair Market Value equal to the aggregate Exercise Price (unless the
Company or MN Group is precluded or restricted from doing so under debt covenants); (iv) by other means acceptable to the
Committee; or (v) by any combination of the foregoing.
(b) Upon exercise of the Option in the manner prescribed by this Section 7, delivery of a certificate for the shares
of Class A Stock then being purchased shall be made at the principal office of the Company to the person exercising the Option
within a reasonable time after the date of exercise specified in the notice of exercise.
8. Malus Clawback. If the Board or the Committee determines, in its sole discretion, that Participant engaged in fraud or
misconduct as a result of which the Company is required to, or decided to, restate its financial statements, the Committee may, in its
sole discretion, impose any or all of the following: (a) immediate expiration of the Option, whether vested or not, if granted within
the first 12 months after issuance or filing of any financial statement that is being restated (the “Recovery Measurement Period”);
and (b) payment or transfer to the Company of the Gain from the Option, where the “Gain” consists of the greatest of (i) the value
of the Option on the grant date if within the Recovery Measurement Period, (ii) the value of the Option during the Recovery
Measurement Period, as determined on the date of the request by the Committee to pay or transfer, (iii) the gross (before tax)
proceeds you received from any sale of the shares of Class A Stock during the Recovery Measurement Period, and (iv) if
transferred without sale during the Recovery Measurement Period, the value of the shares of Class A Stock when so transferred.
This remedy is in addition to any other remedies that the Company may have available in law or equity. Payment is due in cash or
cash equivalents within 10 days after the Committee provides written notice to you that it is enforcing this provision. Payment will
be calculated on a gross basis, without reduction for taxes or commissions. The Company may, but is not required to, accept
retransfer of shares of Class A Stock in lieu of cash payments.
9. Non-Transferability. The Option, and any interest therein, shall not be assignable or transferable by the Participant other
than by will or the laws of descent and distribution and shall be exercisable during the lifetime of the Participant only by the
Participant or the Participant’s legal representative. The Option shall terminate and become null and void immediately upon the
bankruptcy of the Participant, or upon any attempted assignment or transfer except as herein
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provided, including without limitation, any purported assignment, whether voluntary or by operation of law, pledge, hypothecation
or other disposition, attachment, trustee process or similar process, whether legal or equitable, upon the Option.
10. Stock Retention. The Participant agrees to retain and hold 40 percent of the net number of shares of Class A Stock
received from the exercise of the Option until termination of the Participant’s employment.
11. No Special Rights. Neither the granting of the Option nor its exercise shall be construed to confer upon the Participant
any right with respect to the continuation of his employment with the Company (or any Affiliate of the Company) or interfere in
any way with the right of the Company (or any Affiliate of the Company), subject to the terms of any separate agreement to the
contrary, at any time to terminate such employment or to increase or decrease the compensation of the Participant from the rate in
existence as of the date hereof.
12.
Taxes. The Participant represents and warrants that he understands the federal, state and local income tax
consequences of the granting of the Option to the Participant and the exercise thereof. It is understood that all matters with respect
to the total amount of taxes to be withheld in respect of any such compensation income shall be determined by the Company. To the
extent that the Company is required to withhold any such taxes, the Participant may satisfy such tax withholding by one or more of
the following means: (a) remitting to the Company in cash an amount sufficient to satisfy any federal, state, local or other
withholding tax obligations; (b) to the extent permitted by applicable law, having the Company withhold a number of shares of
Class A Stock having an aggregate Fair Market Value on the date such withholding tax obligation arises equal to an amount
sufficient to satisfy any federal, state, local or other withholding tax obligations; or (c) having the Company deduct from any
payments of any kind otherwise due to the Participant the aggregate amount of any federal, state, local or other withholding tax
obligations, provided that if such payments are inadequate to satisfy such withholding tax obligations, or if no such payments are
due or to become due to the Participant, then, the Participant agrees to provide the Company with cash funds or make other
arrangements satisfactory to the Company regarding such payment. In the event that the Participant fails to make arrangements
with the Company to satisfy in full its federal, state, local or other withholding tax obligations, the Company shall have the right to
collect such tax withholding using the methods provided by clauses (b) and (c).
13. Restrictive Covenants. In consideration of the granting of the Award, the Participant agrees to be bound by the
restrictive covenants set forth in the Employment Agreement. The Participant acknowledges and agrees that the provisions of this
Section 13 shall survive and be enforceable by the Company after the Participant ceases to be an employee of the Company, MN
Group or any of their Affiliates.
14. No Rights of Shareholder. The Participant shall not be deemed for any purpose to be a shareholder of the Company
with respect to the Option except to the extent that shares of Class A Stock shall have been issued to the Participant upon exercise
of the Option.
15. Notices. Any communication or notice required or permitted to be given hereunder shall be in writing, and, if to the
Company, to its principal place of business, Attention: Secretary,
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and, if to the Participant, to the address as appearing on the records of the Company. Such communication or notice shall be
deemed given if and when (a) properly addressed and posted by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, or (b) delivered by
hand.
16. Incorporation of Plan by Reference. The Option is granted pursuant to the terms of the Plan, the terms of which are
incorporated herein by reference, and the Option shall in all respects be interpreted in accordance with the Plan. In the event of any
inconsistency between the Plan and this Agreement, the Plan shall govern. The Committee shall interpret and construe the Plan and
this Agreement, and their interpretations and determinations shall be conclusive and binding upon the parties hereto and any other
person claiming an interest hereunder, with respect to any issue arising hereunder or thereunder.
17. Amendment. The Committee may amend this Agreement, prospectively or retroactively, provided that the Agreement
as amended is consistent with the terms of the Plan, and further provided that, other than as the Committee may deem necessary or
appropriate to comply with applicable law, including without limitation the provisions of Section 409A of the Code, no amendment
or modification may adversely affect the rights of the Participant without his or her consent. An amendment or modification of this
Agreement that is necessary or appropriate to comply with applicable law or that does not adversely affect the rights of the
Participant may be made without the consent of the Participant.
18. Entire Agreement. This Agreement and the Employment Agreement constitute the entire agreement of the parties
hereto with respect to the matters contained herein and constitute the only agreement between the parties with respect to the matters
contained herein.
19. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of
which together shall constitute one and the same instrument.
20. Acknowledgement. The Participant acknowledges receipt of a copy of the Plan.
21. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of New
York, but without regard to its principles of conflicts of law. In the event any provision of this Agreement shall be held invalid,
illegal or unenforceable, in whole or in part, for any reason, such determination shall not affect the validity, legality or
enforceability of any remaining provision, portion of provision or this Agreement overall, which shall remain in full force and
effect as if the Agreement had been absent the invalid, illegal or unenforceable provision or portion thereof.
22. Section 409A. The Option is intended to be exempt from Section 409A of the Code, and the Plan and this Agreement
shall be administered and interpreted consistent with such intent. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Company makes no
representations that the Option is exemption from Section 409A of the Code, and in no event shall the Company or any Affiliate be
liable for all or any portion of any taxes, penalties, interest or other expenses that may be incurred by the Participant on account of
a violation of Section 409A of the Code.
[SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have executed this Agreement as of the date first above written.
MANNING & NAPIER, INC.
By: /s/ Sarah C. Turner
Name: Sarah C. Turner
Title: Corporate Secretary
PARTICIPANT
/s/ Marc Mayer
Marc Mayer
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Exhibit 10.18
MANNING & NAPIER, INC.
2011 EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN
STOCK OPTION AGREEMENT
STOCK OPTION AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”), dated as of January 30, 2019, by and between Manning & Napier,
Inc., a Delaware corporation (the “Company”), and Marc Mayer (the “Participant”).
W I T N E S S E T H:
WHEREAS, the Company adopted the Manning & Napier, Inc. 2011 Equity Compensation Plan (the “Plan”), which
authorizes, among other things, the grant of options to purchase shares of the Company’s Class A common stock, $.01 par value
(“Class A Stock”), to officers and employees of the Company; and
WHEREAS, the Committee has determined that it would be in the best interests of the Company to grant the option set
forth herein.
NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereto hereby agree as follows:
1.

Definitions. Capitalized terms not defined in this Agreement shall have the meaning ascribed to such terms in the

Plan.
2. Grant of Option. Subject to the terms and conditions of the Plan and as set forth herein, the Company hereby grants to
the Participant, as of the date hereof, an option (the “Option”) to purchase from the Company all or any part of an aggregate
number of 3,000,000 shares of Class A Stock. The Option shall be treated as a nonqualified stock option.
3. Exercise Price. The Option shall become exercisable at a per share price of $2.01 (the “Exercise Price”).
4. Vesting. Subject to such further limitations as are provided in the Plan and as set forth herein, the Option shall vest
according to the schedule attached hereto as Schedule A, provided that the Participant continues to be employed by the Company
through the applicable vesting date.
5. Termination of Option.
(a) The Option, to the extent not previously exercised and subject to the remainder of this Section 5, shall terminate
and become null and void at the close of business on the date that is the fourth anniversary of the applicable vesting date (each, an
“Option Expiration Date”).
(a) Except as otherwise provided in Sections 5(c) and (d) below, upon termination of the Participant’s employment
with the Company, the Option, to the extent not previously exercised, shall terminate and become null and void 90 days after such
termination of

the Participant’s employment, or upon the applicable Option Expiration Date, whichever occurs first.
(b) Upon termination of the Participant’s employment by reason of the Participant’s death or “Disability” (as
defined in the Employment Agreement by and between the Company and the Participant, effective as of January 30, 2019 (the
“Employment Agreement”)), the Option, to the extent not previously exercised, shall terminate and become null and void 12
months after such termination of the Participant’s employment, or upon the applicable Option Expiration Date, whichever occurs
first.
(c) Upon termination of the Participant’s employment by the Company for “Cause” (as defined in the Employment
Agreement) or the Participant’s resignation without “Good Reason” (as defined in the Employment Agreement), the Option: (i) to
the extent not previously vested, shall terminate and become null and void; and (ii) to the extent vested but not previously
exercised, shall terminate and become null and void 90 days after such termination or resignation, or upon the applicable Option
Expiration Date, whichever occurs first.
6. Exercisability.
(a) Upon termination of the Participant’s employment, the Option shall be exercisable only to the extent that the
Option is vested and is in effect on the date of such termination of the Participant’s employment.
(a) To the extent exercisable, the Option may be exercised by a legal representative on behalf of the Participant in
the event of Disability, or, in the case of the death of the Participant, by the estate of the Participant or by any person or persons
who acquired the right to exercise the Option by bequest or inheritance or by reason of the death of the Participant.
7. Manner of Exercise.
(a) The Option may be exercised in full at one time or in part from time to time to the extent vested by giving
written notice, signed by the person exercising the Option, to the Company, stating the number of shares of Class A Stock with
respect to which the Option is being exercised and the date of exercise thereof, which date shall be at least five days after the giving
of such notice.
(a) Full payment by the Participant of the Exercise Price for the shares of Class A Stock purchased shall be made
on or before the exercise date specified in the notice of exercise by any of the following methods, at the Participant’s election: (i)
delivery of cash or check payable to the order of the Company in an amount equal to such Exercise Price; (ii) subject to the
Committee’s discretion, delivery of shares of Class A Stock owned by the Participant having a Fair Market Value equal in amount
to such Exercise Price (except where payment by delivery of shares of Class A Stock would adversely affect the Company’s results
of operations under U.S. generally accepted accounting principles or where payment by delivery of shares of Class A Stock
outstanding for less than six months would require application of securities laws relating to profit realized on such shares); (iii)
withholding shares of Class A Stock with an aggregate Fair Market Value equal to the
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aggregate Exercise Price (unless the Company or MN Group is precluded or restricted from doing so under debt covenants); (iv) by
other means acceptable to the Committee; or (v) by any combination of the foregoing.
(b) Upon exercise of the Option in the manner prescribed by this Section 7, delivery of a certificate for the shares
of Class A Stock then being purchased shall be made at the principal office of the Company to the person exercising the Option
within a reasonable time after the date of exercise specified in the notice of exercise.
8. Malus Clawback. If the Board or the Committee determines, in its sole discretion, that Participant engaged in fraud or
misconduct as a result of which the Company is required to, or decided to, restate its financial statements, the Committee may, in its
sole discretion, impose any or all of the following: (a) immediate expiration of the Option, whether vested or not, if granted within
the first 12 months after issuance or filing of any financial statement that is being restated (the “Recovery Measurement Period”);
and (b) payment or transfer to the Company of the Gain from the Option, where the “Gain” consists of the greatest of (i) the value
of the Option on the grant date if within the Recovery Measurement Period, (ii) the value of the Option during the Recovery
Measurement Period, as determined on the date of the request by the Committee to pay or transfer, (iii) the gross (before tax)
proceeds you received from any sale of the shares of Class A Stock during the Recovery Measurement Period, and (iv) if
transferred without sale during the Recovery Measurement Period, the value of the shares of Class A Stock when so transferred.
The amount paid or transferred to the Company shall be adjusted to reflect any adjustment to the number of shares of Class A Stock
covered by the Option that actually vest after application of the performance vesting schedule in Exhibit A. This remedy is in
addition to any other remedies that the Company may have available in law or equity. Payment is due in cash or cash equivalents
within 10 days after the Committee provides written notice to you that it is enforcing this provision. Payment will be calculated on
a gross basis, without reduction for taxes or commissions. The Company may, but is not required to, accept retransfer of shares of
Class A Stock in lieu of cash payments.
9. Non-Transferability. The Option, and any interest therein, shall not be assignable or transferable by the Participant other
than by will or the laws of descent and distribution and shall be exercisable during the lifetime of the Participant only by the
Participant or the Participant’s legal representative. The Option shall terminate and become null and void immediately upon the
bankruptcy of the Participant, or upon any attempted assignment or transfer except as herein provided, including without limitation,
any purported assignment, whether voluntary or by operation of law, pledge, hypothecation or other disposition, attachment, trustee
process or similar process, whether legal or equitable, upon the Option.
10. Stock Retention. The Participant agrees to retain and hold 40 percent of the net number of shares of Class A Stock
received from the exercise of the Option until termination of the Participant’s employment.
11. No Special Rights. Neither the granting of the Option nor its exercise shall be construed to confer upon the Participant
any right with respect to the continuation of his employment with the Company (or any Affiliate of the Company) or interfere in
any way with the right of the Company (or any Affiliate of the Company), subject to the terms of any separate agreement to the
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contrary, at any time to terminate such employment or to increase or decrease the compensation of the Participant from the rate in
existence as of the date hereof.
12.
Taxes. The Participant represents and warrants that he understands the federal, state and local income tax
consequences of the granting of the Option to the Participant and the exercise thereof. It is understood that all matters with respect
to the total amount of taxes to be withheld in respect of any such compensation income shall be determined by the Company. To the
extent that the Company is required to withhold any such taxes, the Participant may satisfy such tax withholding by one or more of
the following means: (a) remitting to the Company in cash an amount sufficient to satisfy any federal, state, local or other
withholding tax obligations; (b) to the extent permitted by applicable law, having the Company withhold a number of shares of
Class A Stock having an aggregate Fair Market Value on the date such withholding tax obligation arises equal to an amount
sufficient to satisfy any federal, state, local or other withholding tax obligations; or (c) having the Company deduct from any
payments of any kind otherwise due to the Participant the aggregate amount of any federal, state, local or other withholding tax
obligations, provided that if such payments are inadequate to satisfy such withholding tax obligations, or if no such payments are
due or to become due to the Participant, then, the Participant agrees to provide the Company with cash funds or make other
arrangements satisfactory to the Company regarding such payment. In the event that the Participant fails to make arrangements
with the Company to satisfy in full its federal, state, local or other withholding tax obligations, the Company shall have the right to
collect such tax withholding using the methods provided by clauses (b) and (c).
13. Restrictive Covenants. In consideration of the granting of the Award, the Participant agrees to be bound by the
restrictive covenants set forth in the Employment Agreement. The Participant acknowledges and agrees that the provisions of this
Section 13 shall survive and be enforceable by the Company after the Participant ceases to be an employee of the Company, MN
Group or any of their Affiliates.
14. No Rights of Shareholder. The Participant shall not be deemed for any purpose to be a shareholder of the Company
with respect to the Option except to the extent that shares of Class A Stock shall have been issued to the Participant upon exercise
of the Option.
15. Notices. Any communication or notice required or permitted to be given hereunder shall be in writing, and, if to the
Company, to its principal place of business, Attention: Secretary, and, if to the Participant, to the address as appearing on the
records of the Company. Such communication or notice shall be deemed given if and when (a) properly addressed and posted by
registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, or (b) delivered by hand.
16. Incorporation of Plan by Reference. The Option is granted pursuant to the terms of the Plan, the terms of which are
incorporated herein by reference, and the Option shall in all respects be interpreted in accordance with the Plan. In the event of any
inconsistency between the Plan and this Agreement, the Plan shall govern. The Committee shall interpret and construe the Plan and
this Agreement, and their interpretations and determinations shall be conclusive and binding upon the parties hereto and any other
person claiming an interest hereunder, with respect to any issue arising hereunder or thereunder.
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17. Amendment. The Committee may amend this Agreement, prospectively or retroactively, provided that the Agreement
as amended is consistent with the terms of the Plan, and further provided that, other than as the Committee may deem necessary or
appropriate to comply with applicable law, including without limitation the provisions of Section 409A of the Code, no amendment
or modification may adversely affect the rights of the Participant without his or her consent. An amendment or modification of this
Agreement that is necessary or appropriate to comply with applicable law or that does not adversely affect the rights of the
Participant may be made without the consent of the Participant.
18. Entire Agreement. This Agreement and the Employment Agreement constitute the entire agreement of the parties
hereto with respect to the matters contained herein and constitute the only agreement between the parties with respect to the matters
contained herein.
19. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of
which together shall constitute one and the same instrument.
20. Acknowledgement. The Participant acknowledges receipt of a copy of the Plan.
21. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of New
York, but without regard to its principles of conflicts of law. In the event any provision of this Agreement shall be held invalid,
illegal or unenforceable, in whole or in part, for any reason, such determination shall not affect the validity, legality or
enforceability of any remaining provision, portion of provision or this Agreement overall, which shall remain in full force and
effect as if the Agreement had been absent the invalid, illegal or unenforceable provision or portion thereof.
22. Section 409A. The Option is intended to be exempt from Section 409A of the Code, and the Plan and this Agreement
shall be administered and interpreted consistent with such intent. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Company makes no
representations that the Option is exemption from Section 409A of the Code, and in no event shall the Company or any Affiliate be
liable for all or any portion of any taxes, penalties, interest or other expenses that may be incurred by the Participant on account of
a violation of Section 409A of the Code.
[SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have executed this Agreement as of the date first above written.
MANNING & NAPIER, INC.
By: /s/ Sarah C. Turner
Name: Sarah C. Turner
Title: Corporate Secretary
PARTICIPANT
/s/ Marc Mayer
Marc Mayer
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SCHEDULE A
VESTING SCHEDULE
Provided that the Participant continues to be employed by the Company through the applicable Vesting Date, and subject to
earlier termination under Section 5 of this Agreement, the Option shall vest for the applicable number of shares of Class A Stock
set forth in the table below on the date that the average closing price per share of Class A Stock equals or exceeds the applicable
target price per share of Class A Stock set forth in the table below for 20 consecutive trading days (a “Vesting Date”) if such
Vesting Date occurs on or before the applicable date set forth in the table below by which such average closing price must be
achieved or exceeded for the Option to vest. Notwithstanding the foregoing, all rights in and to the Option and the number of shares
of Class A Stock to the extent not vested as of the applicable date by which such average closing price must be achieved or
exceeded shall terminate and become null and void.
Number of Options to Vest

Target Price that Must Be Achieved or
Exceeded for Options to Vest

Date that Target Price Must Be Achieved or
Exceeded for Options to Vest

400,000

$3.25

12/31/2021

289,000

$3.75

12/31/2021

289,000

$4.25

12/31/2022

289,000

$4.75

12/31/2022

289,000

$5.25

12/31/2023

289,000

$5.75

12/31/2023

289,000

$6.25

12/31/2024

289,000

$6.75

12/31/2024

289,000

$7.25

12/31/2025

288,000

$7.75

12/31/2025
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Exhibit 21.1
SUBSIDIARIES OF MANNING & NAPIER, INC.

Entity Name

Jurisdiction of Incorporation/Organization

Manning & Napier Group, LLC

Delaware

Manning & Napier Advisors, LLC

Delaware

Manning & Napier Investor Services, Inc.

New York

Exeter Trust Company

New Hampshire

Manning & Napier Information Services, LLC

New York

Perspective Partners, LLC

New York

Rainier Investment Management, LLC

Delaware

Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements on Form S-8 (No. 333-187943) of Manning & Napier, Inc. of our report
dated March 27, 2019 relating to the financial statements, which appears in this Form 10-K.

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Rochester, NY
March 27, 2019

Exhibit 31.1
Certification
Pursuant to Section 302
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
I, Marc Mayer, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Manning & Napier, Inc.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for
the registrant and have:
a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;
b. Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;
c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
d. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and
5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting.
/s/ Marc Mayer
Marc Mayer
Chief Executive Officer
(principal executive officer)
Date: March 27, 2019

Exhibit 31.2
Certification
Pursuant to Section 302
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
I, Paul J. Battaglia, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Manning & Napier, Inc.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for
the registrant and have:
a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;
b. Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;
c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
d. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and
5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting.
/s/ Paul J. Battaglia
Paul J. Battaglia
Chief Financial Officer
(principal financial and accounting officer)
Date: March 27, 2019

Exhibit 32.1
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
I, Marc Mayer, the Chief Executive Officer of Manning & Napier, Inc. (the “Company”), hereby certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:
• The annual report on Form 10-K of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2018 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission
on the date hereof (the “Form 10-K”), fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended;
and
• The information contained in the Form 10-K fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the
Company.
/s/ Marc Mayer
Marc Mayer
Chief Executive Officer
(principal executive officer)
Date: March 27, 2019

Exhibit 32.2
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
I, Paul J. Battaglia, the Chief Financial Officer of Manning & Napier, Inc. (the “Company”), hereby certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as
adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:
• The annual report on Form 10-K of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2018 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission
on the date hereof (the “Form 10-K”), fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended;
and
• The information contained in the Form 10-K fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the
Company.
/s/ Paul J. Battaglia
Paul J. Battaglia
Chief Financial Officer
(principal financial and accounting officer)
Date: March 27, 2019

